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PART |
tem 1. BUSINESS.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains statem#rasare not historical facts and are considerediarddooking within the meanin
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Actl&B5. These forward-looking statements containgmtigns of our future results of operations
or our financial position or state other forwarddking information. In some cases you can identiésé forward-looking statements by words
such as "anticipate," "believe," "could," "estimatéexpect,” "intend," "may," "should," and "wouldt similar words. You should not rely on
forward looking statements because they involvevknend unknown risks, uncertainties and other fagtsome of which are beyond ¢
control. These risks, uncertainties and other fextoay cause our actual results, performance oiea@ments to differ materially from the
anticipated future results, performance or achiegata expressed or implied by the forward lookirgeshents. Some of the factors that might
cause these differences are described under Item"Résk Factors." You should carefully review altloése factors, and you should be aware
that there may be other factors that could caussehdifferences. These forward-looking statemeeats bhased on information, plans and
estimates at the date of this report, and, excepeguired by law, we undertake no obligation tdate any forward-looking statements to
reflect changes in underlying assumptions or fagtaew information, future events or other changes.

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, refezes to "the Company," "Watts Water," "we," "us™our" refer to Watts Water

Technologies, Inc. and its consolidated subsidsarie
Overview

Watts Regulator Co. was founded by Joseplv&its in 1874 in Lawrence, Massachusetts. WattguRitor Co. started as a small machine
shop supplying parts to the New England textildswf the 19th century and grew into a global maoturer of products and systems focused
on the control, conservation and quality of watett the comfort and safety of the people using att@/Water Technologies, Inc. was
incorporated in Delaware in 1985 and became themp@aompany of Watts Regulator Co.

Our strategy is to be the leading proviofewvater quality, water conservation, water satetgd water flow control products for the
residential and commercial markets in the Amerarass EMEA (Europe, Middle East and Africa) and tpaxd our presence in Asia Pacific.
Our primary objective is to grow earnings by inciaeg sales within existing markets, expanding ime@ markets, leveraging our distribution
channels and customer base, making selected aampssireducing manufacturing costs and advocdtinthe development and enforcemer
industry standards.

We intend to continue to expand organichajhintroducing products in existing markets, bjamcing our preferred brands, by developin
new complementary products, by promoting plumbiodecdevelopment to drive sales of safety and wptality products and by continually
improving merchandising in both the do-it-yourg@fY) and wholesale distribution channels. We coudilly target selected new product and
geographic markets based on growth potential, diietpour ability to leverage our existing distrilaut channels. Additionally, we continually
leverage our distribution channels through theomhtiction of new products, as well as the integratibproducts of our acquired companies.

We intend to continue to generate incremlegriowth by targeting selected acquisitions, botbur core markets as well as new
complementary markets. We have completed 36 atiguisisince 1999. Our acquisition strategy focusebusinesses that manufacture
preferred brand name products that address ourethefmwater quality, water conservation, watertyai@ater flow control and comfort and
related complementary markets. We target busingkaesvill provide us with one or more of the fallimg: an entry into new markets, an
increase in shelf space with existing customersengtbrand names, a new or improved technologyn@xpansion of the breadth of our proc
offerings.




We are committed to reducing our manufaetyand operating costs through a combination afufecturing in lower-cost countries,
using Lean and Six Sigma to drive continuous imprognt across all key processes, and consolidatindiverse manufacturing operations in
Americas, EMEA and Asia Pacific. We have a numidenanufacturing facilities in lower-cost regionhuas Mexico, China, Bulgaria and
Tunisia. In recent years, we have announced segkeiadl restructuring plans to reduce our manufaogufootprint in order to reduce our costs
and to realize additional operating efficiencies.

Our products are sold to wholesale distdtaiand dealers, major DIY chains and originaligapent manufacturers (OEMs). Most of our
sales are for products that have been approved uvegiglatory standards incorporated into staterandicipal plumbing, heating, building and
fire protection codes in North America and Eurdpde have consistently advocated for the developrmedtenforcement of plumbing codes
and are committed to providing products to meesarsandards, particularly for safety and contabve products.

Additionally, a majority of our manufactag facilities are 1ISO 9000, 9001 or 9002 certifigcthe International Organization for
Standardization.

Our business is reported in three geograpdgments: Americas, EMEA and Asia Pacific. Ourefinas segment was formerly referred tc
as North America and our Asia Pacific segment wasérly referred to as Asia. We changed the desonipf our North America segment to
the Americas to reflect the broadening of our foirumclude Latin America and we changed the dpton of our Asia segment to Asia Pac
to reflect the broadening of our focus in that oegio include Asian countries outside of China afl as Australia and New Zealand. The
contributions of each segment to net sales, opegraticome and the presentation of certain othaniiml information by segment are reported
in Note 16 of the Notes to Consolidated Financtat&8nents and in "Management's Discussion and Aisadf Financial Condition and Rest
of Operations" included elsewhere in this report.

Products

We have a broad range of products in terhuesign distinction, size and configuration. VW&ssify our many products into four universal
product lines. These product lines are:

. Residential & commercial flow control products—indes products typically sold into plumbing and Water applications such
as backflow preventers, water pressure regulatmgyerature and pressure relief valves, and theatiosnixing valves. In
2013, 2012 and 2011, residential & commercial ftamatrol products accounted for approximately 61%p6Gnd 60%,
respectively, of our total sales.

. HVAC & gas products—includes hydronic and electdating systems for under-floor radiant applicagidrydronic pump
groups for boiler manufacturers and alternativegneontrol packages, and flexible stainless sterhectors for natural and
liquid propane gas in commercial food service asidential applications. In 2013, 2012 and 2011AB\& gas products
accounted for approximately 24%, 24% and 25%, iy, of our total sales. HVAC is an acronym fagating, ventilation
and air conditioning.

. Drains & water re-use products—includes drainagelpcts and engineered rain water harvesting solsifior commercial,
industrial, marine and residential applicationsaibs & water raise products accounted for approximately 10% ototat sale:
in each of 2013, 2012 and 2011.

. Water quality products—includes point-of-use aoéht-of-entry water filtration, conditioning arstale prevention systems for
both commercial and residential applications. Weteality products accounted for approximately 5% total sales in each
2013, 2012 and 2011.




Customers and Market
We sell our products to plumbing, heating anechanical wholesale distributors, major DIYinkand OEMs.

Wholesalers. Approximately 64% of our sales in 2013, and 638%ur sales in each of 2012 and 2011, were tdegate distributors fc
commercial and residential applications. We relycommissioned manufacturers' representatives, sbnvlich maintain a consigned
inventory of our products, to market our produaesi. Additionally, various water quality products aold to independent dealers throughout
the Americas.

DIY Chains. Approximately 13% of our sales in each of 20412 and 2011 were to DIY chains. Our DIY chaiamdnd less technic
products, but are highly receptive to innovativeiges and new product ideas.

OEMs. Approximately 23% of our sales in 2013, and 2#%ur sales in each of 2012 and 2011, were to ©HMthe Americas, our
typical OEM customers are water heater manufactard equipment and water systems manufacturedéngeféow control devices and other
products. Our sales to OEMs in EMEA are primardbbiler manufacturers and radiant system manufactuOur sales to OEMs in Asia
Pacific are primarily to boiler, water heaters &ath manufacturers including manufacturers of faaod shower products.

In 2013, 2012 and 2011, no customer acealfar more than 10% of our total net sales. Oprtém customers accounted for
approximately $321.7 million, or 22%, of our totedt sales in 2013; $309.3 million, or 22%, of atat net sales in 2012; and $290.4 million,
or 21%, of our total net sales in 2011. Thousaridgh®r customers constituted the balance of otisales in each of those years.

Marketing and Sales

For product sales, we rely primarily on eoissioned manufacturers' representatives, soméiighwnaintain a consigned inventory of our
products. These representatives sell primarilyidonping and heating wholesalers or service DIYestan the Americas. We also sell products
for the residential construction and home repai @modeling industries through DIY plumbing regesl, national catalog distribution
companies, hardware stores, building material taitlad retail home center chains and through plaghand heating wholesalers. In addition,
we sell products directly to wholesalers, OEMs pridate label accounts primarily in EMEA and toeader extent in the Americas.

Manufacturing

We have integrated and automated manufagteapabilities, including a lead free foundry anttaditional brass and bronze foundry,
machining, plastic extrusion and injection moldangd assembly operations. Our foundry operatiorisdgcmetal pouring systems, automatic
core making, brass forging and brass and bronzeafitngs. Our machining operations feature conmpedatrolled machine tools, high-speed
chucking machines with robotics and automatic sareehines for machining bronze, brass and steepooents. We have invested in recent
years to expand our manufacturing capabilitiessuee the availability of the most efficient andguctive equipment. In response to the |
federal Reduction of Lead in Drinking Water Act, a@mmitted approximately $18.3 million in capitpkesiding ($9.8 million in 2013 and
$8.5 million spent in 2012) for a new foundry andahinery in the U.S. to produce lead free produdte. foundry cost and related equipment
were commissioned during the second quarter of 20/are committed to maintaining our manufactugggipment at a level consistent w
current technology in order to maintain high levafiguality and manufacturing efficiencies.
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Capital expenditures and depreciation fmheof the last three years were as follows:

Years Ended
December 31

2013 2012 2011

(in millions)
Capital expenditure $ 277 $ 305 $ 22¢
Depreciatior $ 342 $ 331 $ 321

Raw Materials

We require substantial amounts of raw niteto produce our products, including bronzesbraast iron, stainless steel, steel, plastic,
and components used in products, and substardihibf the raw materials we require are purchasenhfoutside sources. The commodity
markets have experienced tremendous volatility twepast several years, particularly with respecopper. During 2011, spot copper prices
increased to historic highs early in the year, #eth trended downward in the second half of 20020112, increases in the first quarter and
third quarter were offset by more moderate priémthe second quarter and fourth quarter. In 288t copper prices in the first quarter
trended higher, with prices declining to a consistevel through the remainder of the year. Bromazé brass are copper-based alloys. The fac
that we source internationally a significant amoafntaw materials means that several months ofmaterials and work in process are moving
through our business at any point in time. We ateable to predict whether commodity costs, inalgdiopper, will significantly increase or
decrease in the future. If commodity costs incréaske future and we are not able to reduce omniehte the effect of the cost increases by
reducing production costs or implementing priceéases, our profit margins could decrease. If coditpcosts were to decline, we may
experience pressures from customers to reducestiimgsprices. The timing of any price reductiomslalecreases in commodity costs may no
align. As a result, our margins could be affected.

With limited exceptions, we have multipleopliers for our commodities and other raw matsri#e believe our relationships with our
key suppliers are good and that an interruptiosujpply from any one supplier would not materiafifiget our ability to meet our immediate
demands while another supplier is qualified. Weutady review our suppliers to evaluate their sgrtas. If a supplier is unable to meet our
demands, we believe that in most cases our inwenfaiaw materials will allow for sufficient timetidentify and obtain the necessary
commodities and other raw materials from an altersaurce. We believe that the nature of the conitieedand other raw materials used in
business are such that multiple sources are génexalilable in the market.

Code Compliance

Products representing a majority of ouesare subject to regulatory standards and codecemfiient, which typically require that these
products meet stringent performance criteria. Stedwlare established by such industry test andicatibn organizations as the American
Society of Mechanical Engineers (A.S.M.E.), the &#an Standards Association (C.S.A.), the AmerBaciety of Sanitary Engineers
(A.S.S.E.), the University of Southern Californiaurdation for Cross-Connection Control (USC FC88, international Association of
Plumbing and Mechanical Officials (I.A.P.M.0.), Fary Mutual (F.M.), the National Sanitation Foundat(N.S.F.) and Underwriters
Laboratory (U.L.). Many of these standards areripomted into state and municipal plumbing andihgabuilding and fire protection codes.

National regulatory standards in Europe/\mr country. The major standards and/or guidelthas our products must meet are AFNOR
(France), DVGW (Germany), UNI/ICIN (ltaly), KIWA (&therlands), SVGW (Switzerland), SITAC (Sweden) WiAS (United Kingdom).
Further, there are local regulatory standards regucompliance as well.

Together with our commissioned manufactin@presentatives, we have consistently advodatdtie development and enforcement of
plumbing codes. We maintain stringent quality colnénd testing




procedures at each of our manufacturing facilitiesrder to manufacture products that comply witde requirements. We believe that
product-testing capability and investment in pland equipment is needed to manufacture produdtsdimaply with code requirements.
Additionally, a majority of our manufacturing faitiés are 1ISO 9000, 9001 or 9002 certified by thieidnational Organization for
Standardization.

New Product Development and Engineeril

We maintain our own product developmenttf stkesign teams, and testing laboratories in Angsj EMEA and Asia Pacific that work to
enhance our existing products and develop new ptedWe maintain sophisticated product developraadttesting laboratories. Research
development costs included in selling, general, administrative expense amounted to $21.5 millg#9.4 million and $20.5 million for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 ctaspe.

Between 2010 and 2012, California, Louiaidviaryland and Vermont implemented laws that negail pipes, pipe and plumbing fittings
and plumbing fixtures sold in those states thavegror dispense water for human consumption toainmo more than 0.25% lead content,
which is generally referred to as lead free. Orudan4, 2011, the federal government enacted dasihaiw that took effect nationwide in
January 2014. We have invested considerable res@orer the past several years to develop lead/énestons of our plumbing products to
comply with the new laws, and we successfully idtreed our lead free product offerings in Califorhiauisiana, Maryland and Vermont. In
response to the nationwide lead free law, we cotethapproximately $18.3 million in capital spendmgr the last two years for a new
foundry and machinery in the U.S. to meet expeletad free demand for our products sold in the UC8nstruction of the new foundry was
completed and the new facility was commissionednduthe second quarter of 2013.

Complying with these new requirements orationwide basis is a challenge for us. The newirements may cause our material costs tc
increase as suppliers of alternative lead free Isvate currently limited and lead free alloy sulostis are more expensive than the original
leaded alloys. We may not succeed in passing thrtugse cost increases to our customers. Our reeflee foundry has been operating sinct
June 2013. As expected, we experienced some tedlohiallenges in our new manufacturing processlimgbwith the lead free alloys. But as
of year-end, while our new foundry was not runradull capacity, production volumes were rampimgand down time has been minimized.
The majority of our customers have converted td ke@e products by year-end and, and we currertlfbeen able to maintain our gross
margin percentages, despite the higher cost afi¢healloys.

Competition

The domestic and international marketsafater quality, water conservation, water safety aater flow control devices are intensely
competitive and require us to compete against ssomganies possessing greater financial, marketidgogher resources than ours. Due to the
breadth of our product offerings, the number amshiidies of our competitors vary by product linelanarket. We consider quality, brand
preference, delivery times, engineering specificatj plumbing code requirements, price, technolgigpertise and breadth of product
offerings to be the primary competitive factors. Wédieve that new product development and produgineering are also important to succes:
in the water industry and that our position in ithéustry is attributable in part to our abilitydevelop new and innovative products quickly ant
to adapt and enhance existing products. We contmdevelop new and innovative products to enhauwucanarket position and are continuing
to implement manufacturing and design programsdaice costs. We cannot be certain that our effordevelop new products will be
successful or that our customers will accept ow peducts. Although we own certain patents andemaarks that we consider to be of
importance, we do not believe that our businesscantpetitiveness as a whole are dependent on agfosur patents or trademarks or on
patent or trademark protection generally.




Backlog

Backlog was approximately $84.4 millionFabruary 7, 2014 and approximately $84.5 milliofralruary 8, 2013. We do not believe tha
our backlog at any point in time is indicative afdre operating results and we expect our entirentibacklog to be converted to sales in
2014.

Employees

As of December 31, 2013, we employed apgprately 5,900 people worldwide. With the exceptadrour tekmar subsidiary in Canada,
none of our employees in North America or Asia@reered by collective bargaining agreements. Ines&uropean countries, our employees
are subject to traditional national collective lzning agreements. We believe that our employexiosls are good.

Available Information

We maintain a website with the addnessv.wattswater.comThe information contained on our website is motuded as a part of, or
incorporated by reference into, this Annual ReparForm 10-K. Other than an investor's own inteaweess charges, we make available free
of charge through our website our Annual ReporForm 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and aurreports on Form 8-K, and
amendments to these reports, as soon as reas@mnabticable after we have electronically filed suchiterial with, or furnished such material
to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).

Executive Officers and Director

Set forth below in alphabetical order dme mames of our executive officers and directtesiy respective ages and positions with our
Company and a brief summary of their business éxpee for at least the past five years:

Executive Officers Age Position

Dean P. Freeme 50 Chief Executive Officer, President, and Chief FiciahOfficer

Kenneth R. Lepage 43 General Counsel, Executive Vice President of Human
Resources and Secret:

Elie Melhem 50 President, Asia Pacifi

Mario Sanche; 57 President and Group Managing Director, EM

A. Suellen Torregros 51 President, America

Non-Employee Directors

Robert L. Ayers(2)(3 68 Director

Bernard Baert(1)(3 64 Director

Kennett F. Burnes(1)(: 71 Director

Richard J. Cathcart(2)(: 69 Director

W. Craig Kissel(2)(3 63 Director

John K. McGillicuddy(1)(3 70 Chairman of the Board and Direc!

Joseph T. Noona 32 Director

Merilee Raines(1)(3 58 Director

Q) Member of the Audit Committee
(2) Member of the Compensation Committee

3 Member of the Nominating and Corporate Governanma@ittee

Dean P. Freemamwas appointed interim Chief Executive Officer anddtdent of our Company in January 2014. Mr. Freeorainally
joined our Company in October 2012 and was appdiBtecutive Vice President and Chief Financial €ffiin November 2012. Mr. Freem
previously served as Senior Vice President of Fieaand Treasurer of Flowserve Corporation from B&t®009 to October 2011. Also while
at Flowserve, Mr. Freeman served as Vice Presidé@mance and Chief
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Financial Officer of the Flowserve Pump Divisioorin 2006 to October 2009. Flowserve is a leadinfallprovider of fluid motion and
control products and services, producing engineangdindustrial pumps, seals and valves as wellrasge of related flow management
services. Prior to Flowserve, Mr. Freeman servedtasf Financial Officer, Europe for The Stanley l&Corporation. Mr. Freeman also
served in financial executive and management fi@sogressive responsibility with United TechnatxyCorporation and SPX Corporation.

Kenneth R. Lepageas appointed General Counsel and Secretary d@ohngpany in August 2008 and Executive Vice Presidéhtumar
Resources in December 2009. Mr. Lepage originallygid our Company in September 2003 as Assistané@eCounsel and Assistant
Secretary. Prior to joining our Company, he wasragr partner at the law firm of Hale and Dorr L{#w Wilmer Cutler Pickering Hale and
Dorr LLP).

Elie Melhemoined our Company in July 2011 as President, Rsiaific. Mr. Melhem was previously the Managingdaiior of China for
Ariston Thermo Group, a global manufacturer of lmgaand hot water products, from 2008 to July 2@rior to joining Ariston, Mr. Melhem
spent eleven years with ITT Industries in China rehtee held several management positions, incluskinging as President of ITT's Residentia
and Commercial Water Group in China and Presidelfids Water Technology Group in Asia.

Mario Sanchexavas appointed President and Group Managing DireEfMdiEA in June 2013. Mr. Sanchez originally joirmg Company
in January 2012 as Vice President of Plumbing aedtidg, EMEA. Mr. Sanchez previously served as Voesident of Global Manufacturing
for Johnson Controls, Inc. from September 200&twary 2012. Johnson Controls is a global diveifechnology and industrial company
providing products, services and solutions to ofEnenergy and operational efficiencies of buildingad-acid automotive batteries and
advanced batteries for hybrid and electric vehjadesl interior systems for automobiles. BeforeijggnJohnson Controls, Mr. Sanchez served
as Vice President of Global Operations for Tycelnational, Ltd. from December 2006 to August 200&:0 is a global provider of fire
protection and security products and servicesrRidyco, Mr. Sanchez held several global managemesitions with Ingersoll-Rand plc.

A. Suellen Torregrospined our Company in August 2013 as President, haas. Ms. Torregrosa previously served as Presiafen
Milton Roy Company from November 2011 to June 20MiBton Roy Company is a global manufacturer of ttolled volume (metering)
pumps and related equipment. Ms. Torregrosa wasigol President of Milton Roy Company when it wased by United Technologies
Corporation and continued to serve as Presideotigiir its sale to a private equity group in Decen#®dr2. Ms. Torregrosa worked for several
business units of United Technologies Corporatromf1990 until the sale of Milton Roy Company ind@mber 2012, including as Vice
President and General Manager, Americas of Miltog Rompany from 2006 until November 2011, Generahlfjer, Dynamic Controls of
Hamilton Sundstrand Company from 2002 to 2006, iarsgtveral management roles of progressive redpititysfor Falk Corporation from
1990 to 2002. United Technologies Corporationdsévarsified provider of high technology productsiaervices to the building and aerospace
industries.

Robert L. Ayerfias served as a director of our Company since @c@®06. He was Senior Vice President of ITT Indestand Preside
of ITT Industries’ Fluid Technology from OctoberdBuntil September 2005. Mr. Ayers continued t@bwloyed by ITT Industries from
September 2005 until his retirement in Septemb8626uring which time he focused on special prgjéat the company. Mr. Ayers joined
ITT Industries in 1998 as President of ITT Indwestriindustrial Pump Group. Before joining ITT Inttiess, he was President of Sulzer
Industrial USA and Chief Executive Officer of Sul&ingham, a pump manufacturer. Mr. Ayers served diector of T-3 Energy
Services, Inc. from August 2007 to January 2011.




Bernard Baertvas elected as a member of our Board of Directofsuigust 2011. Mr. Baert has served as Senior Fresident and
President, Europe and International of PolyOne @@aton since January 2010. Mr. Baert served ago&¥ite President and General
Manager, Color and Engineered Materialsurope and China for PolyOne Corporation from 2@0Becember 2009 and as Vice President
General Manager, Color and Engineered Materials-efigiand China from 2000 to 2006. From 1995 to $eipée 2000, Mr. Baert was
General Manager, Color—Europe for M.A. Hanna Conypéme predecessor to PolyOne Corporation. PolyCorporation is a worldwide
provider of specialty polymer materials, serviced aolutions. Prior to joining M.A. Hanna, Mr. Baaras General Manager, Europe for He
Corporation and spent 17 years with Owens Cornihgreshe served as a plant manager and held vagrimitions in the areas of cost control
and production.

Kennett F. Burnebecame a director of our Company in February 209Burnes is the retired Chairman, President ah@fExecutive
Officer of Cabot Corporation, a global specialtgnticals company. He was Chairman from 2001 to Ma6®8, President from 1995 to
January 2008 and Chief Executive Officer from 2@®January 2008. Prior to joining Cabot Corporatima987, Mr. Burnes was a partner at
the Boston-based law firm of Choate, Hall & Stewettere he specialized in corporate and busines$danearly 20 years. He is a director of
State Street Corporation, a member of the DanagF&hancer Institute's Board of Trustees and a boamiber of the New England
Conservatory. Mr. Burnes is also Chairman of tharB®f Trustees of the Schepens Eye Researchukestit

Richard J. Cathcarhas served as a director of our Company since @c&@07. He was Vice Chairman and a member of teedBof
Directors of Pentair, Inc. from February 2005 uhid retirement in September 2007. Pentair is ardified manufacturing company consisting
of two operating segments: Water Technologies agahiiical Products. He was appointed President &ief Operating Officer of Pentair's
Water Technologies Group in January 2001 and senvéitat capacity until his appointment as Vice @han in February 2005. He began his
career at Pentair in March 1995 as Executive Viesilent, Corporate Development, where he idedtifiater as a strategic area of growth. In
February 1996, he was named Executive Vice PresatehPresident of Pentair's Water Technologiesi@rBrior to joining Pentair, he held
several management and business development pssitising his 20-year career with Honeywell Intéioraal Inc. He is a director of
Fluidra S.A.

W. Craig Kisselvas elected as a member of our Board of Directofsavember 2011. Mr. Kissel previously was emplopgdrrane Inc.
(formerly known as American Standard Companieg) linom 1980 until his retirement in September 20D8ring his time at Trane, Mr. Kissel
served as President of Trane Commercial Systems2@0D4 to June, 2008, President of WABCO Vehiclat@s Systems from 1998 to 2003,
President of Trane's North American Unitary Produ@toup from 1994 to 1997, Vice President of Marigedf Trane's North American
Unitary Products Group from 1992 to 1994 and heldous other management positions at Trane fron® 188991. Trane is a leading
worldwide supplier of air conditioning and heatisygstems, and WABCO is a leading worldwide suppfesommercial vehicle control
systems. From 2001 to 2008, Mr. Kissel served ar@tan of Trane's Corporate Ethics and Integrityi@i, which was responsible for
developing the company's ethical business standshid¥issel also served in the U.S. Navy from 1993978. Mr. Kissel has served as a
director of Chicago Bridge & Iron Company since M#309. Chicago Bridge & Iron Company engineers @nstructs some of the world's
largest energy infrastructure projects.

John K. McGillicuddyhas served as a director of our Company since 2803vas employed by KPMG LLP, a public accountiingf
from 1965 until his retirement in 2000. He was tdddnto the Partnership at KPMG LLP in June 19Terg he served as Audit Partner, SEC
Reviewing Partner, Partner-in-Charge of ProfessiBnactice, Partner-in-Charge of College Recruiting Partner-in-Charge of Staff
Scheduling. He is a director of Brooks Automatitmt, and Cabot Corporation.

Joseph T. Noonawas elected as a member of our Board of Directoday 2013. Mr. Noonan has served as Chief Exeeuifficer of
Homespun Design, Inc. since November 2013. Homespun




Design is a start-up phase online retailer of Aoarimade furniture and design founded by Mr. NooMm Noonan previously worked as an
independent digital strategy consultant from Noven#012 to November 2013. Mr. Noonan was employe@hyfair LLC from April 2008

to November 2012. During his time at Wayfair, Miodthan served as Senior Director of Wayfair Inteomatl from June 2011 to November
2012, Director of Category Management and Merchangifrom February 2009 to June 2011 and Manag@&/affair's Business-to-Business
Division from April 2008 to February 2009. Wayféran online retailer of home furnishings, décat Bome improvement products. Prior to
joining Wayfair, Mr. Noonan worked as a ventureitajst at Polaris Partners and as an investmemkdraat Cowen & Compan

Merilee Rainedas served as a director of our Company since Bep@011. Ms. Raines served as Chief Financialc@ffof IDEXX
Laboratories, Inc. from October 2003 until herregtient in May 2013. Prior to becoming Chief FinahCfficer, Ms. Raines held several
management positions with IDEXX Laboratories, inlthg Corporate Vice President of Finance, Vice iderg and Treasurer of Finance,
Director of Finance, and Controller. IDEXX Laboraés develops, manufactures and distributes diagnasd information technology-based
products and services for companion animals, loastpoultry, water quality and food safety, andnlam point-of-care diagnostics. Ms. Raines
is a director of Aratana Therapeutics, Inc.

Product Liability, Environmental and Other Litigatin Matters

We are subject to a variety of potentiabliities connected with our business operatiaomduding potential liabilities and expenses
associated with possible product defects or fadlaed compliance with environmental laws. We mainpaoduct liability and other insurance
coverage, which we believe to be generally in at@oce with industry practices. Nonetheless, sushrance coverage may not be adequate t
protect us fully against substantial damage claims.

Contingencies
Trabakoolas et al., v, Watts Water Technologies.,, ket al.,

On December 12, 2013, we reached an agrgemprinciple to settle all claims. The totalteshent amount is $23.0 million, of which
are expected to be responsible for $14 millionraftsurance proceeds of $9 million. The settlenvea subject to review by the Court at a
preliminary approval hearing held on February 1,2 The Court granted preliminary approval on Beby 14, 2014. The settlement is
subject to final court approval after a fairnesarire, currently scheduled for July 16, 2014. Acliogly, there can be no assurance that the
proposed settlement will be approved in its curfert. If the settlement is not approved, the Conypatends to continue to vigorously
contest the allegations in this case.

Environmental Remediatic

We have been named as a potentially refilergarty with respect to a limited number of itlBed contaminated sites. The levels of
contamination vary significantly from site to séte do the related levels of remediation effortszitbBmmental liabilities are recorded based on
the most probable cost, if known, or on the estimamhinimum cost of remediation. Accruals are netdunted to their present value, unles:
amount and timing of expenditures are fixed anidiod) determinable. We accrue estimated environaidiabilities based on assumptions,
which are subject to a number of factors and uaggies. Circumstances that can affect the religiaind precision of these estimates include
identification of additional sites, environmentagulations, level of cleanp required, technologies available, number arahfifal condition o
other contributors to remediation and the timeqmkover which remediation may occur. We recogniz@nges in estimates as new remediatio
requirements are defined or as new information tresoavailable.
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Asbestos Litigatiol

We are defending approximately 44 lawsinitdifferent jurisdictions, alleging injury or déeas a result of exposure to asbestos. The
complaints in these cases typically name a largebau of defendants and do not identify any paréicWatts Water products as a source of

asbestos exposure. To date, we have obtained é&dadrim every case before it has reached trishlise discovery has failed to yield evidence
of substantial exposure to any Watts Water products

Other Litigation
Other lawsuits and proceedings or claimisirey from the ordinary course of operations, @&s® pending or threatened against us.
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Item 1A. RISK FACTORS.

Economic cycles, particularly those involving redeat levels of commercial and residential starts arednhodeling, may have adverse effe
on our revenues and operating results.

We have experienced and expect to contmeperience fluctuations in revenues and opega#sults due to economic and business
cycles. The businesses of most of our customerscpiarly plumbing and heating wholesalers and Bamprovement retailers, are cyclical.
Therefore, the level of our business activity hasrbcyclical, fluctuating with economic cycles. &conomic downturn may also affect the
financial stability of our customers, which coulffieat their ability to pay amounts owed to theinders, including us. We also believe our I
of business activity is influenced by commerciall aesidential starts and renovation and remodelitnich are, in turn, heavily influenced by
interest rates, consumer debt levels, changesposdable income, employment growth and consumdidemte. Credit market conditions may
prevent commercial and residential builders or tars from obtaining the necessary capital toinoetexisting projects or to start new
projects. This may result in the delay or cancielfabf orders from our customers or potential cosgos and may adversely affect our revenue:
and our ability to manage inventory levels, colleestomer receivables and maintain profitabilityrtRer, the Euro Zone has been in recessiot
since 2011 triggered by sovereign debt concernggandral economic malaise. If economic conditionssen in the future or if economic
recovery were to dissipate, our revenues and profitild decrease or trigger additional goodwilllefinite-lived intangible assets, or lotiged
asset impairments and could have a material effeciur financial condition and results of operagion

We face intense competition and, if we are not atdeespond to competition in our markets, our renges may decrease.

Competitive pressures in our markets cauleersely affect our competitive position, leadio@ possible loss of market share or a
decrease in prices, either of which could resutiénreased revenues and profits. We encounteismtsampetition in all areas of our business.
Additionally, we believe our customers are attemgptio reduce the number of vendors from which {gyghase in order to reduce the size an
diversity of their inventories and their transaotosts. To remain competitive, we will need toeistvcontinually in manufacturing, product
development, marketing, customer service and stigpakr our distribution networks. We may not haviéfigent resources to continue to make
such investments and we may be unable to maintaisa@npetitive position. In addition, we anticip#t@t we may have to reduce the prices c
some of our products to stay competitive, potelyti@sulting in a reduction in the profit margirr fand inventory valuation of, these products.
Some of our competitors are based in foreign caamand have cost structures and prices in foraigrencies. Accordingly, currency
fluctuations could cause our U.S. dollar costedipots to be less competitive than our competifEiucts which are priced in other
currencies.

Changes in the costs of raw materials could redwee profit margins. Reductions or interruptions ithe supply of components or finished
goods from international sources could adverselyeat our ability to meet our customer delivery contments.

We require substantial amounts of raw niaerincluding bronze, brass, cast iron, steel@adtic, and substantially all of the raw
materials we require are purchased from outsidecesuThe costs of raw materials may be subjecihamge due to, among other things,
interruptions in production by suppliers and chanigeexchange rates and worldwide price and dertensds. We typically do not enter into
long-term supply agreements. Our inability to obtsipplies of raw materials for our products abfable costs could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition or essaf operations by decreasing our profit margiftsee commodity markets have experienced
tremendous volatility over the past several yegaasticularly copper. Should commodity costs inceesisbstantially, we may not be able to
recover such costs, through selling price incretsesir customers or other product cost reductiséch would have a negative effect on our
financial results. If commodity costs decline, waynexperience pressure from customers to reducsetlirg prices.
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Additionally, we continue to purchase increaseelgewf components and finished goods from inteomati sources. In limited cases, these
components or finished goods are single-sourced .aiilability of components and finished goodsrfiiaternational sources could be
adversely impacted by, among other things, intéioap in production by suppliers, suppliers' alkbmas to other purchasers and new laws or
regulations.

Government regulations could limit or delay our dity to market or sell our products and could affeaw material sourcing and/or increas
our costs.

Effective January 4, 2014, tReduction of Lead in Drinking Water Aceduced the permissible weighted average leatknbim faucets,
fittings and valves used in potable water applaaifrom 8% to 0.25% throughout the United Stafés. new law is consistent with laws
previously in effect in California, Maryland, Loiasa and Vermont. Prior to 2013, we had introdueed free products for sale in California,
Maryland, Louisiana and Vermont, and we offer gdaselection of lead free compliant valves andhfig. Complying with these new
requirements throughout the United States poseméisant challenge for us. The nationwide reqomients have caused our material costs to
increase as suppliers of alternative lead free Isiata currently limited and lead free alloy suloéis are more expensive than the original
leaded alloys. We may not succeed in passing thraildghese cost increases to our customers. We &g may continue to experience
technical challenges in our new lead free manufaxjwoperations to produce more lead free produictaddition, we could have difficulty
providing sufficient quantities of our lead freengpliant products to meet nationwide demand. Thegairements could have a material effect
on our financial condition and results of operation

Section 1502 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Stieeform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (thedBrhnk Act) requires the SEC to
establish new disclosure and reporting requiremegarding specified minerals originating in thenizeratic Republic of the Congo or an
adjoining country that are necessary to the funetity or production of products manufactured bynpanies required to file reports with the
SEC. The final rules implementing these requires\ea released in 2012 by the SEC, could affectsapat competitive prices and
availability in sufficient quantities of mineralsed in the manufacture of our products. In addjtimtause our supply chain is complex, we
may face commercial challenges if we are unabletdy sufficiently the origins for all metals us@dour products through the due diligence
procedures that we implement and otherwise mayrbeabliged to disclose publicly those efforts wighgard to conflict minerals. Moreover,
we may encounter challenges to satisfy those custmho require that all of the components of aodpcts be certified as conflict free,
which could place us at a competitive disadvanttge are unable to do so.

Implementation of our acquisition strategy may nbé successful, which could affect our ability todrease our revenues or our profitabilit

One of our strategies is to increase owemaes and profitability and expand our businessuth acquisitions that will provide us with
complementary products and increase market shawifeexisting product lines. We cannot be certhat we will be able to identify, acquire
or profitably manage additional companies or susitdly integrate such additional companies withsuibstantial costs, delays or other
problems. Also, companies acquired recently artiérfuture may not achieve revenues, profitabditgash flows that justify our investmen
them. We have faced increasing competition for &ipn candidates, which has resulted in signifidacreases in the purchase prices of
many acquisition candidates. This competition, gaedresulting purchase price increases, may limeittumber of acquisition opportunities
available to us, possibly leading to a decreagkdrrate of growth of our revenues and profitahilib addition, acquisitions may involve a
number of risks, including, but not limited to:

. inadequate internal controls over financial mipg and our ability to bring such controls intenepliance with the requirements
of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 timely manner;
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. adverse short-term effects on our reported opeyagsults;

. diversion of management's attention;

. investigations of, or challenges to, acquisitiopsbmpetition authorities;

. loss of key personnel at acquired companies;

. unanticipated management or operational problemtegal liabilities; and

. potential goodwill, indefinite-lived intangibkessets, or long-lived asset impairment charges.

We are subject to risks related to product defeethjch could result in product recalls and could kject us to warranty claims in excess of
our warranty provisions or which are greater thamtcipated due to the unenforceability of liabilitymitations.

We maintain strict quality controls and gedures, including the testing of raw materials saéty testing of selected finished products.
However, we cannot be certain that our testing milieal latent defects in our products or the neefrom which they are made, which may
not become apparent until after the products haemIsold into the market. We also cannot be cetttainour suppliers will always eliminate
latent defects in products we purchase from thecsofdingly, there is a risk that product defecth @dcur, which could require a product
recall. Product recalls can be expensive to impigraad, if a product recall occurs during the pitbuwvarranty period, we may be required to
replace the defective product. In addition, a pobdacall may damage our relationship with our costrs and we may lose market share with
our customers. Our insurance policies may not ctheecosts of a product recall.

Our standard warranties contain limits amdges and exclusions of liability for consequéni@ganages and for misuse, improper
installation, alteration, accident or mishandlingile in the possession of someone other than usm@ieincur additional operating expenses fif
our warranty provision does not reflect the actust of resolving issues related to defects inppaducts. If these additional expenses are
significant, it could adversely affect our busindssancial condition and results of operations.

We face risks from product liability and other lawis, which may adversely affect our business.

We have been and expect to continue tabgest to various product liability claims or otHawsuits, including, among others, that our
products include inadequate or improper instructifion use or installation, or inadequate warningscerning the effects of the failure of our
products. If we do not have adequate insurancemtractual indemnification, damages from thesentdaivould have to be paid from our as:
and could have a material adverse effect on owltsesf operations, liquidity and financial conditi. Like other manufacturers and distributors
of products designed to control and regulate flaidd gases, we face an inherent risk of exposypeottuct liability claims and other lawsuits
in the event that the use of our products resnltsersonal injury, property damage or businessrinpéion to our customers. We cannot be
certain that our products will be completely freanfi defect. In addition, in certain cases, we o#lhthird-party manufacturers for our products
or components of our products. We cannot be cetit@inour insurance coverage will continue to bailable to us at a reasonable cost, or, if
available, will be adequate to cover any such liiéds. For more information, see "ltem 1. Busines¥oduct Liability, Environmental and
Other Litigation Matters."
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Economic and other risks associated with internatad sales and operations could adversely affect business and future operating resul

Since we sell and manufacture our prodwatddwide, our business is subject to risks assediavith doing business internationally. Our
business and future operating results could be éditmy a variety of factors, including:

. unexpected geo-political events in foreign coustirewhich we operate, which could adversely affeahufacturing and our
ability to fulfill customer orders;

. our inability to comply with anti-corruption lsaand regulations of the U.S. government and vatrioternational jurisdictions,
such as the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices ActthadUnited Kingdom's Bribery Act of 2010;

. trade protection measures and import or expoméizey requirements, which could increase our aofstiing business
internationally;

. potentially negative consequences from changesxitetvs, which could have an adverse impact orpoofits;

. difficulty in staffing and managing widespread ag@rns, which could reduce our productivity;

. costs of compliance with differing labor regulasoespecially in connection with restructuring ouerseas operations;

. laws of some foreign countries, which may not prbtair intellectual property rights to the sameeexias the laws of the United
States;

. unexpected changes in regulatory requiremertshimay be costly and require time to implement] a

. foreign exchange rate fluctuations, which caalkb materially affect our reported results. A fmortof our sales and certain

portions of our costs, assets and liabilities ameothinated in currencies other than U.S. dollard,the percentage of our
revenues denominated in a particular currency nedynatch the percentage of our expenses denomiimatedt currency.
Approximately 46.5% of our sales during the yeateshDecember 31, 2013 were from sales outsideedftB. compared to
47.6% for the year ended December 31, 2012. Weotqumadict whether currencies such as the Euroadian dollar or Chine:
yuan will appreciate or depreciate against the ddBar in future periods or whether future foreigxchange rate fluctuations
will have a positive or negative impact on our néed results.

Our ability to achieve savings through our restrugtng plans may be adversely affected by local riegions or factors beyond the control «
management.

We have implemented a number of restruatupians, which include steps that we believe apessary to reduce operating costs and
increase efficiencies throughout our manufacturgades and distribution footprint. Factors beydmel¢ontrol of management may affect the
timing and therefore affect when the savings wélldzhieved under the plans. Further, if we aresnotessful in completing the restructuring
projects in the time frames contemplated or if &ddal issues arise during the projects that addscor disrupt customer service, then our
operating results could be negatively affected.

Future operating results could be negatively affedtby the resolution of various uncertain tax pasits and by potential changes to tax
incentives.

In the ordinary course of our businessietae many transactions and calculations wheraltimeate tax determination is uncertain.
Significant judgment is required in determining eworldwide provision for income taxes. We periodlicassess our exposures related to our
worldwide provision for income taxes and believattive have appropriately accrued taxes for conticigs. Any reduction of
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these contingent liabilities or additional assesgm@uld increase or decrease income, respectiirethe period such determination was m:
Our income tax filings are regularly under auditthy authorities and the final determination of &axlits could be materially different than t
which is reflected in historical income tax proweiss and accruals. As issues arise during tax awdi@djust our tax accrual accordingly.
Additionally, we benefit from certain tax incentiveffered by various jurisdictions. If we are ureatdd meet the requirements of such
incentives, our inability to use these benefitslddiave a material negative effect on future eaysin

We are currently a decentralized company, which ggats certain risks.

We are currently a decentralized comparhiciwvsometimes places significant control and decisnaking powers in the hands of local
management. This presents various risks such asskhef being slower to identify or react to prebis affecting a key business. Additionally,
we are implementing in a phased approach a compéhg/initiative to selectively standardize and wgmbg our enterprise resource planning
(ERP) systems. This initiative could be more chajlag and costly to implement because divergergdggystems currently exist. Further, if
the ERP updates are not successful, we could suhstantial business interruption, including outfitglto perform routine business
transactions, which could have a material adveffeeteon our financial results.

Our business and financial performance may be adsaly affected by information technology and othardiness disruptions.

Our business may be impacted by disruptimtuding information technology attacks or faés, threats to physical security, as well as
damaging weather or other acts of nature, pandemniother public health crises. Cybersecurity &dam particular, are evolving and include,
but are not limited to, malicious software, attesnjot gain unauthorized access to data, and oteetrehic security breaches that could lead to
disruptions in systems, unauthorized release diidential or otherwise protected information andraption of data. We have experienced
cybersecurity attacks and may continue to expeei¢hem going forward, potentially with more freqagnGiven the unpredictability of the
timing, nature and scope of such disruptions, weédcpotentially be subject to production downtimeserational delays, other detrimental
impacts on our operations or ability to providedguats to our customers, the compromising of confidéor otherwise protected information,
misappropriation, destruction or corruption of datcurity breaches, other manipulation or impraser of our systems or networks, financial
losses from remedial actions, loss of busines®targial liability, and/or damage to our reputafiany of which could have a material adverse
effect on our competitive position, results of @iems, cash flows or financial condition.

The requirements to evaluate goodwill, indefiniterd¢d intangible assets and long-lived assets fopaimment may result in a write-off of all
or a portion of our recorded amounts, which woulggatively affect our operating results and finantieondition.

As of December 31, 2013, our balance sihe&tded goodwill, indefinite-lived intangible asseamortizable intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment of $514.8 million1 ®million, $199.0 million, and $219.9 million,seectively. In lieu of amortization, we are
required to perform an annual impairment revievwaath goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assen performing our annual reviews in
2013, 2012 and 2011, we recognized non-cash prek@ges of approximately $0.7 million, $0.4 mitliand $1.4 million, respectively, as
impairments of the indefinite-lived intangible assén 2013, 2012 and 2011, we recognized pre-teixaash goodwill impairment charges of
$0.3 million, $1.0 million and $1.2 million, resgaely, related to our Blue Ridge Atlantic Enteg®s, Inc. (BRAE) reporting unit within our
Americas segment. We are also required to perforimaairment review of our long-lived assets ifizators of impairment exist. In 2013 and
2012, we recognized a pre-tax non-cash charge.8fiilllion and $1.6 million, respectively, to writlwn long-term assets. In 2011, we
recognized pre-tax non-cash long-lived asset impaxit charges of $14.8 million related to our Whitilation GmbH (Austroflex) operations
within our EMEA
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segment. We completed the sale of Austroflex onustd, 2013, and Austroflex's results of operatioase been presented as discontinued
operations for all periods presented. There camob@ssurances that future goodwill, indefinite-divetangible assets or other long-lived asset
impairments will not occur. We perform our annuettfor indications of goodwill and indefinite-lidéntangible assets impairment in the
fourth quarter of our fiscal year or sooner if icatiors of impairment exist.

The loss or financial instability of major customsrcould have an adverse effect on our results oéigtions.

In 2013, our top ten customers accounteapproximately 22% of our total net sales withame customer accounting for more than 10%
of our total net sales. Our customers generallynatebligated to purchase any minimum volume ofipicts from us and are able to terminate
their relationships with us at any time. In additioncreases in the prices of our products cowdltén a reduction in orders from our
customers. A significant reduction in orders framgchange in terms of contracts with, any signiftaaustomers could have a material adverse
effect on our future results of operations. Funiere, some of our major customers are facing fiizducballenges due to market declines and
heavy debt levels; should these challenges beconte,asur results could be materially adverselg@éd due to reduced orders and/or
payment delays or defaults.

Certain indebtedness may limit our ability to paividiends, incur additional debt and make acquisiti®and other investments.

Our revolving credit facility and other g@nindebtedness contain operational and finareoaknants that restrict our ability to make
distributions to stockholders, incur additional tlabd make acquisitions and other investments snlessatisfy certain financial tests and
comply with various financial ratios. If we do mogintain compliance with these covenants, our tweslcould declare a default under our
revolving credit facility or senior notes and ondébtedness could be declared immediately due ayabfe. Our ability to comply with the
provisions of our indebtedness may be affecteddaynges in economic or business conditions beyondantrol. Further, one of our strategies
is to increase our revenues and profitability axgbed our business through acquisitions. We mayiregapital in excess of our available ¢
and the unused portion of our revolving creditifgcto make large acquisitions, which we would geaily obtain from access to the credit
markets. There can be no assurance that if a tageisition is identified that we would have acdessufficient capital to complete such
acquisition. Should we require additional debtficiag above our existing credit limit, we cannotassured such financing would be available
to us or available to us on reasonable econonmaster

One of our stockholders can exercise substantidluence over our Company.

Our Class B common stock entitles its hdde ten votes for each share and our Class A ammstock entitles its holders to one vote pel
share. As of January 31, 2014, Timothy P. Horneeheially owned approximately 18.4% of our outstamgdshares of Class A common stock
(assuming conversion of all shares of Class B comstack beneficially owned by Mr. Horne into Cl#ssommon stock) and approximately
99.2% of our outstanding shares of Class B comntmekswhich represents approximately 68.8% of ttaltoutstanding voting power. As
long as Mr. Horne controls shares representingagtla majority of the total voting power of outstanding stock, Mr. Horne will be able to
unilaterally determine the outcome of most stoctholotes, and other stockholders will not be ablaffect the outcome of any such votes.

Conversion and sale of a significant number of skearof our Class B common stock could adversely etffae market price of our Class A
common stock.

As of January 31, 2014, there were outstend8,734,210 shares of our Class A common stadk6s489,290 shares of our Class B
common stock. Shares of our Class B common stogkbmaonverted into Class A common stock at ang tim a one for one basis. Under
terms of a registration rights agreement with respeoutstanding shares of our Class B commorkstbe
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holders of our Class B common stock have righth waspect to the registration of the underlyings€lA common stock. Under these
registration rights, the holders of Class B commatmtk may require, on up to two occasions thatewéster their shares for public resale. If we
are eligible to use Form S-3 or a similar shortfaegistration statement, the holders of ClassfBroon stock may require that we register
their shares for public resale up to two timesywar. If we elect to register any shares of Clag®#imon stock for any public offering, the
holders of Class B common stock are entitled ttuohe shares of Class A common stock into which sinares of Class B common stock may
be converted in such registration. However, we negiyice the number of shares proposed to be regfisiteview of market conditions. We v
pay all expenses in connection with any registratadher than underwriting discounts and commissitfrall of the available registered shares
are sold into the public market the trading pritew Class A common stock could decline.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None.
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Item 2. PROPERTIES.

As of December 31, 2013, we maintained f¥icfpal manufacturing, warehouse and distributtenters worldwide, including our
corporate headquarters located in North Andovesddehusetts. Additionally, we maintain numerousssaffices and other smaller
manufacturing facilities and warehouses. The ppialcproperties in each of our three geographic segsnand their location, principal use and
ownership status are set forth below:

Americas:
Location Principal Use Owned/Leasec
North Andover, MA Corporate Headquarte Owned
Burlington, ON, Canad Distribution Cente Owned
Chesnee, S! Manufacturing Owned
Export, PA Manufacturing Owned
Franklin, NH Manufacturing/Distributior Owned
Kansas City, K¢ Manufacturing Owned
St. Pauls, N(C Manufacturing Owned
San Antonio, TX Warehouse/Distributio Owned
Spindale, NC Distribution Cente Owned
Kansas City, MC Manufacturing/Distributior Leasec
Peoria, AZ Manufacturing/Distributior Leasec
Reno, NV Distribution Cente Leasec
Springfield, MO Manufacturing/Distributior Leasec
Vernon, BC, Canad Manufacturing/Distributior Leasec
Woodland, CA Manufacturing Leasec

Europe, Middle East and Africa:
Location Principal Use Owned/Leasec
Eerbeek, Netherlanc EMEA Headquarters/Manufacturir Owned
Biassono, Italy Manufacturing/Distributior Owned
Hautvillers, Franci Manufacturing Owned
Landau, German Manufacturing/Distributior Owned
Mery, France Manufacturing Owned
Plovdiv, Bulgaria Manufacturing Owned
Vildbjerg, Denmark Manufacturing/Distributior Owned
Virey-le-Grand, Franc Manufacturing/Distributior Owned
Gardolo, Italy Manufacturing Leasec
Monastir, Tunisie Manufacturing Leasec
Rosieres, Franc Manufacturing/Distributior Leasec
Sorgues, Franc Distribution Cente Leasec

Asia Pacific:
Location Principal Use Owned/Leasec
Shanghai, Chin Asia Pacific Headquarte Leasec
Ningbo, Beilun District, Chin Distribution Cente Leasec
Ningbo, Beilun, Chin; Manufacturing Owned
Taizhou, Yuhuan, Chin Manufacturing Owned

19




Certain of our facilities are subject tortgages and collateral assignments under loan imgms with long-term lenders. In general, we
believe that our properties, including machineop|$ and equipment, are in good condition, wellnt@hed and adequate and suitable for thei
intended uses.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We are from time to time involved in variolegal and administrative proceedings. See ItetBusiness—Product Liability,
Environmental and Other Litigation Matters," andt®&l@4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stat&s) both of which are incorporated
herein by reference.

ltem 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not applicable.
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PART I

tem5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STORHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES
OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

The following table sets forth the high dow sales prices of our Class A common stock @eNbw York Stock Exchange during 2013
and 2012 and cash dividends paid per share.

2013 2012

High Low Dividend High Low Dividend
First Quartel $ 50.0¢ $ 4265 $ 0.11 $ 423t $ 3497 $ 0.11
Second Quarte 48.3: 43.1: 0.1< 41.5¢ 31.61 0.11
Third Quartel 58.1¢ 45.7: 0.1z 40.2¢ 30.8¢ 0.11
Fourth Quarte 62.6¢ 52.3¢ 0.1z 43.3¢ 36.4¢ 0.11

There is no established public trading reaf&r our Class B common stock, which is held nmbers of the Horne family. The principal
holders of such stock are subject to restrictiangransfer with respect to their shares. Each shiaoer Class B common stock (10 votes per
share) is convertible into one share of Class Aroomstock (1 vote per share).

On February 18, 2014, we declared a gquprdéridend of thirteen cents ($0.13) per shareeaoh outstanding share of Class A common
stock and Class B common stock.

Aggregate common stock dividend paymenf0iti3 were $17.7 million, which consisted of $1diflion and $3.3 million for Class A
shares and Class B shares, respectively. Aggregateon stock dividend payments in 2012 were $16lliom which consisted of
$13.0 million and $3.0 million for Class A sharesl&Class B shares, respectively. While we presémtiynd to continue to pay comparable
cash dividends, the payment of future cash dividetepends upon the Board of Directors' assessrhent earnings, financial condition,
capital requirements and other factors.

The number of record holders of our ClassoAmon stock as of January 31, 2014 was 199. Tihebar of record holders of our Class B
common stock as of January 31, 2014 was 8.

We satisfy the minimum withholding tax @altion due upon the vesting of shares of restristedk and the conversion of restricted stocl
units into shares of Class A common stock by autmaléy withholding from the shares being issuetuanber of shares with an aggregate fair
market value on the date of such vesting or comwerfiat would satisfy the withholding amount due.

The following table includes informationtivrespect to shares of our Class A common stotkhwid to satisfy withholding tax
obligations during the quarter ended December 8132

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securitie

(d) Maximum Number (or

(a) Total (c) Total Number of Approximate Dollar
Number of Shares (or Units) Value) of Shares (or
Shares (or (b) Average Purchased as Part of Units) that May Yet Be
Units) Price Paid per Publicly Announced Purchased Under the
Period Purchased Share (or Unit) Plans or Programs Plans or Programs
September 30, 2013 -
October 27, 201 — — — —
October 28, 2013 -
November 24, 201 — — — —
November 25, 201-
December 31, 201 1,38: $ 58.1¢ — —
Total 1,38: $ 58.1¢ — —
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The following table includes informationtivrespect to repurchases of our Class A commark storing the three-month period ended
December 31, 2013 under our stock repurchase progra

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securitie
(d) Maximum Number (or

(a) Total (c) Total Number of Approximate Dollar
Number of (b) Average Shares (or Units) Value) of Shares (or
Shares (or Price Paid Purchased as Part of Units) that May Yet Be
Units) per Share Publicly Announced Purchased Under the
Period Purchased(1) (or Unit) Plans or Programs Plans or Programs
September 30,
2013 -
October 27, 201 17,63, $ 55.2 17,63 $ 69,036,48
October 28, 2013 -
November 24,
2013 18,44f 3 58.1¢ 18,44f 3 67,963,82
November 25
2013 -
December 31,
2013 16,05( $ 59.3: 16,05( $ 67,011,51
Total 52,12¢ $ 57.5: 52,12¢ $ 67,011,51

(1) On April 30, 2013, the Board of Directors authodzestock repurchase program of up to $90 millibthe Company's
Class A common stock to be purchased from timere bn the open market or in privately negotiatadgactions. The
timing and number of any shares repurchased witldiermined by the Company's management based ewatuation ¢
market conditions. During the quarter ended DecerBbe2013, we repurchased approximately $3.0 onilof common
stock.
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Performance Grapt

Set forth below is a line graph comparing tumulative total shareholder return on our Chassmmon stock for the last five years with
the cumulative return of companies on the Stané&aPdor's 500 Stock Index and the Russell 2000 Indéx chose the Russell 2000 Index
because it represents companies with a marketatizption similar to that of Watts Water. The grggsumes that the value of the investment
in our Class A common stock and each index was $t@&cember 31, 2008 and that all dividends weirevested.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Watts Water Technologies, Inc., the S&P 50idex
and the Russell 2000 Index

$300 -

$250 -

5200 4

$150 4

5100

$50

su 1 Il Il
12/08 12/09 1210 1211 1212 1213

—B— Watts Water Technologies, Inc. — A& —S&P500 ==@--- Russell 2000

* $100 invested on 12/31/08 in stock or index, inigdeinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year endireg&nber 31.

Cumulative Total Return

12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11 12/31/12 12/31/13

Watts Water Technologies, i 100.0C 126.1¢ 151.37 143.4: 182.3¢t 265.0¢
S & P 500 100.0C 126.4¢ 1455. 148.5¢ 172.37 228.1¢
Russell 200( 100.0C 127.17 161.3: 154.5¢ 179.8¢ 249.6¢

The above Performance Graph and related informasioall not be deemed "soliciting material" or to'thiéed" with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, nor shall such informatiomberporated by reference into any future filingden the Securities Act of 1933
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amenaedptto the extent that we specifically incorperiatoy reference into such filing.
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ltem 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The selected financial data set forth bedtvould be read in conjunction with our consoliddteancial statements, related Notes thereto
and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fird@ondition and Results of Operations" includeddn.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

(Amounts in millions, except per share and casiddivd information)

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
12/31/13(1)(6 12/31/12(2)(6 12/31/11(3)(6 12/31/10(4)(6’ 12/31/09(5)(6

Statement of
operations data:

Net sales $ 1,473 $ 1,427.c $ 1,407.c $ 1,264.C $ 1,225.¢
Net income fron
continuing operatior 60.¢ 70.4 77.2 64.1 41.C

Loss from discontinue:
operations, net of

taxes (2.9 (2.0) (10.¢) (5.9 (23.¢)
Net income 58.¢ 68.4 66.4 58.¢ 17.¢
DILUTED EPS
Income (loss) per shat
Continuing
operations 1.71 1.9 2.0¢ 1.71 1.1C
Discontinued
operations (0.09) (0.0%) (0.2¢) (0.19 (0.63)
NET INCOME 1.6¢ 1.9C 1.7¢ 1.57 0.47
Cash dividends declar
per common shal $ 0.5C $ 044 $ 044 % 044 $ 0.4
Balance sheet data (a
year end):
Total asset $ 1,740.: $ 1,709.C $ 1,694.C $ 1,646.. $ 1,599.:
Long-term debt, net of
current portior 305.t 307.t 397.¢ 378.( 304.(

Q) For the year ended December 31, 2013, net incoome éontinuing operations includes the following ped-tax costs:
legal costs of $15.3 million, restructuring chargé$8.7 million, goodwill and other long-lived &smpairment of
$2.3 million (of which $1.1 million is recorded @ost of goods sold), EMEA transformation deploymmosts of
$1.2 million, earn-out adjustments of $0.9 milli@eceleration of executive share based compensatigense of
$0.9 million and an adjustment to the disposahefliusiness related to the sale of Tianjin Watls&/&ompany Ltd.
(TWVC) of $0.6 million. The net after-tax cost tiese items was $18.3 million.

(2) For the year ended December 31, 2012, net incoome éontinuing operations includes the following ped-tax costs:
restructuring charges of $5.2 million, goodwill astther long-lived asset impairment of $3.4 millioret legal and
customs costs of $2.5 million, an adjustment toghi@ on sale of TWVC of $1.6 million, retentionaches related to our
former Chief Financial Officer of $1.6 million, ardcharge of $0.4 million for costs related to 2042 acquisition of
tekmar, offset by a pre-tax gain for an earn-ojuistchent of $1.0 million. Additionally, net inconircludes tax benefits
totaling $0.7 million, primarily related to a taaw change in Italy. The net after-tax cost of themms was $8.1 million.

3) For the year ended December 31, 2011, nehiedoom continuing operations includes the follogvimet pre-tax costs:
restructuring charges of $10.0 million, goodwildasther long-lived asset impairment charges of $dlion, pension
curtailment charges of $1.5 million, separationtsaslated to our former Chief Executive Officer$&.3 million, and
costs related to our acquisition of Danfoss SocdaSS(Socla) in France of $5.8 million offset byegax gains of
$1.2 million for an earn-out adjustment, $7.7 roilirelated to the sale of TWVC in China and $1.lioni from legal
settlements. Additionally, net income includes»atianefit of $4.2 million relating to the sale oVVC offset by a
$1.1 million tax charge in EMEA related to our Feanrestructuring. The net aftex cost of these items was $5.7 milli
Included in loss fron
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(4)

®)

(6)

discontinued operations is goodwill and other Idimgel asset impairment charges of $14.8 milliomied to Austroflex,
see (6).

For the year ended December 31, 2010, net incoome éontinuing operations includes the following pet-tax costs:
restructuring charges of $14.1 million, intangilstgpairment charges of $1.4 million, and costs ezldb acquisitions and
other items of $7.1 million offset by ptax gains of $4.5 million primarily for product hidity and workers compensatic
accrual adjustments. Additionally, net income inlgs a tax benefit of $4.3 million related to thiease of a valuation
allowance in EMEA offset by a tax charge of $1.9liom relating to the repatriation of earnings rgnzed upon our
decision to dispose of a China subsidiary. Theaftet-tax cost of these items was $10.3 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, netrirdacludes the following net pre-tax costs: restrting charges of
$18.9 million and intangible impairment charge$8f3 million, offset by pre-tax gains on the sdi@ianjin Tanggu
Watts Valve Co. Ltd. (TWT) in China of $1.1 millipfavorable product liability and workers compermaaccrual
adjustments of $4.9 million and legal settlemerit$1lo5 million. Additionally, net income includegax charge of

$3.9 million relating to previously realized taxnedits, which were expected to be recaptured asualtrof our decision t
restructure our operations in China. The net afigreost of these items was $16.7 million.

In August 2013, we disposed of the stock of AustsofResults from operations and a loss on dispargatecorded in
discontinued operations for 2013, 2012, 2011 arid2h December 2012, we disposed of the stockarh&tic
Corporation. Results from operations and a losgigposal are recorded in discontinued operation20@2 and 2011. In
January 2010, we disposed of our investment in CR@&&ults from operation and estimated loss on dedpare included
net of tax for CWV in discontinued operations f&12 and 2009. In May 2009, the Company liquidated EAM
Precision Pipework, Ltd. (TEAM) business. Resuitsif operation and loss on disposal are includeadfietx from the
deconsolidation of TEAM in discontinued operatidois2011, 2010 and 2009. In September 1996, westideour
Municipal Water Group of businesses, which inclutheshry Pratt, James Jones Company and Edward Bamnbler
Company Ltd. Costs and expenses related to thedypahiwater Group, for 2011, 2010 and 2009 relategal and
settlement costs associated with the James Jotigatian and other miscellaneous costs. Discontrygerating loss for
2011 and 2010 include an estimated settlementuesajustment in connection with the FCPA invesiagaat CWV (se
Note 3) and in 2010 and 2009, includes legal castsciated with the FCPA investigati
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL GONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

We are a leading supplier of products & in the water quality, water safety, water flamnirol and water conservation markets in both
the Americas and EMEA with a growing presence iraAZacific. For over 139 years, we have designedhaanufactured products that
promote the comfort and safety of people and ttadityuand conservation of water used in commer&ral residential applications. We earn
revenue and income almost exclusively from the shtmur products. Our principal product lines iragu

. Residential & commercial flow control productsaeiudes products typically sold into plumbing armd Wwater applications such
as backflow preventers, water pressure regulaimgperature and pressure relief valves, and theatiosnixing valves.

. HVAC & gas products—includes hydronic and electdating systems for under-floor radiant applicagjdrydronic pump
groups for boiler manufacturers and alternativegyneontrol packages, and flexible stainless sterhectors for natural and
liquid propane gas in commercial food service asidential applications. HVAC is an acronym for tive ventilation and air
conditioning.

. Drains & water re-use products—includes drainagelucts and engineered rain water harvestingisakifor commercial,
industrial, marine and residential applications.

. Water quality products—includes point-of-use anahpof-entry water filtration, conditioning and $egrevention systems for
both commercial and residential applications.

Our business is reported in three geogragdgments: Americas, EMEA and Asia Pacific. Wérithiste our products through three
primary distribution channels: wholesale, do-it-ggmif (DIY) and original equipment manufacturer$(@s).

We believe that the factors relating to future growth include our ability to continue t@ke selective acquisitions, both in our core
markets as well as in new complementary markegsilagory requirements relating to the quality andservation of water and the safe use of
water; increased demand for clean water; contirunddrcement of plumbing and building codes; anéathy economic environment. We
have completed 36 acquisitions since 1999. Ourisitipn strategy focuses on businesses that matwréapreferred brand name products that
address our themes of water quality, water coniervavater safety and water flow control and rethtomplementary markets. We target
businesses that will provide us with one or moréheffollowing: an entry into new markets, an irse in shelf space with existing customers,
a new or improved technology or an expansion obtieadth of our water quality, water conservatiwater safety and water flow control
products for the commercial, industrial and resi@dmarkets.

Products representing a majority of ouesare subject to regulatory standards and codecemfient, which typically require that these
products meet stringent performance criteria. Tlogretvith our commissioned manufacturers' repretigatg we have consistently advocated
for the development and enforcement of such plumbodes. We are focused on maintaining stringealitgyicontrol and testing procedures at
each of our manufacturing facilities in order tomatacture products in compliance with code requéets and take advantage of the resulting
demand for compliant products. We believe thatpttoeluct development, product testing capability emvestment in plant and equipment
needed to manufacture products in compliance vatteaequirements, represent a competitive advarfitages.

Our performance in 2013 varied, driven Hfedent economic and business dynamics within eagiion in which we participate. In the
Americas, we saw sequential growth during 201headLS. residential new construction marketplactinoed to recover and the repair and
replace end market remained strong. Although werepced minimal growth in the new commercial cargton market,
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there have been recent positive macroeconomic #igiis recovery is forthcoming. In EMEA, a weak fiauropean economy negatively
impacted our sales. Certain parts of Europe, sedtaly France and Germany, remained affected éyg#neral economic downturn. However,
we were able to partially mitigate the effect of gales volume reduction with productivity initiegs and cost reduction initiatives. Our EMEA
segment continued to expand its sales into Eagerope during the year. In Asia Pacific, we haddsgiowth as we expanded our sales and
marketing efforts.

Overall, sales grew organically by 2.1%aspared to 2012. Organic sales growth excludesrpacts of acquisitions, divestitures and
foreign exchange from year-over-year comparisons bélieve this provides investors with a more c@tgpunderstanding of underlying sales
trends by providing sales growth on a consistesish&ompared to 2012, organic sales in Americdsfaia Pacific grew by 5.5% and 20.5%,
respectively, but were offset by a reduction in EM&ganic sales of 3.6%.

Operationally, in the U.S. we continued fmgus around our transition to lead free produrctla 2013 and 2012, we committed an
aggregate of approximately $18.3 million in capsiaénding for a new foundry and machinery in th®.tb meet expected lead free deman
our products sold in the U.S. Construction of teevfioundry was completed during the second quaftgd13. We incurred $5.8 million in
transition costs in 2013 relating to inefficiencegerienced as part of the lead free conversiopegt, including furnace repairs, excess scrap
and consulting costs related to the new foundrg ififpact of commaodity costs during 2013 was minjreapecially with our most important
raw material, copper. We saw copper spot pricésarfirst quarter trending higher, with prices dgiag to a consistent level through the
remainder of the year. Pricing, in turn, was fastgble, although we experienced some pricing pressn certain geographies and in certain
product lines in the Americas, especially in thé&/Bhannel. In EMEA, we were able to selectivelyresse pricing for certain products.
However, we believe the economic uncertainty indpermay continue affecting how we and our compmstitme pricing in end markets.

We continually review our business and inpent restructuring plans as needed. The restmgtprogram for EMEA that we announced
in July 2013 is proceeding in accordance with ogoeetations. Please see Note 4 of the Notes todlidated Financial Statements for a more
detailed explanation of our restructuring actiatie

In the fourth quarter of 2013, we begamaymm that we refer to as the European transfaomathis program is designed to refocus our
European operations from being country specifia fan European business unit operating strategyetthis initiative, we intend to
(1) develop better sales capabilities through imedoproduct management and enhanced product cetissyefforts, (2) drive more efficient
European sourcing and logistics, and (3) enhancéoous on emerging market opportunities. We ptaalign our legal and tax structure in
accordance with our business structure and takeragge of favorable tax rates where possible. Vpe@xhis project to be ongoing through
2016. We anticipate total non-recurring externgdlodgment costs of $12.2 million, with approximat&§.0 million anticipated to be spent in
2014. We incurred approximately $1.2 million in foarth quarter of 2013 in deployment costs. Tatatual savings are forecasted at
$18.0 million by 2018, with approximately $3.5 rah and $10.0 million in annual savings expecteddt4 and 2015, respectively. We exf
that we will need to add approximately $4.0 milliofhinfrastructure costs per annum to our currgrgrational base by 2018 to maintain the
program, of which approximately $3.5 million wikkladded in 2014.

Acquisitions and Disposals

On August 1, 2013, the Company completedstie of all of the outstanding shares of an @&udly wholly-owned subsidiary, Austroflex,
receiving net cash proceeds of $7.9 million. Autgrois an Austrian-based manufacturer of pre-iatd flexible pipe systems for district
heating, solar applications and undlecr radiant heating systems. Austroflex did naenperformance expectations since its purcha2elf.
The loss after tax on disposal of the businessapasoximately $2.2 million. Further, during the yeaded December 31, 2011, the Company
wrote down Austroflex's long-lived
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assets by $14.8 million. The Company will not hav@ibstantial continuing involvement in Austrofte@perations and cash flows, therefore
Austroflex's results of operations have been preseas discontinued operations and all compargévimds presented have been adjusted in
the consolidated financial statements to reflecttPaflex's results as discontinued operations.delesae Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional informationaneling operating results of Austroflex.

On December 21, 2012, we disposed of thetanding shares of Flomatic Corporation (Flomatiz)a third party in an all cash
transaction. Flomatic was acquired as part of taefss Socla S.A.S. (Socla) acquisition in April 20Flomatic specializes in manufacturing
various valves for the well water industry, a prodine not core to our business. The operatingltesf Flomatic have been classified in
discontinued operations for 2012 and 2011. A net lin disposal of approximately $3.8 million waarged to discontinued operations in
2012.

On January 31, 2012, we completed the aitgpri of tekmar Control Systems (tekmar) in a shaurchase transaction. A designer and
manufacturer of control systems used in heatingtikaion, and air conditioning applications; teknmexpected to enhance our hydronic
systems product offerings in the U.S. and Canaba.iffitial purchase price paid was CAD $18.0 millizvith an earn-out based on future
earnings levels being achieved. The initial purehagce paid was equal to approximately $17.8 arilbased on the exchange rate of Cane
dollar to U.S. dollars as of January 31, 2012.062, a contingent liability of $5.1 million was mgmnized as the estimate of the acquisition dat
fair value of the earn-out. A portion of the coggmt consideration was paid out during 2013, inatfm@unt of $1.2 million, based on
performance metrics achieved in 2012. The contihligility was increased by $1.0 million duringetigear ended 2013 based on performanc
metrics achieved or expected to be achieved. Théparchase price will not exceed CAD $26.2 millio

Recent Developments

On January 9, 2014, David J. Coghlan resignom his positions as Chief Executive Officagdtdent and Director of the Company and
our Board of Directors appointed Dean P. FreemanEaecutive Vice President and Chief Financiali€2ff, to serve as interim Chief
Executive Officer and President of the Company. Thenpany's Board of Directors has initiated a deéocthe Company's next Chief
Executive Officer and President

On February 18, 2014, we declared a gquprdéridend of thirteen cents ($0.13) per shareeaoh outstanding share of Class A common
stock and Class B common stock.

On February 18, 2014, we entered into a @Gexdit Agreement (the "New Credit Agreement”) aghtime Company, certain of our
subsidiaries who become borrowers under the NewiCAgireement, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Adstriaive Agent, Swing Line
Lender and Letter of Credit Issuer, and the otbrdérs referred to therein. The New Credit Agredmesvides for a $500 million, five-year,
senior unsecured revolving credit facility whichyrtge increased by an additional $500 million unckstain circumstances and subject to the
terms of the New Credit Agreement. The New Credjte®ment has a sublimit of up to $100 million ittdes of credit. We expect to use any
borrowings under the New Credit Agreement for gaheorporate purposes, acquisitions and the repatyafexisting debt.

In connection with the execution and delvef the New Credit Agreement, all outstanding amts owing under our prior Credit
Agreement (the "Prior Credit Agreement"), dated&dune 18, 2010, among the Company, certain siabiid of the Company as borrowers,
Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, $iLine Lender and Letter of Credit Issuer, anddtier lenders referred to therein, were
repaid in full and the Prior Credit Agreement wastinated.
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Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to Year Efdlecember 31, 2012

Net Sales. Our business is reported in three geograpljmsats: Americas, EMEA and Asia Pacific. Our nés#n each of these
segments for the years ended December 31, 20130r&dwere as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 % Change fo
Consolidated
Net Sales % Sales Net Sales % Sales Change Net Sales
(Dollars in millions)
Americas $ 878.t 50.€% $ 835.( 58.5%% 43t 3.C%
EMEA 562.2 38.c 565.¢ 39.€ (3.4) (0.2)
Asia Pacific 32.¢ 2.2 26.¢ 1.9 6.C 0.4
Total $ 1,473 100.% $ 1,427. 100.(%$ 46.1 3.2%
The change in net sales was attributabieedollowing:
Change as a % Change as a %
of Consolidated Net Sales of Segment Net Sales
Asia Asia Asia

Americas EMEA Pacific Total Americas EMEA Pacific Total Americas EMEA Pacific
(Dollars in millions)

Organic $ 45.€$(20.5$ 55$30.6  3.1% (1.49% 0.4% 2.1%  54% (3.6% 20.5%

Foreign

exchange (2.8) 171 0. 14.¢ (0.2 1.2 — 1c (0.3 3.C 1.6
Acquisitions 0.7 — — 0.7 0.1 — — 04 0.1 — —
Total $ 4353 (3.49% 6.C$46.1 3.0% (0.2% 0.4% 3.2% 5.2% (0.€)% 22.4%

Organic net sales in 2013 in the Americhslasale market increased by $37.0 million, or 6.88tnpared to 2012 mainly from increased
sales in residential and commercial flow produnéd and from our customers continuing to transitiolead free products. Organic sales into
the Americas DIY market in 2013 increased $4.8iamill or 2.7%, compared to 2012, primarily due twéased product sales of $1.9 million in

residential and commercial flow control productsl 1.2 million in water quality products. Unit saliecreases were substantially offset by
competitive pricing in the DIY market.

Organic net sales in the EMEA wholesalekatdecreased by $10.7 million, or 3.7%, compaoe2Dtl2 primarily due to the economic
market conditions in France and Germany. Organicales into the EMEA OEM market decreased by #6lidon, or 2.3%, as compared to

2012 primarily due to a slower HYAC market in Gempand fewer large project sales in the drainsrass, offset by increased sales in the
electronics business.

The net increase in sales due to foreigihamge was primarily due to the appreciation ofeili® against the U.S. dollar. We cannot
predict whether these currencies will appreciatdepreciate against the U.S. dollar in future misior whether future foreign exchange rate
fluctuations will have a positive or negative impan our net sales.

Acquired net sales growth in Americas was tb tekmar.
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Gross Profit. Gross profit and gross profit as a percentadfsales (gross margin) for 2013 and 2012 werelBsfs:

Year Ended
December 31
2013 2012
(Dollars in millions)
Gross profit $ 526.f $ 513t
Gross margit 35.71% 36.(%

In Americas, gross margin decreased prisndtie to inefficiencies related to our lead fremnsition program and retail pricing pressure
offset partially by product mix and volume growHEMEA gross margin increased slightly as compare2Dtt, primarily due to production
efficiencies driven from ongoing restructuring prags offsetting lower overhead absorption relategtiuced manufacturing volumes.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpenseSelling, general and administrative expenseS@&&A expenses, for 2013 increased
$24.7 million, or 6.5%, compared to 2012. The iasein SG&A expenses was attributable to the faligw

(in millions) % Change
Organic $ 20.¢ 5.5%
Foreign exchang 3.€ 0.€
Acquisitions 0.3 0.1
Total $ 24.7 6.5%

The net organic increase in SG&A is prifyaaitributable to increased legal costs of $12iflian, increased product liability cost of
$4.5 million, increased freight and commission sagt$4.1 million associated with increased saes, increased personnel costs of
$2.2 million, offset by lower depreciation and atization of $1.6 million and lower advertising costf $1.3 million. Incremental legal costs
include the impact of an agreement in principledtle all claims in the Trabakoolas et al., v. #&/#&Vater Technologies, Inc., et al., matter
pending in the United States District Court for Marthern District of California. The net settlenbeharged to operations amounted to
$13.6 million in 2013. Refer to Note 14 of the Note Consolidated Financial Statements in this AhReport on Form 10-K for more detail.
Increased product liability cost of $4.5 milliontime Americas is based on a third-party actuanalysis that incorporated higher reported
claims in 2013 offset to some extent by the impdi¢che Trabakoolas settlement. Increased persausts primarily relate to investments in
new positions and increased stock incentive platsco

The increase in SG&A expenses from for@gohange was primarily due to the appreciatiomefEuro against the U.S. dollar. Acquired
SG&A expenses related to the tekmar acquisitionalT®G&A expense, as a percentage of sales, wagain. 2013 and 26.7% in 2012.

Restructuring and Other Charges.In 2013, we recorded a net charge of $8.7 enmilprimarily for severance and other costs incua®d
part of our previously announced restructuring prots, as compared to $4.2 million for 2012. Foramendetailed description of our current
restructuring plans, see Note 4 of Notes to Codatdd Financial Statements in this Annual Repoffam 10-K.

(Gain On) Adjustment to Disposal of BusinesIn 2011, we booked a net gain of approxima$dly? million relating primarily to the
recognition of currency translation adjustmentsiitésy from the sale of TWVC. In 2012 and 2013, weorded adjustments to decrease the
gain on disposal by $1.6 million and increase thie gn disposal by $0.6 million, respectively.

Goodwill and Other Long-Lived Asset ImpannCharges. In 2013, we recorded asset impairment charf§4.8 million, primarily
relating to a $0.3 million goodwill impairment clgarfor BRAE, and
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trade name impairment charges of $0.3 million abd $nillion for the Americas and EMEA, respectivelihe goodwill impairment was based
on historical results being below our expectatiang a reduction in the expected future cash fleAsetgenerated by BRAE. See the results o
operations discussion for the year ended Decenhe2@.2 compared to the year ended December 31, fiXldetails of the 2012 goodwiill
and other long-lived asset impairment charges.agmeNote 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financialetants in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K, for additional information regarding seempairments.

Operating Income. Operating income by geographic segment for 20182012 was as follows:

% Change to

Year Ended Consolidated
December 31 December 31 Operating
2013 2012 Change Income
(Dollars in millions)

Americas $ 904 $ 96.£ $ (6.1 (4.9%
EMEA 46.¢ 52.E (5.6) (4.6)
Asia Pacific 9.7 6.5 3.2 2.€
Corporate (35.5) (32.2) (3.9 (2.7)
Total $ 111.5 $ 123.2 $ (11§ (9.6%

The change in operating income was attaiblat to the following:

Change asa % o

Change asa % o

Consolidated Operating Income Segment Operating Income
Asia Asia Asia
Americas EMEA Pacific Corp. Total Americas EMEA Pacific Corp. Total Americas EMEA Pacific Corp.
(Dollars in millions)

Organic $ (7.9% (249% 0.5% (3.9%(12.1 B9% (2.0% 0.7% ((2.9% (9.9% (7.5% (4.6)% 13.9% 10.2%
Foreign

exchange (0.€) 1.8 01 — 1z (0.5) 1.t 0.1 — 1.1 (0.€) 3.4 1.t —
Acquisitions 0.1 — — — 01 0.1 — — — 0.1 0.1 — — —
Restructuring

impairmen

charges ar

other 1.7 (6.0 22 — (1) 14 (4.7) 1.8 — _(09 1.7 (9.5) 33.¢ —
Total $ (6.)$ (5.6% 3.2% (3.9%(11.9) (4.9%_ (4.0%__ 2.6%_ (2.0%_(9.0% (6.9% (10.9)% 49.2% 10.2%

The decrease in consolidated organic ojpgraicome was due primarily to an increase in SG&denses, as previously discussed.

Acquired operating income relates to the tekmaugsitipn.

The increase in restructuring, impairmerdrges and other from 2013 to 2012 is primarilyehiby the EMEA restructuring programs, as

previously discussed.

The net increase in operating income fromifjn exchange was primarily due to the appremiati

the euro against the U.S. dollar. We

cannot predict whether the euro will appreciatdaepreciate against the U.S. dollar in future periodwhether future foreign exchange rate

fluctuations will have a positive or negative impan our operating income.

Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased $3.1 million, &%2in 2013 compared to 2012,

primarily due torteement in mid-

May 2013 of $75 million in unsecured senior noted t a lower balance outstanding on our stancetigrs of credit. See Note 10 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annuagldr®eon Form 10-K, for additional information redarg financing arrangements.

Other Expense (Income), NetOther expense (income), net increased $3.6omilh 2013 compared to 2012, primarily due to i@ign
currency transaction losses in the Americas, EMB@ Asia Pacific as a result of the appreciatiothefChinese yuan and the euro against the
U.S. dollar and appreciation of the U.S. dollariagtethe Canadian dollar in 2013. In addition, eofable customs settlement recorded in 2012

did not repeat in 2013.
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Income Taxes. Our effective tax rate for continuing operasidancreased to 30.6% in 2013 from 29.7% in 2012 2013 rate is up
slightly due to a change in tax laws in France lingited intercompany interest deductions. In 20th2, rate was favorably impacted by the
release of a tax reserve following the completiba Buropean tax audit.

Net Income From Continuing OperationsNet income from continuing operations for 2@z $60.9 million, or $1.71 per common
share, compared to $70.4 million, or $1.95 per comsshare, for 2012. Results for 2013 include nerdax charges of $18.3 million, or $0.51
per common share, including legal settlement clao§&0.26, restructuring and other net charge®df7, goodwill and other long-lived asset
impairments of $0.04, earnout adjustments of $&2EMEA transformation deployment costs of $0.02.

Results for 2012 include net after-tax glearof $8.1 million, or $0.22 per common shareluigiog restructuring and other net charges of
$0.07, goodwill and other long-lived asset impaintseof $0.07, a charge to adjust the TWVC gain®@08, retention costs for our former
Chief Financial Officer of $0.03, net legal/custosedtiement charges of $0.02, and other net creti#9.01, primarily related to a favorable
tax adjustment due to a change in 2012 in Itakerrtles.

The appreciation primarily of the euro agaithe U.S. dollar in 2013 resulted in a positmpact on our operations of $0.03 per common
share compared to 2012. We cannot predict whelleeetiro, Canadian dollar or Chinese yuan will agipte or depreciate against the U.S.
dollar in future periods or whether future foregxchange rate fluctuations will have a positivaegative impact on our net income.

Loss From Discontinued OperationsLoss from discontinued operations in 2013 aB$8illion, or ($0.07) per common share, was
related to the operations and loss on disposalstraflex. See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated féfa Statements.

Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to Year Erdleckmber 31, 2011

Net Sales. Our business is reported in three geograplymsats: Americas, EMEA and Asia Pacific. Our né¢s@n each of these
segments for the years ended December 31, 20120ridwere as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended % Ch
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011 % ange to
Consolidated
Net Sales % Sales Net Sales % Sales Change Net Sales
(Dollars in millions)
Americas $ 835.( 58.% $ 810.¢ 57.€%$ 24.1 1.7%
EMEA 565.¢ 39.€ 574.¢ 40.¢ 9.2) (0.7)
Asia Pacific 26.¢ 1.8 21.7 N5 5.1 0.4
Total $ 1,427. 100.(% $ 1,407. 100.(%$ 20.C 1.4%
The change in net sales was attributabieedollowing:
Change As a % Change As a %
of Consolidated Net Sales of Segment Net Sales
Asia Asia Asia

Americas EMEA Pacific Total Americas EMEA Pacific Total Americas EMEA Pacific
(Dollars in millions)

Organic $ 1528 (B80O$ 3¢$ 111 1.1% (0.6)% 0.3% 0.€% 1.¢% 1.9% 18.(%
Foreign

exchange 0.8) (429 0.5 (426 — (3.0 — (3.0 0.1 (7.9 2.3
Acquisitions 9.7 41.1 0.7 51.f 0.€ 2.8 0.1 3.€ 1.2 7.1 3.2
Total $ 241% (9299% 518 20C 1.7% (0.7% 0.4% 1.4% 3.C% (1.6)%  23.5%
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Organic net sales in 2012 into the Amerighslesale market increased by $4.0 million, of8.6ompared to 2011. Minimal increases
were noted in our four major product categoriegiagm from 0.2% in water quality products to 2.0%HWAC and gas products. Organic sales
into the Americas DIY market in 2012 increased Itillion, or 6.9%, compared to 2011, primarily dodncreased product sales of
$8.5 million in residential and commercial flow ¢mi products and $2.1 million in water quality drets.

Organic net sales in the EMEA wholesalekatwere essentially flat compared to 2011. Whdéesales increased $5.7 million due to
stronger plumbing and valves sales into the MiditHist and Eastern Europe, and increased drain@alepan European basis by $1.0 million.
However, those gains were offset by wholesale saldisctions of $3.5 million in Italy and $2.1 milfi in France, both due to a poor overall
economy, and a reduction of pre-insulated pipe petedsales of $2.1 million. Organic sales into@EM market in 2012 decreased by
$6.0 million compared to 2011. The decline was prily due to decreased sales in the Nordic regf@6® million from lower demands by
heating pump and electrical heating manufactutewger sales in France and Italy of $3.5 million &1d4 million, respectively, due to the
economic slowdown. Declines were offset by incrdassdes of $8.4 million related to our drains prcdine.

The net decrease in sales due to foreighange was primarily due to the depreciation offbeo and the Canadian dollar against the
dollar. We cannot predict whether these curreneilappreciate or depreciate against the U.S.adadll future periods or whether future
foreign exchange rate fluctuations will have a presior negative impact on our net sales.

Acquired net sales in EMEA and Asia Padifitated to the Socla acquisition and in the Anariwere due to tekmar.

Gross Profit. Gross profit and gross profit as a percentatfsales (gross margin) for 2012 and 2011 werelbsfs:

Year Ended
December 31,
2012 2011
(Dollars in millions)
Gross profit $ 513t $ 508.
Gross margit 36.(% 36.1%

Consolidated gross margin was fairly stafl2012 compared to 2011, but varied by geographyjmericas, gross margin declined du
non-commodity cost increases as well as manufagtuniefficiencies driven by pre-production costsd aatsourcing costs caused by certain
U.S. plants transitioning to lead free productidmericas gross margin was also affected by prodhixtas DIY sales grew faster than
wholesale sales and there were selective priceessians to meet market competition. Americas gmeaglin increased during the second half
of 2012 as lead free related costs abated. EMEAsgmargin increased as compared to 2011, partialyto acquisition accounting charges of
$4.7 million made in 2011 in connection with theclBoacquisition and partially due to better product and improved pricing in 2012.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpenseSelling, general and administrative expenseS@8&A expenses, for 2012 increased
$9.5 million, or 2.6%, compared to 2011. The inseetn SG&A expenses was attributable to the follgwi

(in millions) % Change
Organic $ 3.3 0.€%
Foreign exchang (20.7 (2.7
Acquisitions 16.5 4.4
Total $ 9.5 2.€%
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The net organic increase in SG&A is prinyaaitributable to increases in professional sawiof $6.4 million, insurance costs of
$4.4 million and variable selling and sales relatests of $2.8 million, offset by lower personrelbted costs of $7.7 million, lower
depreciation and amortization of $0.9 million, an#l1.7 million reduction in other expenses. Prafesd service costs increased due to higher
legal fees and legal settlement costs, and IT axndelated projects undertaken in 2012. Insuranstsdncreased due to higher product liability
charges in the Americas. Personnel costs were egdldnc2012 primarily due to the separation costarired in 2011 for the former Chief
Executive Officer and lower retirement costs in 20dlated to the 2011 pension freeze.

The decrease in SG&A expenses from foredgrhange was primarily due to the depreciatiormefduro against the U.S. dollar. Acquired

SG&A expenses related to the Socla and tekmar sitiguis. Total SG&A expense, as a percentage ebsalas 26.7% in 2012 and 26.4% in
2011.

Restructuring and Other Chargesln 2012, we recorded a net charge of $4.2 emlprimarily for severance and other costs incua®d
part of our previously announced restructuring paots, as compared to $8.8 million for 2011. Foramendetailed description of our current
restructuring plans, see Note 4 of Notes to Codatdd Financial Statements in this Annual Repoff@m 10-K.

Goodwill and Other Long-Lived Asset ImpannCharges. In 2012, we recorded asset impairment charf§8.4 million, including
$1.7 million for impairment charges on long-liveskats in the Americas that were ultimately soldrdu2012, a $1.0 million goodwill
impairment charge for BRAE, a $0.4 million impaimueharge for an Americas trade name and $0.3aniftor asset write-downs in Europe.
The goodwill impairment was based on historicalilssbeing below our expectations and a reducticthé expected future cash flows to be
generated by BRAE. See Note 2 of Notes to Congdeliieinancial Statements in this Annual Report om10-K, for additional information
regarding these impairments.

(Gain On) Adjustment to Disposal of BusinesIn 2011, we booked a net gain of approxima$dly? million relating primarily to the

recognition of currency translation adjustmentsiitésy from the sale of TWVC. In 2012, we recordedadjustment of $1.6 million to decre
the gain.

Operating Income. Operating income by geographic segment for 20122011 was as follows:

Year Ended % Change to
Consolidated
December 31 December 31 Operating
2012 2011 Change Income
(Dollars in millions)
Americas $ 96.5 $ 111.¢ $ (15.)) (11.9%
EMEA 52.t 45t 7.C 5.2
Asia Pacific 6.5 12.2 (5.7 (4.2
Corporate (32.2) (35.9) 3.€ 2.7
Total $ 1232 $ 1335 $ (10.2) (7.6%

The change in operating income was attaiblet to the following:

Change as a % o Change as a % o
Consolidated Operating Income Segment Operating Income
Asia Asia Asia

Americas EMEA Pacific Corp. Total Americas EMEA Pacific Corp. Total Americas EMEA Pacific Corp.
(Dollars in millions)
Organic $ (1449$ 26€3% 34% 3€%$ (4.9 (10.% 2.% 2.5% 2.7% (3.6% (12.9% 5.7% 27.9% (10.)%

Foreign

exchange 02 @449 01 — (45 (0.2) (3.9 0.1 — (349 (0.2) (9.6 0.€ —
Acquisitions iLf3 355 — — 5¢C 1.2 2.€ — — 38 1.2 7.7 — —
Restructuring

impairmen

charges ar

other (20 53 (99 — (59 (1.5) 3.C (6. — (449 (1.7) 11.€ (7549 —
Total $ (150$ 7.C3$ (5.9% 3.€%(10.9 (11.9%  5.2%_ (4.9%_2.1% (7.6% (13.9% 15.%0% (46.7)% (10.1)%
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The decrease in consolidated organic ojpgratcome was due primarily to a reduction in gragargin in Americas, for reasons
previously discussed. Their impact was offset pytby a reduction in acquisition costs in EMEAated to the 2011 Socla acquisition.
Acquired operating income relates to the Soclatekdhar acquisitions.

The increase in restructuring, impairmerdrges and other from 2011 to 2012 is primarilyetiby the gain on disposal of business
recorded in 2011 which did not repeat in 2012, rasipusly discussed, offset primarily by decreassdructuring costs.

The net decrease in operating income frarign exchange was primarily due to the deprematif the euro against the U.S. dollar. We
cannot predict whether the euro will appreciatdapreciate against the U.S. dollar in future periodwhether future foreign exchange rate
fluctuations will have a positive or negative impan our operating income.

Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased $1.2 million, d¥4iid 2012 compared to 2011, primarily due to aelase in the amour
outstanding under our revolving credit facility tireas used to partially finance the Socla acquisith 2011. See Note 10 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annuagdd®eon Form 10-K, for additional information redarg financing arrangements.

Other Expense (Income), NetOther expense (income), net decreased $1.Bmili 2012 compared to 2011, primarily due to a
reduction in foreign currency transaction losseas$ afavorable customs settlement in Asia Pacifizdh2.

Income Taxes. Our effective rate for continuing operationsrgmsed to 29.7% in 2012 from 28.5% in 2011. Tlmaamy cause of the
lower rate in 2011 was the tax benefit realizeddnnection with the disposition of our TWVC fagjlin China. This was partially offset by the
release of a tax reserve in 2012 following the cletmgn of a European tax audit.

Net Income From Continuing OperationsNet income from continuing operations for 2@zs $70.4 million, or $1.95 per common
share, compared to $77.2 million, or $2.06 per comsshare, for 2011. Results for 2012 include nietrdbx charges of $8.1 million, or $0.22
per common share, including restructuring and otie¢icharges of $0.07, goodwill and other longdiasset impairments of $0.07, a charge tc
adjust the TWVC gain of $0.04, retention costsdor former Chief Financial Officer of $0.03, negj#éd/customs settlement charges of $0.02,
and other net credits of $0.01, primarily related tfavorable tax adjustment due to a change i2 20ltalian tax rules.

Results for 2011 include net aftar-charges of $5.7 million or $0.16 per commorrshiacluding restructuring and other charge ofi$(
acquisition and due diligence costs of $0.12, agtheelated to our former Chief Executive Officeséparation agreement of $0.11, goodwill
and asset impairment charges of $0.05, a pensitailowent loss of $0.02, offset by a gain on thepdsal of TWVC of $0.30 and other net
gains of $0.02 primarily related to earnout andlegljustments.

The depreciation of the euro and Canadaiadagainst the U.S. dollar in 2012 resulted imegative impact on our operations of $0.09
per common share compared to 2011. We cannot prebether the euro, Canadian dollar or Chinese yuliappreciate or depreciate agai
the U.S. dollar in future periods or whether futfoeeign exchange rate fluctuations will have aifies or negative impact on our net income.

Loss From Discontinued OperationsLoss from discontinued operations in 2012 ab$gillion, or ($0.05) per common share, was
related to the operations and disposal of Flonaatit Austroflex. Loss from discontinued operation2011 of $10.8 million, or ($0.28) per
common share, was primarily related to the opegdtiss of Austroflex. See Note 3 of Notes to Coitlsted Financial Statements.
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Liquidity and Capital Resource
2013 Cash Flows

In 2013, we generated $118.3 million ofriclem operating activities as compared to $130ilBam in 2012. The decrease was primarily
due to lower net income and cash used to funddaftea inventory increase in the Americas. We gateer approximately $92.1 million of free
cash flow (a non-GAAP financial measure, which weoncile below, defined as net cash provided byiloimg operating activities minus
capital expenditures plus proceeds from sale atasscompared to free cash flow of $103.0 miliiw2012. Free cash flow as a percentage of
net income from continuing operations was 151.2%0h3 as compared to 146.3% in 2012.

In 2013, we used $24.1 million of net c&mhinvesting activities, including $27.7 milliorf cash for capital equipment, offset partially by
the proceeds from the sale of buildings and equigra$1.5 million. We anticipate investing appnmstely $27.0 million in capital equipme
in 2014 to improve our manufacturing capabilities.

In 2013, we used $109.5 million of net casim financing activities. Our most significantsteoutlays included the repayment of the
$75.0 million of unsecured senior notes that matame May 15, 2013, payments to repurchase apprd&iynd54,000 shares of Class A
common stock at a cost of approximately $23.0 ariliind payment of dividends of $17.7 million, offlsg proceeds of $11.9 million from
option exercises under the employee stock plans.

On June 18, 2010, we entered into a cezglitement (the Prior Credit Agreement) among thm2my, certain subsidiaries of the
Company who become borrowers under the Prior Chaglitement, Bank of America, N.A., as Administratikgent, swing line lender and
letter of credit issuer, and the other lendersrreteto therein. The Prior Credit Agreement prodider a $300.0 million, five-year, senior
unsecured revolving credit facility which could ledveen increased by an additional $150.0 milliosenrzertain circumstances and subject to
the terms of the Prior Credit Agreement. The P@oedit Agreement had a sublimit of up to $75.0 ianilin letters of credit.

Borrowings outstanding under the Prior @radreement bore interest at a fluctuating rategrenum equal to (1) in the case of
Eurocurrency rate loans, the British Bankers Asstami LIBOR rate plus an applicable percentagegiramfrom 1.70% to 2.30%, determined
by reference to our consolidated leverage ratig,pluthe case of certain lenders, a mandatoryaadstilated in accordance with the terms of
the Prior Credit Agreement, or (2) in the caseadedrate loans and swing line loans, the highest)dhe federal funds rate plus 0.5%, (b) the
rate of interest in effect for such day as annodrmeBank of America, N.A. as its "prime rate," &)l the British Bankers Association LIBC
rate plus 1.0%, plus an applicable percentagejmgricom 0.70% to 1.30%, determined by referenceuoconsolidated leverage ratio. In
addition to paying interest under the Prior Crédjteement, we were also required to pay certais iieeonnection with the credit facility,
including, but not limited to, a facility fee anetfer of credit fees.

On February 18, 2014, we entered into a @esdit Agreement (the New Credit Agreement) amitiegCompany, certain subsidiaries of
the Company who become borrowers under the Cregigément, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Adminig&#&gent, Swing Line Lender
and Letter of Credit Issuer, and the other lendefierred to therein. The New Credit Agreement mtesifor a $500 million, five-year, senior
unsecured revolving credit facility which may berigased by an additional $500 million under certaicumstances and subject to the term
the New Credit Agreement. The New Credit Agreenfrsta sublimit of up to $100 million in lettersavédit. In connection with our entering
into the New Credit Agreement, we terminated therREredit Agreement.

Borrowings outstanding under the New Crédjteement bear interest at a fluctuating rategp@ium equal to an applicable percentage
equal to (1) in the case of Eurocurrency rate lptresBritish Bankers Association LIBOR rate plusapplicable percentage, ranging from
0.975% to 1.45%, determined by reference to the gamyis consolidated leverage ratio plus, in the cdgertain
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lenders, a mandatory cost calculated in accordaitbethe terms of the New Credit Agreement, orif2he case of base rate loans and swing
line loans, the highest of (a) the federal funds pdus 0.5%, (b) the rate of interest in effectdoch day as announced by JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A. as its "prime rate," and (c) the BritBankers Association LIBOR rate plus 1.0%, pluspplicable percentage, ranging from
0.00% to 0.45%, determined by reference to the Gmyip consolidated leverage ratio. In additionapipg interest under the New Credit
Agreement, we are also required to pay certainifeesnnection with the credit facility, includingut not limited to, an unused facility fee and
letter of credit fees.

The New Credit Agreement matures on Felgri8r 2019, subject to extension under certairuoirstances and subject to the terms of the
New Credit Agreement. We may repay loans outstandirder the New Credit Agreement from time to timhout premium or penalty, oth
than customary breakage costs, if any, and sutiebe terms of the New Credit Agreement.

As of December 31, 2013, we held $267.%anilin cash and cash equivalents. Our abilityuladf operations from cash and cash
equivalents could be limited by market liquidityvasll as possible tax implications of moving progg@cross jurisdictions. Of this amount,
approximately $214.4 million of cash and cash eglents were held by foreign subsidiaries. Our Ggrations currently generate sufficient
cash flows to meet our domestic obligations. We hksve the ability to borrow funds at reasonablerest rates and utilize the committed fu
under our New Credit Agreement. However, if amounaisl by foreign subsidiaries were needed to fypetations in the United States, we
could be required to accrue and pay taxes to riepathese funds. Such charges may include a fiederaf up to 35.0% on dividends received
in the U.S., potential state income taxes and altiadal withholding tax payable to foreign juristions of up to 10.0%. However, our intent is
to permanently reinvest undistributed earningodifjn subsidiaries and we do not have any cuplamis to repatriate them to fund operation:
in the United States.

Covenant compliance

Under the Prior Credit Agreement, we werguired to satisfy and maintain specified financidilos and other financial condition tests as
of December 31, 2013. The financial ratios includembnsolidated interest coverage ratio based psatidated earnings before income taxes,
interest expense, depreciation, and amortizati@mgGlidated EBITDA) to consolidated interest exgers defined in the Prior Credit
Agreement. Our Prior Credit Agreement defined Ctidated EBITDA to exclude unusual or non-recurragigirges and gains. We were also
required to maintain a consolidated leverage m@ticonsolidated funded debt to Consolidated EBITQAnNsolidated funded debt, as define
the Credit Agreement, included all long and shertrt debt, capital lease obligations and any tratlerk of credit that are outstanding. Finally,
we were required to maintain a consolidated netiwibrat exceeds a minimum net worth calculatioms®tidated net worth was defined as the
total stockholders' equity as reported adjustedifiyr cumulative translation adjustments and goddmpairments.

As of December 31, 2013, our actual finahetios calculated in accordance with our Pricedit Agreement compared to the required
levels under the Prior Credit Agreement were dsvicd:

Actual Ratio Required Level
Minimum level

Interest Charge Coverage Re 7.43 to0 1.0C 3.50to 1.0C
Maximum level

Leverage Ratit 0.62 to 1.0C 3.2510 1.0C
Minimum level
Consolidated Net Wort $986.1 millior  $812.5 million
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As of December 31, 2013, we were in conmgiéawith all covenants related to the Prior Créditeement and had $276.4 million of
unused and available credit under the Prior Crglieement and $23.6 million of stand-by lettersmfdit outstanding under the Prior Credit
Agreement. There were no borrowings outstandingeutite Prior Credit Agreement at December 31, 2013.

The New Credit Agreement retains the irdecharge coverage ratio and leverage ratio firducovenants, but the consolidated net worth
covenant has been eliminated. The required leeelh€ interest charge coverage ratio and leverage financial covenants remain consistent
with the required levels under the Prior Credit égmnent.

We have several senior note agreementsrtef detailed in Note 10 of Notes to Consoliddtethncial Statements. These senior note
agreements require us to maintain a fixed chargerege ratio of consolidated EBITDA plus consolathtent expense during the period to
consolidated fixed charges. Consolidated fixed gbsuare the sum of consolidated interest expemsbd@eriod and consolidated rent expe

As of December 31, 2013, our actual fixedrge coverage ratio calculated in accordance auitlsenior note agreements compared to th
required ratio therein was as follows:

Actual Ratio Required Level
Minimum level
Fixed Charge Coverage Ra 4,99 to 1.0( 2.00 to 1.0C

In addition to financial ratios, the Prioredit Agreement, New Credit Agreement and senibe mgreements contain affirmative and
negative covenants that include limitations on disfion or sale of assets, prohibitions on assuramgcurring any liens on assets with limi
exceptions and limitations on making investmeniteeothan those permitted by the agreements.

We used $0.1 million of net cash from ofiagpactivities of discontinued operations in 20&&ted to Austroflex. We generated
$7.9 million of net cash from investing activitiesdiscontinued operations resulting from proceedgived upon the disposal of Austroflex in
August 2013.

Working capital (defined as current asets current liabilities) as of December 31, 20E3 %530.2 million compared to $454.9 million
as of December 31, 2012. The increase was primduigythe retirement in mid-May 2013 of $75.0 milliof unsecured senior notes. The ratio
of current assets to current liabilities was 2.8 s of December 31, 2013 compared to 2.2 todf Becember 31, 2012, increased primarily
by the retirement of the senior notes previousliytioaed and also by the buildup of inventory aBetember 31, 2013 in preparation for the
lead free transition.

2012 Cash Flows

In 2012, we generated $130.3 million ofriclem operating activities as compared to $126illiam in 2011. We generated approximat
$103.0 million of free cash flow (a non-GAAP finaalaneasure, which we reconcile below, definedetscash provided by continuing
operating activities minus capital expendituresgmoceeds from sale of assets), compared to &g ftow of $104.4 million in 2011. Free
cash flow as a percentage of net income from coimtgnoperations was 146.3% in 2012 as compare83®% in 2011.

In 2012, we used $42.9 million of net cwmhinvesting activities, including $17.5 millioorf the purchase of tekmar and $30.5 million of
cash for capital equipment, offset partially by greceeds from the sale of buildings and equipro&f8.2 million.

In 2012, we used $80.7 million of net chsim financing activities. Our most significant basutlays included $65.8 million for the
repurchase of two million shares of Class A commimek and $16.0 million to fund dividend paymeiRepayments of long-term debt related
to amounts borrowed under the Prior Credit AgredrimeR012 for operating purposes and repaymendsa@lto 2011 borrowings for the
purchase of Socla.
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We generated $3.2 million of net cash frgmerating activities of discontinued operation2@12 related to a legal settlement regarding
the disposal of a former Chinese subsidiary aneh foperating activities of discontinued operatiogiated to Austroflex. We generated
$8.3 million of net cash from investing activitiesdiscontinued operations resulting primarily fremoceeds received upon the disposal of
Flomatic in December 2012.

2011 Cash Flows

In 2011, we generated $126.1 million ofrcAlem operating activities. We generated approxétya5104.4 million of free cash flow (a
non-GAAP financial measure, which we reconcile hegldefined as net cash provided by continuing dpegactivities minus capital
expenditures plus proceeds from sale of asse&s. ¢ash flow as a percentage of net income frortimeong operations was 135.2% in 2011.

In 2011, we used $188.1 million of net casim investing activities primarily for the purcfeof Socla and for capital equipment.

In 2011, we used $23.9 million of net c&sim financing activities. Borrowings and repayneeptimarily related to funds borrowed uni
the Prior Credit Agreement for the purchase of &acld then partially repaid. Other cash outflovesuided $27.2 million used to repurchase
one million shares of Class A common stock durifigj’?and for $16.3 million of dividend payments.

Nor-GAAP Financial Measures

We believe free cash flow to be an appaiprsupplemental measure of our operating perfacmbacause it provides investors with a
measure of our ability to generate cash, to regdy dnd to fund acquisitions. Other companies n&diyed free cash flow differently. Free cash
flow does not represent cash generated from operattivities in accordance with GAAP. Thereforstibuld not be considered an alternative
to net cash provided by operations as an indicatfaur performance. Free cash flow should alsdoeatonsidered an alternative to net cash
provided by operations as defined by GAAP. The castversion rate of free cash flow to net inconeanficontinuing operations is also a
measure of our performance in cash flow generation.

A reconciliation of net cash provided bytiouing operations to free cash flow and calcalatf our cash conversion rate is provided
below:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(in millions)
Net cash provided by continuing operatis $ 1182 $ 130.2 $ 126.1
Less: additions to property, plant, and equipn (27.9) (30.5 (22.5)
Plus: proceeds from the sale of property, plard, equipmen g 3.2 0.8
Free cash flov $ 921 $ 103.C $ 104.¢
Net income from continuing operati—as reportet $ 60 $ 704 $ 77.C
Cash conversion rate of free cash flow to net iredrmm continuin:
operations 151.2% 146.9% 135.2%

Our net debt to capitalization ratio, a #®AAP financial measure used by management, desdgas3.8% for 2013 from 10.8% for 2012.
The decrease in net debt to capitalization ratauis to a reduction in net debt and incrementainmeime recorded during the period.
Management believes this to be an appropriate suppital measure because it helps investors understa ability to meet our financing
needs and as a basis to evaluate our financialtgteu Our computation may not be comparable teratbmpanies that may define net debt to
capitalization differently.
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A reconciliation of long-term debt (inclugj current portion) to net debt and our net deloiajuitalization ratio is provided below:

December 31

2013 2012
(in millions)
Current portion of lon-term deb $ 22 $ 771
Plus: lon¢-term debt, net of current portic 305.¢ 307.t
Less: cash and cash equivale (267.9) (271.9)
Net debi $ 39.6 $ 113:

A reconciliation of capitalization is pradd below:

December 31

2013 2012
(in millions)

Net debt $ 39.6 $ 113:

Total stockholders' equit 1,002.: 939.f

Capitalizatior $ 1,041¢ $ 1,052.

Net debt to capitalization rat 3.€% 10.8%

Contractual Obligations
Our contractual obligations as of Decen8#r2013 are presented in the following table:

Payments Due by Perioc

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years 5 years
(in millions)
Long-term debt obligations, including
current maturities(e $ 307.7 $ 22 $ 228¢ % 1.7 $ 75.C
Operating lease obligatiol 28.€ 9.1 9.¢ 3.2 6.4
Capital lease obligations( 9.t 1.4 2.7 2.7 2.7
Pension contribution 17.2 1.2 2.€ 2.¢ 10.t
Interest 61.€ 17.€ 28.1 7.5 7.7
Earnout payments( 4.4 2.2 2.2 —
Other(b) 30.2 26.% 3.1 0.2 0.5
Total $ 4592 $ 605 $ 2774 $ 1857 $  102.¢

@ as recognized in the consolidated balance sheet

(b)  the majority relates to commodity and capital cotnmeints at December 31, 20

We maintain letters of credit that guararger performance or payment to third parties toedance with specified terms and conditions.
Amounts outstanding were approximately $23.6 millis of December 31, 2013 and $34.8 million asaxfdinber 31, 2012, respectively. Our
letters of credit are primarily associated withuresice coverage and, to a lesser extent, foreigthpses and generally expire within one year
of issuance. These instruments may exist or expifeut being drawn down; therefore they do notassarily represent future cash flow
obligations.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangement

Except for operating lease commitmentshesxe no off-balance sheet arrangements that haasegeasonably likely to have a current or
future effect on our financial condition, changedinancial condition, revenues or expenses, regfloperations, liquidity, capital expenditu
or capital resources that is material to investors.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies and Key Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated finahstatements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requitrasagement to make judgments,
assumptions and estimates that affect the amoeptsted. A critical accounting estimate is an aggion about highly uncertain matters and
could have a material effect on the consolidatedritial statements if another, also reasonableyatweere used, or, a change in the estimate
is reasonably likely from period to period. We base assumptions on historical experience and berastimates that we believe are
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual resoiltiel differ significantly from these estimates.eféwere no changes in our accounting
policies or significant changes in our accountistineates during 2013. In 2011, we changed the amatidn period of pension gains and los
as discussed below under the caption "Pension i&hef

We periodically discuss the developmenrgd®mn and disclosure of the estimates with oudifCommittee. Management believes the
following critical accounting policies reflect itsore significant estimates and assumptions.

Revenue recognitic

We recognize revenue when all of the foltaywriteria are met: (1) we have entered intoralisig agreement, (2) the product has shippe
and title has passed, (3) the sales price to ther is fixed or is determinable and (4) collbiity is reasonably assured. We recognize
revenue based upon a determination that all ciferirevenue recognition have been met, whichedas the majority of our shipping terms,
is considered to have occurred upon shipment dfitighed product. Some shipping terms requiregiheds to be received by the customer
before title passes. In those instances, revemeasod recognized until the customer has receiiedybods. We record estimated reductions tc
revenue for customer returns and allowances andustomer programs. Provisions for returns andmaiwes are made at the time of sale,
derived from historical trends and form a portidrth@ allowance for doubtful accounts. Customegpams, which are primarily annual
volume incentive plans, allow customers to earditfer attaining agreed upon purchase targets fusmAe record estimated reductions to
revenue, made at the time of sale, for customegrpms based on estimated purchase targets.

Allowance for doubtful accoun

The allowance for doubtful accounts is lelsthed to represent our best estimate of theaaizable value of the outstanding accounts
receivable. The development of our allowance farbtful accounts varies by region but in generdlaised on a review of past due amounts,
historical write-off experience, as well as agirents affecting specific accounts and general djpea factors affecting all accounts. In
addition, factors are developed in certain regisiiizing historical trends of sales and returnd ailowances and cash discount activities to
derive a reserve for returns and allowances arfl diasounts.

We uniformly consider current economic tterand changes in customer payment terms whenagivejuhe adequacy of the allowance
doubtful accounts. We also aggressively monitorctieelitworthiness of our largest customers, anébgeally review customer credit limits to
reduce risk. If circumstances relating to spedfistomers change or unanticipated changes octhe igeneral business environment, our
estimates of the recoverability of receivables ddig further adjusted.
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Inventory valuatior

Inventories are stated at the lower of cosharket with costs determined primarily on atfin first-out basis. We utilize both specific
product identification and historical product demias the basis for determining our excess or otesoleentory reserve. We identify all
inventories that exceed a range of one to foursyasales. This is determined by comparing theectiinventory balance against unit sales fo
the trailing twelve months. New products addechientory within the past twelve months are exclufiledh this analysis. A portion of our
products contain recoverable materials, therefoeeekcess and obsolete reserve is established aey oecoverable amounts. Changes in
market conditions, lower-than-expected customeratehor changes in technology or features couldtregsadditional obsolete inventory that
is not saleable and could require additional inegnteserve provisions.

In certain countries, additional inventogegerves are maintained for potential shrinkage®epced in the manufacturing process. The
reserve is established based on the prior yeaesiary losses adjusted for any change in the dnvestory balance.

Goodwill and other intangibles

We have made numerous acquisitions oveyehes which included the recognition of a sig@ifitamount of goodwill. Goodwiill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if areav or circumstance indicates that an impairmesg toay have been incurred. Applicatiol
the goodwill impairment test requires judgmentjuding the identification of reporting units, assigent of assets and liabilities to reporting
units, and determination of the fair value of eegborting unit. We estimate the fair value of ceporting units using an income approach
based on the present value of estimated futureftashk, and when appropriate, guideline public campand guideline transaction market
approaches.

Accounting guidance allows us to review dwitl for impairment utilizing either qualitativer@uantitative analyses. We have the option
to first assess qualitative factors to determinetivér the existence of events or circumstances lead determination that it is more likely tf
not that the fair value of a reporting unit is l&san its carrying amount. If, after assessingthaity of events and circumstances, we deter
it is more likely than not that the fair value ofeporting unit is greater than its carrying amotimén performing the two-step (quantitative)
impairment test is unnecessary.

We first identify those reporting units thige believe could pass a qualitative assessmetdteymine whether further impairment testin
necessary. For each reporting unit identified,qualitative analysis includes:

1) A review of the most recent fair value calciglatto identify the extent of the cushion betweain ¥alue and carrying amount, to
determine if a substantial cushion existed.

2) A review of events and circumstances that haveroedisince the most recent fair value calculatmddtermine if those events
or circumstances would have affected our previairsvilue assessment. Items identified and reviemeldde macroeconomic
conditions, industry and market changes, cost fadtanges, events that affect the reporting uiminfcial performance against
expectations and the reporting unit's performaetative to peers.

We then compile this information and make assessment of whether it is more likely thanthat the fair value of the reporting unit is
less than its carrying amount. If we determine i@t more likely than not, then no further quatitie analysis is required. We have eight
reporting units in continuing operations, one ofekh Water Quality, has no goodwill. In 2013, weafpemed a qualitative analysis for the
Residential and Commercial, Blicher, Drains andeVRe-use, Dormont and Asia Pacific reporting uitsa result of our qualitative
analyses, we determined that the fair values ofdéperting units were greater than the carrying ams
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The second analysis for goodwill impairmienblves a quantitative two-step process. In 2@ performed a quantitative impairment
analysis for the EMEA reporting unit and BRAE, imding an impairment analysis during the secondtquéor the EMEA reporting unit due
to results below expectations. The EMEA reporting tepresents the EMEA geographic segment exctutia Bliicher reporting unit. The
first step of the impairment test requires a congparof the fair value of each of our reportingtano the respective carrying value. If the
carrying value of a reporting unit is less tharfatis value, no indication of impairment exists amdecond step is not performed. If the carrying
amount of a reporting unit is higher than its fatue, there is an indication that impairment meigteand a second step must be performed. Ir
the second step, the impairment is computed by eomgpthe implied fair value of the reporting unigoodwill with the carrying amount of t|
goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reportingits goodwill is greater than the implied fair walof its goodwill, an impairment loss must
recognized for the excess and charged to operations

Inherent in our development of the fairueabf the reporting unit are the assumptions atichates used in the income and market
approaches. The discounted cash flow method (in@ppeoach) calculates the present value of futasé dlows projections based on
assumptions and estimates derived from a reviemuobperating results, business plans, expectasitignates, cost of capital and tax rates.
also make certain assumptions about future econoaomiditions and other market data. We develop ssumptions based on our historical
results including sales growth, operating profiterking capital levels and tax rates. The mark@raaches calculate estimated fair values
based on valuation multiples derived from stockgsiand enterprise values of publicly traded conegahat are comparable to our Company
(guideline public company method) and based onatan multiples derived from actual transactionsdomparable public and private
companies (guideline transaction method).

We believe that the discounted cash flovdehds sensitive to the selected discount ratetbadnarket approaches are sensitive to
valuation multiples used. We use third-party vabraspecialists to help develop the appropriatealist rate and valuation multiples. We use
standard valuation practices to arrive at a weijateerage cost of capital based on the market aigigne public companies. The higher the
discount rate, the lower the discounted cash flMdisile we believe that our estimate of future ctigivs and market approach valuations are
reasonable, different assumptions could signifigaaifect our valuations and result in impairmeintshe future.

During the fourth quarter of 2013, thirdagier of 2012 and the fourth quarter of 2011, wgaized a pre-tax non-cash goodwill
impairment charge of $0.3 million, $1.0 million af#l.2 million, respectively, related to our BRABPeeting unit within our Americas segme
As of December 31, 2013, the goodwill for BRAE Heebn fully impaired. The charges were taken asualtref reduced expectations regarc
the reporting unit.

As of our October 27, 2013 testing date hae approximately $516.4 million of goodwill onrdaalance sheet. Our impairment testing
indicated that the fair values of the reportingtsiexceeded the carrying values, thereby resulimg impairment. The results of the EMEA
reporting unit's quantitative impairment analysis summarized in the table below:

Book value of equity of Estimated fair value (implied
Goodwill balance at reporting unit at value of equity) at
October 27, 2013 October 27, 2013 October 27, 2013
(in millions)
Reporting
unit
EMEA € 161.¢ € 341.¢ € 400.(

The underlying analyses supporting ouryalue assessment are related to our comparablparoes' historical and projected results,
current transaction values and our outlook of aigiiess' longerm performance, which included key assumptiorts &dse appropriate rever
and EBITDA multiples, discount rate and long-terrovgth rate. In connection with our October 27, 2@hBairment test, we utilized a
discount rate of 10.5%, growth rates beyond ounrgley periods
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ranging from 0% to 5% and lortgfrm terminal growth rate of 3%. Future increasediscount rates due to changing interest rat@sderclining
economic environment and different market multiglesld impact our assumptions and the value ofeporting unit.

Intangible assets such as trademarks add trames are generally recorded in connectionanlitisiness acquisition. Values assigned to
intangible assets are determined by an indepenadurtion firm based on our estimates and judgmesgiarding expectations of the success
and life cycle of products and technology acquitedring 2013, 2012 and 2011, we recognized non-pasttax charges of approximately
$0.7 million, $0.4 million and $1.4 million, resgaely, as an impairment of certain of our indetinlived intangible assets. In addition, during
2011, we recognized non-cash pretax charges ob$tiBion as an impairment of certain amortizaliitangible assets in our EMEA segment.
The Company determined that the prospects for Afiek, part of our EMEA segment, were lower thaigiorally estimated due to current
operating profits below forecast and tempered &ugrowth expectations. Accordingly, the Companyqeared a fair value assessment and, a:
a result, wrote down the long-lived assets by $idilBon, or approximately 78%, including customrefationships of $12.1 million, trade
names of $1.4 million, and property, plant and poqént of $1.3 million. Fair value was based ondalisted cash flows using market
participant assumptions and utilized an estimateijiied average cost of capital. We subsequenthpteted the sale of Austroflex on
August 1, 2013 and Austroflex's results of operatibave been presented as discontinued operatioa$ periods presented.

Revised accounting guidance issued in 20ib#s us to perform a qualitative impairment assent of indefinite-lived intangible assets
consistent with the goodwill guidance noted preslguFor our 2013 impairment assessment, we peddrguantitative assessments for all
indefinite-lived intangible assets. The methodolagyemployed was the relief from royalty methoduhset of the income approach. That
impairment review occurred as of October 27, 2013.

Product liability and workers' compensation cc

Because of retention requirements assatiai our insurance policies, we are generallj-selured for potential product liability claims
and for workers' compensation costs associatedwatikplace accidents. We are subject to a variepotential liabilities in connection with
product liability cases and we maintain produdiilisy and other insurance coverage, which we lveli® be generally in accordance with
industry practices. For product liability casedhia U.S., management establishes its productitiabitcrual by utilizing third-party actuarial
valuations which incorporates historical trend dastand our specific claims experience derived flags reports provided by third-party
administrators. In other countries, we maintairuiasce coverage with relatively high deductiblerpapts, as product liability claims tend to
be smaller than those experienced in the U.S. Glsaimgthe nature of claims or the actual settleraerdunts could affect the adequacy of this
estimate and require changes to the provisionsalgexthe liability is an estimate, the ultimatéility may be more or less than reported.

Workers' compensation liabilities in theSUare recognized for claims incurred (includingjrals incurred but not reported) and for
changes in the status of individual case reseAMethe time a workers' compensation claim is filadiability is estimated to settle the claim.
The liability for workers' compensation claims stekmined based on management's estimates of tilme r@ad severity of the claims and be
on analysis provided by third-party administratansl by various state statutes and reserve requitsm&’e have developed our own trend
factors based on our specific claims experienagatdinted based on risk-free interest rates. Weantpird-party actuarial valuations to help
us estimate our workers' compensation accrualthera@ountries where workers' compensation costgpplicable, we maintain insurance
coverage with limited deductible payments. Becdhediability is an estimate, the ultimate liahjilinay be more or less than reported and is
subject to changes in discount rates.
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We determine the trend factors for prodiadility and workers' compensation liabilities lbdson consultation with outside actuaries.

We maintain excess liability insurance witktside insurance carriers to minimize our riskated to catastrophic claims in excess of all
self-insured positions. Any material change inafrementioned factors could have an adverse ingpaour operating results.

Legal contingencie

We are a defendant in numerous legal nwaittetuding those involving environmental law arrdquct liability as discussed in more detail
in Part I, Item 1. "Business—Product Liability, Eronmental and Other Litigation Matters." As requiby GAAP, we determine whether an
estimated loss from a loss contingency should beuad by assessing whether a loss is deemed peohatiithe loss amount can be reasonabl
estimated, net of any applicable insurance procéktien it is possible to estimate reasonably ptessilss or range of loss above the amount
accrued, that estimate is aggregated and discl&stidhates of potential outcomes of these contioigsrare developed in consultation with
outside counsel. While this assessment is basedl alpavailable information, litigation is inheréntincertain and the actual liability to fully
resolve litigation cannot be predicted with anyuagace of accuracy. In the event of an unfavorabteome in one or more legal matters, the
ultimate liability may be in excess of amounts euntly accrued, if any, and may be material to querating results or cash flows for a
particular quarterly or annual period. However,dahsn information currently known to us, managenhatieves that the ultimate outcome of
all legal contingencies, as they are resolved twe, is not likely to have a material adverse &ffin our financial condition, though the
outcome could be material to our operating redaltsiny particular period depending, in part, upfom operating results for such period.

Pension benefit

We account for our pension plans in acaoecdavith GAAP, which involves recording a liability asset based on the projected benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. Agstions are made regarding the valuation of beoéligations and the performance of plan
assets. The primary assumptions are as follows:

. Weighted average discount rate—this rate is teedtimate the current value of future benefitss rate is adjusted based on
movement in long-term interest rates.

. Expected long-term rate of return on assets—thésisaused to estimate future growth in investmantsinvestment earnings.
The expected return is based upon a combinatitwstdrical market performance and anticipated fiteturns for a portfolio
reflecting the mix of equity, debt and other inveshts indicative of our plan assets.

We determine these assumptions based @uitation with outside actuaries and investmentsams. Any variance in these assumptions
could have a significant impact on future recogdipension costs, assets and liabilities.

On October 31, 2011, our Board of Directarged to cease accruals effective December 311 g@dler both the Pension Plan and
Supplemental Employees Retirement Plan. We recadratailment charge of approximately $1.5 milliarthe fourth quarter of 2011 in
connection with this action. Effective NovembeP011, we began amortizing the unamortized gainda@ssis over the remaining life
expectancy of the participants instead of our forpwdicy of average remaining service period.

Income taxe

We estimate and use our expected annuedtefé income tax rates to accrue income taxegchkfe tax rates are determined based on
budgeted earnings before taxes, including our &&ghate of permanent items that will affect theafve rate for the year. Management
periodically reviews
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these rates with outside tax advisors and changemade if material variances from expectationddenstified.

We recognize deferred taxes for the expkftteire consequences of events that have beeattedl in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilitieslarermined based on differences between the baloles and tax bases of particular assets ar
liabilities, using tax rates in effect for the ygam which the differences are expected to reveé&saluation allowance is provided to offset any
net deferred tax assets if, based upon the avaiwhtlence, it is more likely than not that somalbof the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. We consider estimated future taxablerireand ongoing prudent tax planning strategiessessing the need for a valuation
allowance.

New Accounting Standard

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Stards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standardddte ("ASU") 2013t1, "Presentation (
an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operatingsl@arryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Qré€dirryforward Exists" which is
intended to eliminate the diversity in practicahe presentation of unrecognized tax benefits@sé¢hinstances. ASU 2013-11 is effective for
fiscal years and interim periods beginning aftec@&wsber 15, 2013, with early adoption permitted. @tieption of this guidance is not expec
to have a material impact on the Company's findistéements.

In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2053 "Parent's Accounting for the Cumulative Tratish Adjustment upon Derecognition
of Certain Subsidiaries or Groups of Assets witniforeign Entity or of an Investment in a Foreigntity.” This ASU is intended to eliminate
diversity in practice on the release of cumulatiamslation adjustment into net income when a gagither sells a part or all of its investment
in a foreign entity or no longer holds a contralifinancial interest. In addition, the amendmentthis ASU resolve the diversity in practice
the treatment of business combinations achievsthages (sometimes also referred to as step adguiiinvolving a foreign entity. The
provisions of this ASU are effective for interimcaannual periods beginning after December 15, 2@1itB,early adoption permitted, and must
be applied prospectively. The Company early adotitedASU in 2013. The adoption of this guidanceratshad a material impact on the
Company's financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2023*Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Acauated Other Comprehensive Incot
which requires additional disclosures about amoratkassified out of Other Comprehensive Incomelf®¢ component, either on the face of
the income statement or as a separate footnohe tiimancial statements. ASU 2013-02 is effectivefiscal years, and interim periods within
those years, beginning after December 15, 2012 a@lbption of this guidance has not had a materiphict on the Company's financial
statements.

ltem 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

We use derivative financial instrumentsnaiily to reduce exposure to adverse fluctuatiorfelieign exchange rates, interest rates and
costs of certain raw materials used in the manufag process. We do not enter into derivativeriitial instruments for trading purposes. As ¢
matter of policy, all derivative positions are usededuce risk by hedging underlying economic expe. The derivatives we use are
instruments with liquid markets. See Note 15 ofdddb the Consolidated Financial Statements irAomual Report on Form 1B-for the yeal
ended December 31, 2013.

Our consolidated earnings, which are reggbitt United States dollars, are subject to trdioslaisks due to changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. This risk is concentrated in ticbanxge rate between the U.S. dollar and the eluedtS. dollar and the Canadian dollar; and
the U.S. dollar and the Chinese yuan.
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Our foreign subsidiaries transact mostfess, including certain intercompany transactionfreign currencies. Such transactions are
principally purchases or sales of materials anddare@minated in European currencies or the U.Samadian dollar. We use foreign currency
forward exchange contracts to manage the riskaglat intercompany purchases that occur duringadliese of a year and certain open foreigr
currency denominated commitments to sell producthitd parties. For 2013, we recorded a $0.1 anilloss in other income associated with
the change in the fair value of such contracts.

We have historically had a low exposurégtancost of our debt to changes in interest rédésrmation about our long-term debt including
principal amounts and related interest rates agpaadote 10 of Notes to the Consolidated Finarstatements in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013.

We purchase significant amounts of bromgei, brass rod, cast iron, steel and plastic, whie utilized in manufacturing our many
product lines. Our operating results can be adiyeeséected by changes in commodity prices if we anable to pass on related price increase
to our customers. We manage this risk by monitoréigted market prices, working with our suppliersichieve the maximum level of stabi
in their costs and related pricing, seeking alteveasupply sources when necessary and passinggises in commodity costs to our customers
to the maximum extent possible, when they occur.

Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

The financial statements listed in secf@mn(1) of "Part IV, ltem 15. Exhibits and Finarlcéatement Schedules" of this annual report are
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) under theuides Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or Exgldct, as of the end of the period
covered by this report, we carried out an evalwmatioder the supervision and with the participatbour management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, tieteffectiveness of our disclosure controls andguiares. In designing and evaluating our
disclosure controls and procedures, we recognieatiny controls and procedures, no matter how desligned and operated, can provide only
reasonable assurance of achieving the desiredotatfectives, and our management necessarily epjts judgment in evaluating and
implementing possible controls and procedures. éffextiveness of our disclosure controls and praceslis also necessarily limited by the
staff and other resources available to us andeogrgphic diversity of our operations. Based upan ¢valuation, the Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, ashef €nd of the period covered by this report, osicldsure controls and procedures were
effective, in that they provide reasonable asswdhat information required to be disclosed byruthe reports we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegadted within the time periods specified in 8exurities and Exchange Commission's
rules and forms and are designed to ensure tt@aniattion required to be disclosed by us in the nspbat we file or submit under the
Exchange Act are accumulated and communicatedrttmanagement, including our Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguiegd disclosure.

There was no change in our internal cortvelr financial reporting that occurred during tharter ended December 31, 2013, that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, our internal control over financi@porting. In connection with these rules, we
will continue to review and document our discloscoatrols and procedures, including our internaitaa over financial reporting, and may
from time to time make changes aimed at enhantieig éffectiveness and to ensure that our systemisewith our business.
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Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsibledtablishing and maintaining adequate internatrobover financial reporting as defined
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15t5(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Tompany's internal control over financial repaytis designed |
provide reasonable assurance regarding the rétjabflfinancial reporting and the preparation ofaincial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipteez The Company's internal control over finahmporting includes those policies and
procedures that:

0) pertain to the maintenancerefcords that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionste
assets of the Company;

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions@eded as necessary to permit preparation ofiiahstatements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes; and that receipts and expenditures of theg2my are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of manageraed directors of the Company; and

(i)  provide reasonable assurance regarding prigwe or timely detection of unauthorized acqusitiuse or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material affetite financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

Management, including our Chief Executiviic@r and Chief Financial Officer, assessed tHeaiveness of the Company's internal
control over financial reporting as of December&113. In making this assessment, management heediteria set forth by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway CommisgZSO) in Internal Control—Integrated Frameworfq2).

Based on our assessment and those criteaidagement believes that the Company maintairiedtie® internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2013.

The independent registered public accogrfirm that audited the Company's consolidatedrai@ statements included elsewhere in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K has issued an auditrtepothe Company's internal control over finanecgdorting. That report appears
immediately following this report.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Watts Water Technologies, Inc.:

We have audited Watts Water Technologi®s,d internal control over financial reportinga$ecember 31, 2013, based on criteria
established imnternal Control—Integrated Framework (19985ued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway
Commission (COSO). Watts Water Technologies, Imsdsagement is responsible for maintaining effeciternal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectisemd internal control over financial reportingclided in the accompanyirMdanagement's
Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financialg®eting . Our responsibility is to express an opinion om @ompany's internal control o
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgiet8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is:. audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness eaististesting and evaluating the design and operaffiectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audit also included perfaggreich other procedures as we considered necesghgy/circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opini

A company's internal control over finangigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repagtincludes those policies and procedures thatdftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witibaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabsurance regarding prevention or timely detecfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could havaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaubject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Watts Water Technologies;.Imaintained, in all material respects, effectnternal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2013, based on criteria establishbdemal Control—Integrated Framework (1998sued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogbtd8oard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Watts Water Techmsplnc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 20832012, and the related consolidatec
statements of operations, comprehensive incomeklstdders' equity, and cash flows for each of tharg in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2013, and our report dated Februgr@@4 expressed an unqualified opinion on thossa@daated financial statements.

/sl KPMG LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 27, 2014

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.
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PART Il

ltem 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNRCE.

Information with respect to the executificers of the Company is set forth in Part I, It&nof this Report under the caption "Executive
Officers and Directors" and is incorporated hetsineference. The information provided under thatioas "Information as to Nominees for
Director," "Corporate Governance," and "Sectiora)@eneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" im definitive Proxy Statement for our
2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held aayM4, 2014 is incorporated herein by reference.

We have adopted a Code of Business Coragapticable to all officers, employees and Board tners. The Code of Business Conduct is
posted in the Investor Relations section of oursitebyww.wattswater.comWe will provide you with a print copy of our CodéBusiness
Conduct free of charge on written request to KemifetLepage, Secretary, Watts Water Technolognes, 815 Chestnut Street, North
Andover, MA 01845. Any amendments to, or waiverstioé Code of Business Conduct which apply to diefeexecutive officer, chief
financial officer, corporate controller or any pamsperforming similar functions will be disclosed our website promptly following the date of
such amendment or waiver.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information provided under the captitidBector Compensation,” "Corporate Governanc€drhpensation Discussion and Analys
"Executive Compensation,” "Compensation Committgerlocks and Insider Participation,” and "Compé¢nsaCommittee Report” in our
definitive Proxy Statement for our 2014 Annual Megtof Stockholders to be held on May 14, 2014&orporated herein by reference.

The "Compensation Committee Report" comtaiim our Proxy Statement shall not be deemedcigoly material” or “filed" with the
Securities and Exchange Commission or otherwisgsutm the liabilities of Section 18 of the Seties Exchange Act of 1934, nor shall it be
deemed incorporated by reference in any filingseurnkle Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Axtept to the extent we specifically
request that such information be treated as salicihaterial or specifically incorporate such imf@tion by reference into a document filed
under the Securities Act or Exchange Act.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANDMANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS.

The information appearing under the capt®mincipal Stockholders” in our definitive ProxyaBment for our 2014 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held on May 14, 2014 is incaapeat herein by reference.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Cpensation Plans

The following table provides information@sDecember 31, 2013, about the shares of Clagamon stock that may be issued upon the
exercise of stock options issued under the Compa@stond Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incd?itive and the settlement of restricted
stock units granted under our Management StockiageePlan as well as the number of shares remdiming
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future issuance under our Second Amended and Rds2804 Stock Incentive Plan and Management StaothBse Plan.

Equity Compensation Plan Information
Number of securities remaining

Number of securities to be available for future issuance
issued upon exercise of Weighted-average exercist under equity compensation
outstanding options, price of outstanding options, plan (excluding securities
warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (c)
Equity
compensatiol
plans
approved by
security
holders 1,171,89(1)$ 40.1¢ 2,547,42(2)
Equity
compensatiol
plans not
approved by
security
holders None None None
Total 1,171,89(1)$ 40.1¢ 2,547,42(2)

Q) Represents 1,029,067 outstanding options 8r#b6 deferred restricted stock awards under tkertgeAmended and
Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, and 131,87}anding restricted stock units under the Managé@tk Purchase

Plan.

(2) Includes 1,650,400 shares available for futureainsa under the Second Amended and Restated 2064 IStentive
Plan, and 897,029 shares available for future resander the Management Stock Purchase

ltem 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, ANDDIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

The information provided under the captit@erporate Governance" and "Certain Relationshimb Related Transactions" in our
definitive Proxy Statement for our 2014 Annual Megtof Stockholders to be held on May 14, 2014&orporated herein by reference.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

The information provided under the captiBatification of Independent Registered Public Acgting Firm" in our definitive Proxy
Statement for our 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockhdde be held on May 14, 2014 is incorporated Inelogireference.
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PART IV

ltem 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES .

(a)(1) Financial Statements

The following financial statements are ut#d in a separate section of this Report commgrairnthe page numbers specified below:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfimg 55
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the ye@dsd December 31, 2013,

2012 and 201 56
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomthéoyears ended

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2( 57
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&01201: 58
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equitytferyears ended

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2( 59
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the ymailed December 31, 2013,

2012 and 201 60
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 61

(a)(2) Schedules

Schedule ll—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts fbetyears ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2( 101

All other required schedules for which gsian is made in the applicable accounting regoitegiof the Securities and Exchange
Commission are included in the Notes to the Codatdid Financial Statements.

(a)(3) Exhibits
The exhibits listed in the Exhibit Indexrimadiately preceding the exhibits are filed as phathis Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, rbgistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By: /s/ DEAN P. FREEMAN

Dean P. Freeman
Chief Executive Officer, President and
Chief Financial Officel

DATED: February 27, 2014

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidrelow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Title Date

Chief Executive Officer, President
and Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Executive Officer and Principal
Financial Officer)

/sl DEAN P. FREEMAN

February 27, 2014
Dean P. Freeman

/sl KENNETH S. KOROTKIN Chief Accounting Officer

(Principal Accounting Officer)

February 27, 2014
Kenneth S. Korotikir

/sl ROBERT L. AYERS

Director February 27, 2014
Robert L. Ayers
/sl BERNARD BAERT
Director February 27, 2014
Bernard Baer
/sl KENNETT F. BURNES
Director February 27, 2014
Kennett F. Burne
/s RICHARD J. CATHCART
Director February 27, 2014
Richard J. Cathca
/sl W. CRAIG KISSEL
Director February 27, 2014
W. Craig Kisse
53
Signature Title Date
/s/ JOHN K. MCGILLICUDDY
Chairman of the Board February 27, 2014

John K. McGillicuddy

/sl JOSEPH T. NOONAN Director February 27, 2014




Joseph T. Noona

/sl MERILEE RAINES

Director February 27, 2014
Merilee Raine:
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Watts Water Technologies, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying conselitlbtlance sheets of Watts Water Technologiesaht subsidiaries as of December 31,
2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statsmé&operations, comprehensive income, stockingldguity, and cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended Decenthe2(3 3. In connection with our audits of the cditksted financial statements, we also hav
audited the financial statement Schedule II—Vatraand Qualifying Accounts. These consolidatedrfaia statements and financial
statement schedule are the responsibility of the@zmy's management. Our responsibility is to exgpa@sopinion on these consolidated
financial statements and financial statement sdedasised on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €lgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenenelaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated finanatdtements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the financial position of Watts
Water Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries as oebBdxer 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of tipeiradions and their cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended Decenthet(3 3, in conformity with U.S. generally accepéedounting principles. Also in our
opinion, the related financial statement scheduhlen considered in relation to the basic consaidifihancial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly, in all material respects, the infation set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatd8oard (United States), Watts Water
Technologies, Inc.'s internal control over finaheogporting as of December 31, 2013, based onrizigstablished iiternal Control—
Integrated Framework (199issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report
dated February 27, 2014 expressed an unqualifisdompon the effectiveness of the Company's intiecoatrol over financial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 27, 2014
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Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(Amounts in millions, except per share information)

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Net sales $ 1,473+ $ 1,427« $ 1,407..
Cost of goods sol 947.( 913.¢ 899.(

GROSS PROFI 526.t 513.t 508.<
Selling, general and administrative exper 405.7 381.( 371.t
Restructuring and other charges, 8.7 4.2 8.8
(Gain on) adjustment to disposal of busir (0.6) 1.€ (7.7)
Goodwill and other lor-lived asset impairment charg 1.2 3.4 2.3

OPERATING INCOME 111.f 123.% 133.f
Other (income) expens

Interest incom: (0.6) (0.7 (1.0)

Interest expens 21t 24.¢ 25.¢

Other expense (income), r 2.8 (0.8) 0.8
Total other expens 23.i 23.1 25.€
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE

INCOME TAXES 87.¢ 100.2 107.¢
Provision for income taxe 26.¢ 29.¢ 30.7
NET INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATION! 60.¢ 70.¢ 77.2
Loss from discontinued operations, net of te (2.9 (2.0 (10.8)
NET INCOME $ 58.€ $ 68.4 $ 66.4
Basic EPS

Income (loss) per shar

Continuing operation $ 1.7z $ 1.9¢ $ 2.07
Discontinued operatior (0.06) (0.06) (0.29)
NET INCOME $ 165 $ 1.9C $ 1.7¢
Weighted average number of sha 35.5 36.( 37.8
Diluted EPS
Income (loss) per shar
Continuing operation $ 1718 198 $  2.0¢
Discontinued operatior (0.07) (0.05) (0.28)
NET INCOME $ 165 $ 1.9C $ 1.7¢
Weighted average number of sha 35.¢€ 36.1 37.t
Dividends per shar $ 05 $ 04 % 04

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Amounts in millions)

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Net income $ 58.€ $ 684 $ 66.4
Other comprehensive income (los
Foreign currency translation adjustme 23.t 14.5 (16.9
Foreign currency adjustment for sale of foreigritet — — (8.6)
Defined benefit pension plans, net of t
Net loss, net of tax benefits of $0.8, $4.1, and $2 2013, 2012
and 2011, respective 1.3 (6.5) (4.2
Amortization of prior service cost included in petriodic pension
cost, net of tax expense of $0.1 in 2( — — 0.2
Amortization of net losses included in net perioggénsion cost,
net of tax expense of $0.4, $0.2, and $1.0 in 22032 and
2011, respectivel 0.6 0.4 1.7
Reduction in obligation related to pension curtaitip net of tax
expense of $5.4 in 201 — — 8.€
Defined benefit pension plans, net of (0.7) (6.2) 6.2
Other comprehensive income (lo 22.¢ 8.2 (18.7)
Comprehensive incon $ 814 $ 76.6 $ 47.7

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Amounts in millions, except share information)

December 31

2013 2012
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel $ 267.¢ $ 271:
Shor-term investment securitie 2.1
Trade accounts receivable, less allowance for doludtcounts of $9.7 in
2013 and $9.5 in 201 212.¢ 206.2
Inventories, ne 310. 288.(
Prepaid expenses and other as 35.C 22.t
Deferred income taxe 29.¢ 21.t
Assets held for sal 1.2 —
Assets of discontinued operatic — 11.7
Total Current Asset 857.] 823.%
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NE’ 219.¢ 221.7
OTHER ASSETS
Goodwill 514.¢ 504.(
Intangible assets, n 132.¢ 145.¢
Deferred income taxe 3.€ 4.¢
Other, ne 12.2 9.€
TOTAL ASSETS $1,740.. $1,709.(
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabl $ 145¢ $ 131.:
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 135.2 116.€
Accrued compensation and bene 43.¢ 41.¢
Current portion of lon-term debt 2.2 77.1
Liabilities of discontinued operatiol — iz
Total Current Liabilities 326.¢ 368.4
LONG-TERM DEBT, NET OF CURRENT PORTIO 305.k 307.t
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 45.¢ 44.¢
OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 59.¢ 48.7

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred Stock, $0.10 par value; 5,000,000 shartsorized; no shares

issued or outstandir — —
Class A common stock, $0.10 par value; 80,000,0@0es authorized; 1

vote per share; issued and outstanding, 28,824[F&&s in 2013 and

28,673,639 shares in 2012 2.¢ 2.¢
Class B common stock, $0.10 par value; 25,000,6@0es authorized; 10

votes per share; issued and outstanding, 6,48%/28@s in 2013 and

6,588,680 shares in 20. 0.€ 0.€
Additional paic-in capital 473.F 448.
Retained earning 513.1 498.1
Accumulated other comprehensive income (i 12.C (10.%)

Total Stockholders' Equit 1,002.: 939.t

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $1,740.0 $1,709.(

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

(Amounts in millions, except share information)

Class A Class B Accumulated

C Stock C Stock Additional Other Total
LIS SN 2c Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Stockholders'

Shares Amount Shares  Amount Capital Earnings  Income (Loss) Equity

Balance at
December 31,
2010 30,102,67 $ 3.C 6,953,68 $ 07 $ 4052 $ 492¢ $ 0.3 $ 901.t
Comprehensive
income (loss 66.4 (18.7) 477
Shares of
Class A
common
stock issued
upon the
exercise of
stock options 247,87( — 5.4 54
Stock-based
compensatio 8.3 8.3
Stock
repurchasi (2,000,001 (0.2 (27.) (27.2)
Issuance of
shares of
restricted
Class A
common
stock 79,43¢ — (0.5) (0.5
Net change in
restricted
stock units 41,42¢ — 1.2 (0.3 0.8
Common stock
dividends (16.7) (16.%)
Balance at
December 31,
2011 29,471,41 $ 2.8 6,953,68 $ 0.7 $ 420.1 $ 5151 $ (19.0 $ 919.¢
Comprehensive
income 68.4 8.2 76.€
Shares of
Class B
common
stock
converted to
Class A
common
stock 365,00( 0.1 (365,00() (0.2
Shares of
Class A
common
stock issued
upon the
exercise of
stock options 589,79¢ 0.1 17.7 17.€
Stock-based
compensatio 6.€ 6.€
Stock
repurchasi (2,000,001 (0.2 (65.€) (65.€)
Issuance of nel
shares of
restricted
Class A
common
stock 141,76 — (0.8 (0.8
Net change in
restricted
stock units 105,66( — 4.3 3.0 1.3
Common stock
dividends (16.0) (16.0
Balance at
December 31,
2012 28,673,63 $ 2.
Comprehensive
income 58.€ 22.¢ 81.4
Shares of
Class B
common
stock
converted to
Class A
common
stock 99,39( — (99,390 —

[{e]

6,588,68' $ 0€ $ 44871 $ 4981 $ (10.¢) $ 939.¢



Shares of
Class A
common
stock issued
upon the
exercise of
stock options

Stock-based
compensatio

Stock
repurchase

Issuance of ne
shares of
restricted
Class A
common
stock

Net change in
restricted
stock units

Common stock
dividends

Balance at
December 3:
2013

361,09 — 11.¢ 11.¢
9.6 9.6

(453,88 — (23.0 (23.0
75,59 — (1.6) (1.6)
68,04« — 3.3 (1.9 20
(17.9) (17.9)

2882477 $ 22 648929 $ 0€ $  473F $ 5131 $ 12.0 $ 1,002.:

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Amounts in millions)

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 58€ $ 684 $ 662
Loss from discontinued operations, net of te (2.9) (2.0) (10.¢)
Net income from continuing operation 60.¢ 70.4 77.2
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing rgpiens to net cash provided by
continuing operating activitie
Depreciatior 34.z 33.1 32.1
Amortization of intangible: 147 15.2 15.¢
(Gain) loss on disposal and impairment of goodwilhperty, plant and equipme
and other 1.t 4.1 (9.¢)
Stocl-based compensatic 9.€ 6.€ 8.
Deferred income taxe (6.€) — 3.7
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffetts from business acquisitic
and divestures
Accounts receivabl (3.9 2.C 3.1
Inventories (17.9) (7.7) 3.1
Prepaid expenses and other as (14.5) 1.1 (8.9
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiied 39.t 4.7 1.5
Net cash provided by continuing operatit 118.% 130.% 126.]
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipm: (27.7) (30.5) (22.5
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and eqeiitt iLE 0.z 0.€
Investments in securitie — (2.7 (8.2)
Proceeds from sale of asset held for — 3.C —
Proceeds from sale of securit 2.1 4.1 8.1
Purchase of intangible assets and o — (0.3 (0.9
Business acquisitions, net of cash acqu — (17.5) (165.5
Net cash used in investing activiti (24.7) (42.9) (188.7)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from lor-term debt — 9.2 184.(
Payments of lor-term debt (77.2) (23.9) (168.0
Payment of capital leases and ot (4.8 2.9 (2.€)
Proceeds from share transactions under employek gtans 11.¢ 17.¢ 5.4
Tax benefit of stock awards exercis il 0.c 0.6
Payments to repurchase common st (23.0 (65.¢) (27.2)
Dividends (17.7) (16.0) (16.%)
Net cash used in financing activiti (109.9 (80.7) (23.€
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casiaémts 4.1 3.2 7.2
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activiiEdiscontinued operatior (0.7 3.2 0.2)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activibésliscontinued operatioi 7.€ 8.% (0.2)
(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (3.4) 21. (79.0)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 271.% 249.¢ 328.¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAF $ 267¢ $ 2710 $  249¢
NON CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of businesse
Fair value of assets acquir $ — $ 252 $ 225t
Cash paid, net of cash acquil — 17.5 165.5
Liabilities assume: $ — $ 77 $ 60C
Acquisitions of fixed assets under financing agreet $ 37 % 1.1 $ 4.2
Issuance of stock under management stock purchias $ 07 $ 0 $ 0.4
CASH PAID FOR:
Interest $ 21t $ 23¢ $ 244
Taxes $ 327 $ 271 $ 35E

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(1) Description of Business

Watts Water Technologies, Inc. (the Compathyough its subsidiaries, designs, manufactangssells an extensive line of water safety
and flow control products primarily for the wateradjity, water conservation, water safety and whbev control markets located predominar
in the Americas and Europe, Middle East and Af(ERIEA) with a presence in Asia Pacific.

(2) Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidatio

The consolidated financial statements idelthe accounts of the Company and its majorityveimally owned subsidiaries. Upon
consolidation, all significant intercompany accauand transactions are eliminated.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of instrumenth wétnaining maturities of three months or leshatdate of purchase and consist primarily of
certificates of deposit and money market fundswbich the carrying amount is a reasonable estim@tair value.

Investment Securitie

Investment securities at December 31, 2@i&isted of certificates of deposit with origingturities of greater than three months. The
Company did not hold investment securities at Ddmam31, 2013.

Trading securities are recorded at faiugallhe Company determines the fair value by olstgimarket value when available from quo
prices in active markets. In the absence of quptegs, the Company uses other inputs to deterthiméair value of the investments. All
changes in the fair value as well as any realizédsgand losses from the sale of the securitieseggded when incurred to the consolidated
statements of operations as other income or expense

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

Allowance for doubtful accounts includesarves for bad debts, sales returns and allowarzksash discounts. The Company analyzes
the aging of accounts receivable, individual act®uaceivable, historical bad debts, concentratioreceivables by customer, customer credit
worthiness, current economic trends, and changesgstomer payment terms. The Company specificalffyaes individual accounts receive
and establishes specific reserves against findp¢ialibled customers. In addition, factors areadeped in certain regions utilizing historical
trends of sales and returns and allowances anddissbunt activities to derive a reserve for resuaind allowances and cash discounts.

Concentration of Credit

The Company sells products to a diversifiestomer base and, therefore, has no signifiaamtentrations of credit risk. In 2013 and
2012, no customer accounted for 10% or more oCini@pany's total sales.
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Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)

(2) Accounting Policies (Continued)

Inventories are stated at the lower of ¢osing primarily the first-in, first-out method) market. Market value is determined by
replacement cost or net realizable value. Histbrisage is used as the basis for determining #erve for excess or obsolete inventories.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill is recorded when the considerapiaid for acquisitions exceeds the fair value dftargible and intangible assets acquired.
Goodwill and other intangible assets with inde@initseful lives are not amortized, but rather astetkat least annually for impairment. The tes

for 2013 was performed as of October 27, 2013.

Impairment of Goodwill and Lor-Lived Assets

The changes in the carrying amount of galbdhy geographic segment are as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 201

Gross Balance Accumulated Impairment Losses Net Goodwill
Acquired Foreign

Balance During Currency Balance Balance  Impairment Balance

January 1, the Translation December 31, January 1, Loss During December 31, December 31
2013 Period and Other 2013 2013 the Period 2013 2013
(in millions)
Americac$ 2256$% —$ (0.9% 2247% (249% (0.9$  (245$ 200
EMEA 289.7 — 11.€ 301.% — — — 301.%
Asia
Pacific 12.€ — 0.4 13.: — — — 13.:
Total $ 528.$ —$ 111$ 539.:% (242% (09$ (245$ 5l4cf
Year Ended December 31, 201
Gross Balance Accumulated Impairment Losses Net Goodwill
Acquired Foreign

Balance During Currency Balance Balance  Impairment Balance

January 1, the Translation December 31 January 1, Loss During December 31, December 31
2012 Period and Other 2012 2012 the Period 2012 2012
(in millions)
Americas $ 213.6 $ 117 $ 018% 2256 % (2329% Q0% (24.9) $ 201.¢
EMEA 281.1 — 8.€ 289.7 — — — 289.7
Asia

Pacific 12.7 — 0.2 12.¢ — — 12.¢

Total $§ 507.6$ 11.7$ 8E3$ 528:% (23298 (LOS$  (242$  504(

Goodwill is tested for impairment at leashually or more frequently if events or circumstsindicate that it is "more likely than not"
that goodwill might be impaired, such as a changauisiness conditions. The Company performs itsiangoodwill impairment assessment in

the fourth quarter of each year.

The Company determined that the future gerots for its Blue Ridge Atlantic Enterprises, I(BRAE) reporting unit in the Americas we
lower than originally estimated as future salesaghoexpectations had been reduced a number of times the 2010 acquisition of BRAE. 7

Company recorded pre-tax goodwill impairment charge$0.3 million, $1.0 million and $1.2 million 2013,
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Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
(2) Accounting Policies (Continued)

2012 and 2011, respectively, for that reporting.uftie BRAE goodwill balance was fully impaired2013. The goodwill impairment charges
were offset by the reduction in anticipated earmpaytments of equal amounts, with no remaining a#rhability as of December 31, 2013. 1
Company estimated the fair value of the reportinig using the expected present value of future €asvs.

As of October 28, 2012, which was the pragiannual impairment analysis date, the fair vafube EMEA reporting unit exceeded the
carrying value by approximately 40%. The EMEA rdjpay unit represents the EMEA geographic segmeciueiing the Bliicher reporting ur
During the six months ended June 30, 2013, operagisults for the EMEA reporting unit had been leiredl by the downturn in the economic
environment in Europe and continued to fall belbe €xpected operating results and growth ratesingbeé calculation of the present value of
future cash flow projections, triggering the demisto update the impairment analysis. As a reguhefair value assessment, it was deterrr
that the fair value of the EMEA reporting unit deased from the prior year but continued to excesedairrying value as of June 30, 2013. An
updated fair value assessment was performed aintigal impairment date of October 27, 2013. Theatgutifair value assessment determinec
that the fair value of the EMEA reporting continuedexceed its carrying value by approximately 2692013.

On January 31, 2012, the Company compltedcquisition of tekmar Control Systems (teknag share purchase transaction. The
initial purchase price paid was CAD $18.0 milliovith post-closing adjustments related to workingita and an earnout based on the
attainment of certain future earnings levels. Thtail purchase price paid was equal to approxifga&7.8 million based on the exchange rate
of Canadian dollar to U.S. dollar as of JanuaryZ8iL,2. The total purchase price will not exceed C¥¥B.2 million. The Company accounted
for the transaction as a business combinationahudry 2013, the Company completed a purchase gtamation that resulted in the
recognition of $11.7 million in goodwill and $10adillion in intangible assets (see Note 5).

Indefinite-lived intangibles are tested fmpairment at least annually or more frequentigviénts or circumstances, such as a change in
business conditions, indicate that it is "morelijikhan not" that the intangible asset might beaimgd. The Company performs its annual
indefinite-lived intangibles impairment assessmerthe fourth quarter of each year. For the 2003, 22and 2011 impairment assessments, the
Company performed quantitative assessments fangefinite-lived intangible assets. The methodolegyployed was the relief from royalty
method, a subset of the income approach. Basddeoresults of the assessment the Company recogmizedash pre-tax impairment charges
in 2013, 2012 and 2011 of approximately $0.7 milli$§0.4 million and $1.4 million, respectively. Timepairment charge of $0.7 million in
2013 consists of a $0.3 million impairment charged trade name in the Americas segment and anilidn impairment charge for two trade
names in the EMEA segment. The gross carrying atriathe table below reflects the impairment charge

Intangible assets with estimable lives atigbr long-lived assets are reviewed for impairnvaménever events or changes in circumstanc
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset setagroup may not be recoverable. Recoverabiliintaihgible assets with estimable lives and
other long-lived assets is measured by a compadstre carrying amount of an asset or asset grodyture net undiscounted pretax cash
flows expected to be generated by the asset or gisae. If these comparisons indicate that antass®t recoverable, the impairment loss
recognized is the amount by which the carrying amofithe asset or asset group exceeds the radatedated fair value. Estimated fair value
is based on either discounted future pretax opeyatash flows or appraised values, depending onahee of the asset. The Company
determines the discount rate for this analysis dhasethe weighted average cost of capital baseti@market and guideline public
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companies for the related businesses and doedloxdta interest charges to the asset or assepdp@ing measured. Judgment is required to
estimate future operating cash flows.

Intangible assets include the following:

December 31

2013 2012
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
(in millions)
Patents $ 166 $ (1260 $ 4C $ 165 $ (11.7) $ 4.e
Customer relationshiy 133.( (76.9) 56.€ 131.¢ (65.9 65.5
Technology 26.¢ (10.9) 16.C 27.4 (9.0) 18.2
Trade name 13.7 (3.0 10.7 13t (1.8 11.7
Other 8.¢ (5.€) 3.2 8.7 (5.F) 3.2
Total amortizable
intangibles 199.( (108.5) 90.E 197.F (93.9  103.¢
Indefinite-lived intangible
asset: 41.€ — 41.€ 41.¢ — 41.¢
Total $ 240 $ (1085 $ 132< $ 239. $ (93.9 $ 145.

Aggregate amortization expense for amadtinéangible assets for 2013, 2012 and 2011 was7$hdlion, $15.4 million and
$15.8 million, respectively. Additionally, futurermrtization expense on amortizable intangible assetxpected to be $14.9 million for 2014,
$14.7 million for 2015, $14.2 million for 2016, $83million for 2017, and $10.0 million for 2018. Aumization expense is provided on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lokthe intangible assets. The weighted-averagairgnyg life of total amortizable intangible
assets is 8.4 years. Patents, customer relatiaghighnology, trade names and other amortizatdagibles have weighted-average remaining
lives of 5.6 years, 5.6 years, 11.4 years, 10.8syaad 40.2 years, respectively. Indefinite-livethngible assets primarily include trade names
and trademarks.

Property, Plant and Equipme

Property, plant and equipment are recoedexst. Depreciation is provided on a straight-liasis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, which range from 10 to 40 years for bujlsliand improvements and 3 to 15 years for machizmedyequipment.

Taxes, Other than Income Taxes

Taxes assessed by governmental authooitissle transactions are recorded on a net basixatuded from sales in the Company's
consolidated statements of operations.

Income Taxe

Income taxes are accounted for under thetamd liability method. Deferred tax assets #@tllities are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences betwe=firthncial statement carrying amounts of existingets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carwefrds. Deferred tax assets and liabilities arasueed using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which thteseporary differences
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are expected to be recovered or settled. The affedeferred tax assets and liabilities of a changex rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date.

The Company recognizes tax benefits wheritém in question meets the more-likely-than-igoeéter than 50% likelihood of being
sustained upon examination by the taxing authgjitiereshold. During 2013, due to the completiotheffederal audit, unrecognized tax
benefits decreased by approximately $3.7 millidatesl to an adjustment to temporary differencesdithnot impact overall income tax
expense.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company hadgjunrecognized tax benefits of approximately $@llBon, approximately $0.2 million of
which, if recognized, would affect the effective tate. The difference between the amount of urgeized tax benefits and the amount that
would affect the effective tax rate consists of flbderal tax benefit of state income tax items a8 &s a liability related to the 2011 acquisition
of Danfoss Socla S.A.S (Socla) in France thatbélrecoverable under the terms of the acquisitipaeament.

A reconciliation of the beginning and erglamount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows

(in millions)
Balance at January 1, 20 $ 4.€
Increases related to prior year tax positi 0.1
Decreases related to prior year tax positi (0.2
Settlement: (3.9
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 0.8

In February 2013, the United States InteRevenue Service concluded an audit of the Comp&09, 2010 and 2011 tax years. The
Company conducts business in a variety of locatibraughout the world resulting in tax filings immerous domestic and foreign jurisdictic
The Company is subject to tax examinations regukslpart of the normal course of business. Thepaamyis major jurisdictions are the U.S.,
Canada, China, Netherlands, U.K., Germany, Itaty Brance. With few exceptions the Company is ngéorsubject to U.S. federal, state and
local, or non-U.S. income tax examinations for gda&fore 2007. The statute of limitations in oujongurisdictions is open in the U.S. for the
year 2010 and later; in Canada for 2009 and latat;in the Netherlands for 2012 and la

The Company accounts for interest and piesakelated to uncertain tax positions as a corapbaf income tax expense.
Foreign Currency Translatio

The financial statements of subsidiariesated outside the United States generally are megésising the local currency as the functional
currency. Balance sheet accounts, including goddofiforeign subsidiaries are translated into EdiBtates dollars at year-end exchange rate
Income and expense items are translated at weiglverdge exchange rates for each period. Net &tgosigains or losses are included in othe
comprehensive income, a separate component ofteitzides' equity. The Company does not provide f@&.lihcome taxes on foreign currency
translation adjustments since it does not provides@ich taxes on undistributed earnings of forsigimsidiaries. Gains and losses from foreign
currency transactions of these subsidiaries ataded in net earnings.
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Stock-Based Compensation, Former Chief ExecutifieddSeparation Costs and Former Chief Financidfic@r Retention Costs

The Company records compensation expenthe ifinancial statements for share-based awarstsdban the grant date fair value of those
awards. Stock-based compensation expense incladestinate for pre-vesting forfeitures and is rexipgd over the requisite service periods
of the awards on a straight-line basis, which isegally commensurate with the vesting term. Theefimassociated with tax deductions in
excess of recognized compensation cost are repastadinancing cash flow.

At December 31, 2013, the Company had twoksbhased compensation plans with total unreceghtompensation costs related to
unvested stock-based compensation arrangemenp@abamately $20.8 million and a total weighted eage remaining term of 2.5 years.
Included in the $20.8 million of unrecognized comgegion costs is $4.5 million related to equity edsgpreviously granted to David J.
Coghlan, the Company's former Chief Executive @ffiavhich will not be recognized. Refer to Notef@éBdetails on Mr. Coghlan's resignat
on January 9, 2014. For 2013, 2012 and 2011, tmep@ny recognized compensation costs related tt-&t@sed programs of approximately
$9.6 million, $5.8 million and $5.3 million, resgaely, in selling, general and administrative expes. The Company recorded approximately
$1.2 million of tax benefits during 2013 and $0.iflion in 2012 and 2011 for the compensation expemdating to its stock options. For 2013,
2012 and 2011, the Company recorded approximate illion, $1.4 million and $1.5 million, respeatly, of tax benefit for its other stock-
based plans. For 2013, 2012 and 2011, the recogrufitotal stock-based compensation expense iragdxith basic and diluted net income
per common share by $0.14, $0.10 and $0.09, raégphct

On May 23, 2012, William C. McCartney rasig from his position as Chief Financial Officertioé Company. Pursuant to the retention
agreement entered into with Mr. McCartney, the Canyprecorded a charge of $1.5 million over themi@ period, consisting of cash
payments of $0.7 million and a non-cash chargedd #illion for the modification of stock optionadrestricted stock awards

On January 26, 2011, Patrick S. O'Keefigynesl from his positions as Chief Executive Offideresident and Director. Pursuant to a
separation agreement, the Company recorded a chbffe3 million consisting of $3.3 million in exgied cash severance and a non-cash
charge of $3.0 million for the modification of skoaptions and restricted stock awards.

Net Income Per Common Shz

Basic net income per common share is cafledlby dividing net income by the weighted averagmber of common shares outstanding.
The calculation of diluted income per share assutmesonversion of all dilutive securities (see &bR).
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Net income and number of shares used t@uatemet income per share, basic and assumingdifution, are reconciled below:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Per Per Per
Net Share Net Share Net Share
Income Shares Amount Income Shares Amount Income Shares Amount

(Amounts in millions, except per share information)

Basic EP¢ $ 58.t 35 $ 16t $ 68.1 36.C $ 19C $ 66.£ 372 $ 1.7¢
Dilutive

securitis

principe

commo

stock

options — 0.1 — — 0.1 — — 0.2 —
Diluted

EPS $ 58.€ 35.6 $ 1.6t $ 68. 36.1 $§ 1.9C $ 66.4 37t $ 1.7¢

The computation of diluted net income gwars for the years ended December 31, 2013, 20d.2@il excludes the effect of the poter
exercise of options to purchase approximately Qlom, 0.2 million and 0.7 million shares, respegety, because the exercise price of the
option was greater than the average market pritieeo€lass A common stock and the effect would Heeen anti-dilutive.

On April 30, 2013, the Board of Directorgteorized the repurchase of up to $90.0 milliothef Company's Class A common stock from
time to time on the open market or in privately etgted transactions. The timing and number of #trgres repurchased will be determined by
the Company's management based on its evaluatioradfet conditions. Repurchases may also be madkr @nRule 10b5-1 plan, which
would permit shares to be repurchased when the @oynmight otherwise be precluded from doing so wigder trading laws. The
repurchase program may be suspended or discontatuety time, subject to the terms of any Rule 1Diptan the Company may enter into
with respect to the repurchase program. During/fee ended December 31, 2013, the Company rep@dizgproximately 454,000 shares of
Class A common stock at a cost of approximately.Gadllion.

On May 16, 2012, the Board of Directorshatized a stock repurchase program of up to twéanishares of the Company's Class A
common stock. The stock repurchase program was letadpn July 2012, as the Company repurchasedritiee two million shares of Class
common stock at a cost of approximately $65.8 arilli

On August 2, 2011, the Board of Directartharized a stock repurchase program. Under thgrano, the Company was authorized to
repurchase up to one million shares of our ClassAmon stock. During the three months ended Oct®p2011, the Company repurchased
the entire one million shares at a cost of $27 llani

Financial Instrument:

In the normal course of business, the Cammpaanages risks associated with commodity prifoesign exchange rates and interest rates
through a variety of strategies, including the okkedging transactions, executed in accordandetw&é Company's policies. The Company's
hedging transactions include, but are not limitedhe use of various derivative financial and cardity instruments. As a matter of policy, 1
Company does not use derivative instruments utiiess is an underlying exposure. Any change inevalithe derivative instruments would
be substantially offset by an
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opposite change in the value of the underlying kddtems. The Company does not use derivativeuimgnts for trading or speculative
purposes.

Derivative instruments may be designatatiatounted for as either a hedge of a recognigset ar liability (fair value hedge) or a het
of a forecasted transaction (cash flow hedge).aHair value hedge, both the effective and ineffecportions of the change in fair value of the
derivative instrument, along with an adjustmentt carrying amount of the hedged item for faiueathanges attributable to the hedged risk
are recognized in earnings. For a cash flow hedligmges in the fair value of the derivative insteathat are highly effective are deferred in
accumulated other comprehensive income or lossthetunderlying hedged item is recognized in eagsi There were no cash flow hedges a
of December 31, 2013 or December 31, 2012.

If a fair value or cash flow hedge wereéase to qualify for hedge accounting or be tertathat would continue to be carried on the
balance sheet at fair value until settled, but eeltzrounting would be discontinued prospectivélg.forecasted transaction were no longer
probable of occurring, amounts previously defeiredccumulated other comprehensive income woulstbegnized immediately in earnings.
On occasion, the Company may enter into a derigatistrument that does not qualify for hedge actingrbecause it is entered into to offset
changes in the fair value of an underlying trarieacivhich is required to be recognized in earnifiggural hedge). These instruments are
reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets avéile with changes in fair value recognized imaays.

Foreign currency derivatives include ford/éareign exchange contracts primarily for Canadialttars. Metal derivatives include
commodity swaps for copper.

Portions of the Company's outstanding debtexposed to interest rate risks. The Companytarsrits interest rate exposures on an
ongoing basis to maximize the overall effectiverefsss interest rates.

Fair Value Measuremen

Fair value is defined as the exchange ghaewould be received for an asset or paid tosfiex a liability (an exit price) in the principai
most advantageous market for the asset or lialilign orderly transaction between market participan the measurement date. An entity is
required to maximize the use of observable inputgre available, and minimize the use of unobséevialputs when measuring fair value.

The Company has certain financial asseaddiahilities that are measured at fair value ar@urring basis and certain nonfinancial assets
and liabilities that may be measured at fair valne nonrecurring basis. The fair value disclosofdhese assets and liabilities are based on
three-level hierarchy, which is defined as follows:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identicakéssr liabilities that the entity has
the ability to access at the measurement 1

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, sgaofjuated prices for similar assets
or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that ao¢ active or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observablkendata for substantially the
full term of the assets or liabilitie

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by littta@market activity and that are
significant to the fair value of the assets orilitibs.
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Assets and liabilities subject to this hrehy are classified in their entirety based onldleest level of input that is significant to thearf
value measurement. The Company's assessmentsifjthificance of a particular input to the fair valmeasurement in its entirety requires
judgment and considers factors specific to thetamd@bility.

Shipping and Handling

Shipping and handling costs included itirsgl general and administrative expense amouraté$8.4 million, $37.0 million and
$36.9 million for the years ended December 31, 202032 and 2011, respectively.

Research and Developme

Research and development costs includedliing, general, and administrative expense ansoltat $21.5 million, $20.4 million and
$20.5 million for the years ended December 31, 22032 and 2011, respectively.

Revenue Recognitic

The Company recognizes revenue when alefollowing criteria have been met: the Compaay éntered into a binding agreement, the
product has been shipped and title passes, the [mate to the customer is fixed or is determinaatel collectability is reasonably assured.
Provisions for estimated returns and allowancesrerge at the time of sale, and are recorded aduatien of sales and included in the
allowance for doubtful accounts in the Consoliddathnce Sheets. The Company records provisionsafes incentives (primarily volume
rebates), as an adjustment to net sales, at tleedfirpale based on estimated purchase targets.

Basis of Presentatio

Certain amounts in the 2012 and 2011 casteste!d financial statements have been reclasdifi@@rmit comparison with the 2013
presentation. These reclassifications had no effieceported results of operations or stockhold=ysity.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfenetttae reported amounts of assets and liakslgied disclosure of contingent assets anc
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeantsl the reported amounts of revenues and expdunsieg the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

New Accounting Standar:

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Stards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standardddte ("ASU") 20131, "Presentation ¢
an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operatingsl@arryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Qr€dirryforward Exists" which is
intended to eliminate the diversity in practicahe presentation of unrecognized tax benefitsasé¢hinstances. ASU 2013-11 is effective for
fiscal years and interim periods beginning aftec&maber 15, 2013, with early adoption permitted. &tieption of this guidance is not expec
to have a material impact on the Company's findistéements.
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In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2053 "Parent's Accounting for the Cumulative Tratish Adjustment upon Derecognition
of Certain Subsidiaries or Groups of Assets withiforeign Entity or of an Investment in a Foreigtity." This ASU is intended to eliminate
diversity in practice on the release of cumulatremslation adjustment into net income when a gagither sells a part or all of its investment
in a foreign entity or no longer holds a contrdlifinancial interest. In addition, the amendmentthis ASU resolve the diversity in practice
the treatment of business combinations achievetbiges (sometimes also referred to as step adgugiinvolving a foreign entity. The
provisions of this ASU are effective for interimcaannual periods beginning after December 15, 2@itB,early adoption permitted, and must
be applied prospectively. The Company early adofitedASU in 2013. The adoption of this guidance atshad a material impact on the
Company's financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2023“Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Acauated Other Comprehensive Incot
which requires additional disclosures about amoratkassified out of OCI by component, either omfilice of the income statement or as a
separate footnote to the financial statements. 2818B-02 is effective for fiscal years, and intepariods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2012. The adoption of this guidansenibdhad a material impact on the Company's filmhstatements.

(3) Discontinued Operations

On August 1, 2013, the Company completedstie of all of the outstanding shares of an @tliwholly-owned subsidiary, Watts
Insulation GmbH (Austroflex), receiving net casbgeeds of $7.9 million. Austroflex is an Austriaasked manufacturer of pre-insulated
flexible pipe systems for district heating, solpplcations and under-floor radiant heating systetusstroflex did not meet performance
expectations since its purchase approximately theaes ago on June 28, 2010. The loss after taksposal of the business was approximatel
$2.2 million. Further, during the year ended Decengi, 2011, the Company wrote down Austroflex®itived assets by $14.8 million. The
Company will not have a substantial continuing imement in Austroflex's operations and cash floavg] therefore Austroflex's results of
operations have been presented as discontinuedtimmer for all periods presented.

On December 21, 2012, the Company compltiedale of all of the outstanding shares oftitss&liary, Flomatic Corporation (Flomatis
The sale excluded the backflow product line of Ftim which was retained by the Company. Flomatigp@ration, located in Glens Falls,
New York, specializes in manufacturing and sellthgck valves, foot valves and automatic hydrauittiol valves for the well water industi
The Company acquired Flomatic as part of its ad¢misof Socla in April 2011. The Company determdribat it would not have a substantial
continuing involvement in Flomatic's operations aagh flows, and therefore Flomatic's results @rapons have been presented as
discontinued operations for all periods presented.

In the first quarter of 2010, the Compaegarded an estimated reserve of $5.3 million inahsinued operations in connection with its
investigation of potential violations of the FoneiGorrupt Practices Act (FCPA) at Watts Valve (Gfshra) Co., Ltd. (CWV), a former indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in China. @ctober 13, 2011, the Company entered into eesettht for $3.8 million with the
Securities and Exchange Commission to resolveati@ys concerning potential violations of the FC&ACWYV. In connection with this matt
in 2012, the Company received a $1.1 million paynfiemm a service provider related to issues coringra former divested operation.
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Condensed operating statements for distoed operations are summarized below:

Years Ended
December 31

2013 2012 2011
(in millions)
Operating incor—FCPA matter (CWV $ — $ 11 $ 17
Operating incom—Flomatic — 1.3 0.4
Loss on dispos—Flomatic — (3.9 —
Operating (loss) incon—Austroflex (0.2 0.2 (16.9)
Loss on dispos—Austroflex (2.2 —
Other — 0.2 0.2
Loss before income taxi (2.4 (0.9 (14.¢
Income tax benefit (expens 0.1 (1.2) 3.€
Loss from discontinued operations, net of te $ 23 % (20 $ (10.9

The Company did not recognize a tax bewgfithe loss on the disposal of the Flomatic anstifiex shares, as the Company does not
believe it is more likely than not that a tax béebuld be realized.

Revenues reported in discontinued operatiwa as follows:

Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(in millions)
Flomatic revenue $ — $ 12¢ $ 8E
Austroflex revenue 9.5 18.2 20.7
Total revenue $ 95 $ 311 $ 29.2

(4) Restructuring and Other Charges, Net

The Company's Board of Directors approviesiajor restructuring programs that involve theatintinuance of significant product lines or
the shutdown of significant facilities. From timeetime, the Company takes additional restructuacaiipns, including involuntary terminations
that are not part of a major program. The Compaepants for these costs in the period that theviddal employees are notified or the
liability is incurred. These costs are includedestructuring and other charges in the Companylisalmated statements of operations.

2013 Actions

On July 30, 2013, the Board of Directorthatized a restructuring program with respect to@ompany's EMEA segment to reduce its
European manufacturing footprint by approximated§dl improve organizational and operational effickeand better align costs with expec
revenues in response to changing market conditidms restructuring program is expected to inclugeeatax charge to earnings totaling
approximately $14.0 million, approximately $10.0lmn of which is expected to be recorded throuighdl 2014 and the remainder recorded
during fiscal 2015. The total charge will includests for severance benefits, relocation, site elgarprofessional fees and certain
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asset write-downs. The total net after-tax chaogetfe restructuring program is expected to be @pprately $10.0 million. The restructuring
program is expected to be completed by the enldeofdurth quarter of fiscal 2015. Certain aspetth® restructuring program are subject to
further analysis and determinations by local mansege and consultation and negotiation with variwaskers' councils. The net after-tax
charge incurred in fiscal 2013 was $2.9 million.

2011 Actions

In April 2011, the Board approved an inggn program in association with the acquisitibisocla. The program was designed to
integrate certain operations and management stescof Socla with a total estimated pre-tax cost@# million, with costs being incurred
through 2012. The Company revised its forecastta #illion primarily to reflect reduced severamosts. The total net after-tax charge was
$2.8 million, with costs being fully incurred in 2B. As of December 31, 2013, the restructuringruesaas zero.

2010 Actions

On February 8, 2010, the Board approvessaucturing program with respect to the Compaopgéyating facilities in France. The
restructuring program included the consolidatiofive# facilities into two facilities. The programas originally expected to include pre-tax
charges totaling approximately $12.5 million, irdihg costs for severance, relocation, site cleanngcertain asset write-downs. Prior to
2013, the Company revised its forecast to $17.liamiprimarily to reflect additional severance dadal costs. In 2013, the Company recorde:
additional severance costs of $0.7 million for totzsts of $17.8 million. The 2010 restructuringgmam is substantially complete. As of
December 31, 2013, the restructuring reserve wamilion and related to severance costs.

On September 13, 2010, the Board approvedteucturing program with respect to certainhe&f Company's operating facilities in the
United States. The restructuring program includedshutdown of two manufacturing facilities in No@arolina. Operations at these facilities
have been consolidated into the Company's manufiagtfacilities in New Hampshire, Missouri and ath@cations. The program originally
included pre-tax charges totaling approximateh@$Hillion, including costs for severance, shutdawests and equipment write-downs and pre
tax training and pre-production set-up costs ofrapimately $2.0 million. The Company revised itsefcast to $2.5 million due to reduced
shutdown costs. The total net after-tax chargéhisrrestructuring program was approximately $1lifion. The restructuring program was
completed in 2012.

Other Actions

The Company also periodically initiatesestactions which are not part of a major prograotallOther Actions" pre-tax restructuring
expense was $5.2 million, $3.5 million and $3.6liomlin 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

In 2013, the Company initiated restructgrattivities with respect to the Company's opegatatilities in EMEA, which included the
relocation and closure of a manufacturing facilitytaly and other relocation initiatives in Europe 2012, the Company initiated restructuring
activities in North America and Europe which contid into 2013. The restructuring activities in &raericas included the relocation of cert
production activities, which included the closufe@ananufacturing site, severance and shutdowrs ¢qo$dorth America. The restructuring
activities included costs for
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severance, fixed asset impairment and shut-dowts.cAdditional expected pre-tax costs through 2&5$0.4 million.

During 2011, the Company initiated sevacions that were not part of a major program.dpt8mber 2011, the Company announced a
plan of termination that would result in a reductiaf approximately 10% of North American non-dirpayroll costs. The Company recorded a
charge of $1.1 million for severance in connectigit the plan during the year ended December 31128Iso in 2011, the Company initiated
restructuring activities with respect to the Compaioperating facilities in Europe, which includée closure of a facility. The Europe
restructuring activities included pre-tax costapproximately $4.0 million, including costs for seance and shut-down costs. All costs were
incurred as of December 31, 2012.

During 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Compangraed a credit in restructuring and other chargesrelated to the reduction in the
contingent liability for the anticipated earnouyp®nt in connection with the BRAE acquisition of $@nillion, $1.0 million and $1.2 million,
respectively.

A summary of the pre-tax cost by restruamiprogram is as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011

(in millions)

Restructuring costt

2010 Actions $ 07 $ 0€ $ 3.3

2011 Actions — 1.1 3.1

2013 Actions 4.1 — —

Other Actions 5.2 3.5 3.€
Total restructuring charge 10.C 5.2 10.C
Adjustment related to contingent liability reducti (0.2) (1.0 (1.2
Less: amount included in cost of goods ¢ (1.2) — —
Total restructuring and other charges, $ 87 $ 42 $ 8.8

The Company recorded pre-tax restructuchmyges in its business segments as follows:

Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012 2011

(in millions)
Americas $ 12 $13 $ 1.2
EMEA 8.7 3.¢ 8.€
Asia Pacific — — 0.2
Total $ 10.C $ 5.2 $ 10.C
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2013 Actions

Details of the Company's 2013 Europeangiaat program reserve, which for the year endededdzer 31, 2013 only relates to severance
is as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, 2013

(in millions)
Balance at December 31, 2C $ —
Net pre-tax restructuring charges 4.1
Utilization and foreign currency impact (2.2)
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 2.C

The following table summarizes total expélctincurred and remaining pre-tax costs for 20a&®gean footprint program actions by type,
and all attributable to the EMEA reportable segment

Facility
Legal and Asset exit
Severance consultancy write -downs and other Total
(in millions)

Expected cost $ 1258 % 12 $ 02 $ 0.2 $ 14.C
Costs incurrec—2013 (4.7) — — — (4.7)
Remaining costs at December 3:

2013 $ 82 $ 13 $ 0.2 $ 02 $ 9¢

(5) Business Acquisitions and Disposition
tekmar

On January 31, 2012, the Company complstedcquisition of tekmar in a share purchase ér@ion. A designer and manufacturer of
control systems used in heating, ventilation, andanditioning applications, tekmar enhances tben@any's hydronic systems product
offerings in the U.S. and Canada and is part ofAttnericas segment. The initial purchase price pad CAD $18.0 million, with an earn-out
based on future earnings levels being achievedinitial purchase price paid was equal to approxatya$17.8 million based on the exchange
rate of Canadian dollar to U.S. dollars as of JanBa, 2012. The total purchase price will not @dt€AD $26.2 million. Sales for tekmar in
2011 approximated $11.0 million. The Company actedifor the transaction as a business combinafioa.Company completed a purchase
price allocation that resulted in the recognitidi$dl.7 million in goodwill and $10.1 million in fangible assets. Intangible assets consist
primarily of acquired technology with an estimaliéel of 10 years, distributor relationships with @stimated life of 7 years, and a trade name
with an estimated life of 20 years. The goodwilhig expected to be deductible for tax purposes.réBults of tekmar are not material to the
Company's consolidated financial statements. Thaltseof operations for tekmar are included in@wnpany's Americas segment since
acquisition date.

In 2012, a contingent liability of $5.1 tioh was recognized as the estimate of the acdprisitate fair value of the contingent
consideration. A portion of the contingent consadien was paid out during 2013, in the amount o2$iillion, based on performance metrics
achieved in 2012. The contingent liability was g&sed by $1.0 million during the year ended 20E&tha&n performance metrics achieved or
expected to be achieved.
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Socla

On April 29, 2011, the Company completeal dlequisition of Socla and the related water cégtvasiness of certain other entities
controlled by Danfoss A/S, in a share and assathase transaction. The final consideration paideums 116.3 million. The purchase price
was financed with cash on hand and euro-basedwimge under our Prior Credit Agreement. The pureharice was equal to approximately
$172.4 million based on the exchange rate of eutd.§. dollars as of April 29, 2011.

The Company accounted for the transactsoa business combination. The Company completetich@ase price allocation that resulted ir
the recognition of $83.1 million in goodwill and %3 million in intangible assets. Intangible assetssist primarily of customer relationships
with estimated lives of 10 years and trade nam#s eiiher 20 year lives or indefinite lives.

The consolidated statement of operationshi® year ended December 31, 2011 includes thétsexf Socla since the acquisition date and
includes $94.8 million of revenues and $1.6 milladroperating income, which includes acquisition@amting charges of $4.7 million and
restructuring charges of $2.7 million.

TWVC

In March 2010, in connection with the Comya manufacturing footprint consolidation, the Qmy closed the operations of Tianjin
Watts Valve Company Ltd. (TWVC) and relocated itsmuafacturing to other facilities. On April 12, 201Be Company signed a definitive
equity transfer agreement with a third party té e Company's equity ownership and remainingtasseT WVC. The sale was finalized in
fourth quarter of 2011. The Company received net@eds of approximately $6.1 million from the sahel recorded a receivable for the
remaining proceeds. The Company recognized a eefaprgain of $7.7 million and an after-tax gaimapproximately $11.4 million relating
mainly to the recognition of a cumulative tranglatadjustment and a tax benefit related to thersavef a tax claw back in China. In 2013 anc
2013, the Company recorded adjustments to dectkaggin on disposal by $1.6 million and incredsedain on disposal by $0.6 million,
respectively.

(6) Inventories, net
Inventories consist of the following:

December 31

2013 2012
(in millions)
Raw material $ 111 $ 110.¢
Work-in-process 19.1 20.5
Finished good 179.¢ 156.%

$ 3102 $ 288.(

Raw materials, work-in-process and finisgedds are net of valuation reserves of $29.9 anilind $27.7 million as of December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively. Finished goods of Béliion and $13.5 million as of December 31, 2@t® 2012, respectively, were
consigned.
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Property, plant and equipment consist effttlowing:

December 31

2013 2012
(in millions)

Land $ 152z $ 15.¢
Buildings and improvemen 166.: 156.¢
Machinery and equipme 353.2 322t
Construction in progres 4.5 15.t

539.2 510.z
Accumulated depreciatic (319.9 (288.5)

$ 219¢ $ 221.5

(8) Income Taxes
The significant components of the Compadgfterred income tax liabilities and assets arfelésvs:

December 31

2013 2012
(in millions)
Deferred income tax liabilitie:
Excess tax over book depreciat $ 222 $ 23.7
Intangibles 29.1 30.t
Other 18.: 15.7
Total deferred tax liabilitie 69.¢ 69.¢
Deferred income tax asse
Accrued expense 21.: 16.7
Net operating loss car-forward 10.¢ 5.4
Inventory reserve 12.2 8.€
Pensio—accumulated other comprehensive incc 16.2 15.¢
Other 9.€ 14.¢
Total deferred tax asse 70.€ 61.2
Less: valuation allowanc (13.7) (10.7)
Net deferred tax asse 57. 51.c
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (12.%) $ (18.6
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The provision for income taxes from contimguoperations is based on the following pre-tacome:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(in millions)

Domestic $21€ $ 27 $ 39.¢

Foreign 66.2 72.€ 68.2

$ 87.6 $ 100.z $ 107.¢

The provision for income taxes from contimguoperations consists of the following:

Years Ended
December 31

2013 2012 2011
(in millions)
Current tax expens
Federal $ 126 $ 5C $ 6.€
Foreign 19.7 21.t 18.2
State 2.5 1.3 1.8

35.C 27.¢ 27.C

Deferred tax expense (benef

Federal (5.0 4.4 B3
Foreign (2.3 (3.9 (3.0
State (0.8 1.1 1.2

(81  2C 3.7
$ 265 $ 296 $ 307

Actual income taxes reported from contiguirperations are different than would have beenpeted by applying the federal statutory
rate to income from continuing operations befordine taxes. The reasons for this difference afellasvs:

Years Ended
December 31

2013 2012 2011
(in millions)
Computed expected federal income expe $ 30.6 $ 35.C $ 37.€
State income taxes, net of federal tax bel 1.C 1.t 1.¢
Foreign tax rate differenti (5.7) (7.4 (4.9
China tax clawbac — — (4.2
Other, ne 0.€ 0.7 (0.9

$ 26 $ 29.6 $ 30.7

At December 31, 2013, the Company had doreiet operating loss carry forwards of $43.5 wnillfor income tax purposes before
considering valuation allowances; $32.0 milliortloé losses can be carried forward indefinitely &b@l.5 million expire in 2020. The net
operating losses consist of
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$29.8 million related to Austrian operations, $&#lion to Italian operations, and $11.5 millionButch operations.

At December 31, 2013 and December 31, 26E2Company had valuation allowances of $13.lioniland $10.1 million, respectively. .
December 31, 2013, $6.1 million relates to U.Sitehfwsses and $7.0 million relates to Austriah operating losses. At December 31, 2012,
the entire $10.1 million related to U.S. capitades. Management believes that the ability of th@@any to use such losses within the
applicable carry forward period does not rise wl#vel of the more likely than not threshold. TW@mpany does not have a valuation
allowance with respect to other deferred tax asastsmanagement believes that it is more likely that that the Company will recover such
deferred tax assets.

Changes enacted in income tax laws hadatenml effect on the Company in 2013, 2012 or 2011

Undistributed earnings of the Company'sifpm subsidiaries amounted to approximately $38illon at December 31, 2013,
$329.7 million at December 31, 2012, and $282.%anilat December 31, 2011. Those earnings are dered to be indefinitely reinvested &
accordingly, no provision for U.S. federal and statcome taxes has been recorded thereon. Upaoibdti&in of those earnings, in the form of
dividends or otherwise, the Company will be subjeatithholding taxes payable to the various foneiguntries. Determination of the amount
of U.S. income tax liability that would be incurrisdnot practicable because of the complexities@ated with its hypothetical calculation;
however, unrecognized foreign tax credits may kaélable to reduce some portion of any U.S. incoaxdiability. Withholding taxes of
approximately $11.3 million would be payable upemittance of all previously unremitted earning®atember 31, 2013.

(9) Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other liabilities iredf the following:

December 31

2013 2012
(in millions)
Commissions and sales incentives pay. $ 40t $ 40.€
Product liability and workers' compensat 33.t 31.4
Other 56.€ 42.F
Income taxes payab 4.€ 2.1

$ 135.2 $ 116.¢
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Long-term debt consists of the following:

December 31

2013 2012
(in millions)

5.85% notes due April 201 $ 225.C $ 225.(

5.47% notes due May 20: — 75.C

5.05% notes due June 20 75.C 75.C
Other—consists primarily of European borrowings (at ietd

rates ranging from 5.0% to 6.0¢ 7.7 9.€

307.7 384.¢

Less Current Maturitie 2.2 77.1

$ 305.f $ 307.F

Principal payments during each of the riegtyears and thereafter are due as follows (iifions): 2014—$2.2; 2015—$2.3; 2016—
$226.5; 2017—$1.7; 2018—%$0.0, and thereafter—$75.0.

The Company maintains letters of credit tharantee its performance or payment to thirtiggin accordance with specified terms and
conditions. Amounts outstanding were approxima$28.6 million as of December 31, 2013 and $34.8anilas of December 31, 2012. The
Company's letters of credit are primarily assocdiatéh insurance coverage and, to a lesser extmatign purchases. The Company's letters of
credit generally expire within one year of issuaand are drawn down against the revolving creditifp. These instruments may exist or
expire without being drawn down. Therefore, theyndbnecessarily represent future cash flow oyt

On June 18, 2010, the Company enteredaimote purchase agreement with certain institutiowastors (the 2010 Note Purchase
Agreement). Pursuant to the 2010 Note Purchaseefggat, the Company issued senior notes of $75lmih principal, due June 18, 2020.
The Company will pay interest on the outstandinigibge of the Notes at the rate of 5.05% per anpayable semi-annually on June 18 and
December 18 until the principal on the Notes shatlome due and payable. The Company may, at isngpipon notice, and subject to the
terms of the 2010 Note Purchase Agreement, preparyyatime all or part of the Notes in an amourttlass than $1 million by paying the
principal amount plus a makehole amount (which is dependent upon the yieltkepective U.S. Treasury securities). The 2010 Rorehas
Agreement includes operational and financial conéavith which the Company is required to compigjuding, among others, maintenance
of certain financial ratios and restrictions onitiddal indebtedness, liens and dispositions. ABetember 31, 2013, the Company was in
compliance with all covenants related to the 20b8eNPurchase Agreement.

On June 18, 2010, the Company enteredaimi@dit agreement (the Prior Credit Agreement)raptbhe Company, certain subsidiaries of
the Company who become borrowers under the PriediCAgreement, Bank of America, N.A., as Admirasire Agent, swing line lender and
letter of credit issuer, and the other lendersrreteto therein. The Prior Credit Agreement prodifier a $300 million, five-year, senior
unsecured revolving credit facility which could leadveen increased by an additional $150 million uedetain circumstances and subject to
terms of the Prior Credit Agreement. The Prior @rAdreement had a sublimit of up to $75.0 millionetters of credit. Borrowings
outstanding under the Prior Credit Agreement boterést at a fluctuating rate per annum equal tim the case of Eurocurrency rate loans, the
British Bankers Association LIBOR rate
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plus an applicable percentage, ranging from 1.7®%30%, determined by reference to the Compawyisalidated leverage ratio plus, in the
case of certain lenders, a mandatory cost calclulataccordance with the terms of the Prior Créditeement, or (ii) in the case of base rate
loans and swing line loans, the highest of (a)f¢lderal funds rate plus 0.5%, (b) the rate of edein effect for such day as announced by E
of America, N.A. as its "prime rate," and (c) thetBh Bankers Association LIBOR rate plus 1.0%ugan applicable percentage, ranging f
0.70% to 1.30%, determined by reference to the Gmyip consolidated leverage ratio. In additionawpipg interest under the Prior Credit
Agreement, the Company was also required to pagiogiees in connection with the credit facilityciuding, but not limited to, a facility fee
and letter of credit fees.

Under the Prior Credit Agreement, the Conypaas required to satisfy and maintain specifiadricial ratios and other financial condit
tests. As of December 31, 2013, the Company wasrimpliance with all covenants related to the P@ordit Agreement and had
$276.4 million of unused and available credit urttier Prior Credit Agreement, $23.6 million of stemdletters of credit outstanding on the
Prior Credit Agreement and no borrowings outstagdinder the Prior Credit Agreement.

On February 18, 2014, the Company terméhtite Prior Credit Agreement and entered into a Gesdit Agreement (the New Credit
Agreement) among the Company, certain subsidiafitse Company who become borrowers under the Chegteement, JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line ldar and Letter of Credit Issuer, and the otherdesideferred to therein. The New Credit
Agreement provides for a $500 million, five-yean®r unsecured revolving credit facility which mag increased by an additional
$500 million under certain circumstances and sulifethe terms of the New Credit Agreement. The Neredit Agreement has a sublimit of
up to $100 million in letters of credit. Borrowingststanding under the New Credit Agreement bearest at a fluctuating rate per annum
equal to an applicable percentage equal to (féncase of Eurocurrency rate loans, the BritishkBeAssociation LIBOR rate plus an
applicable percentage, ranging from 0.975% to 1,4%8termined by reference to the Company's coraelitieverage ratio plus, in the case o
certain lenders, a mandatory cost calculated inraence with the terms of the New Credit Agreemen(ii) in the case of base rate loans and
swing line loans, the highest of (a) the federabfsirate plus 0.5%, (b) the rate of interest ieaffor such day as announced by JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A. as its "prime rate," and (c) thiéidh Bankers Association LIBOR rate plus 1.0%uspén applicable percentage, ranging
from 0.00% to 0.45%, determined by reference taQbmpany's consolidated leverage ratio. In addiiiopaying interest under the New Cre
Agreement, the Company is also required to payirefées in connection with the credit facilitycinding, but not limited to, an unused
facility fee and letter of credit fees. The Crefigreement matures on February 18, 2019, subjemttension under certain circumstances and
subject to the terms of the New Credit Agreemehe Tompany may repay loans outstanding under te@tedit Agreement from time to
time without premium or penalty, other than custgmaeakage costs, if any, and subject to the terfiise New Credit Agreement.

The New Credit Agreement imposes variogtrieions on the Company and its subsidiarieduiting restrictions pertaining to: (i) the
incurrence of additional indebtedness, (i) linitats on liens, (iii) making distributions, dividesmdnd other payments, (iv) mergers,
consolidations and acquisitions, (v) dispositiohassets, (vi) the maintenance of minimum constdidaet worth, certain consolidated
leverage ratios and consolidated interest covenratis, (vii) transactions with affiliates, (vidhanges to governing documents, and
(ix) changes in control.
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On April 27, 2006, the Company completgatigate placement of $225.0 million of 5.85% seniosecured notes due April 2016 (the
2006 Note Purchase Agreement). The 2006 Note Psechgreement includes operational and financiatnawnts, with which the Company is
required to comply, including, among others, maiatece of certain financial ratios and restrictionsadditional indebtedness, liens and
dispositions. Events of default under the 2006 Nhatechase Agreement include failure to comply wgHinancial and operational covenants,
as well as bankruptcy and other insolvency evérte.Company may, at its option, upon notice tortbie holders, prepay at any time all or
part of the Notes in an amount not less than $1llbmby paying the principal amount plus a makkele amount, which is dependent upon
the yield of respective U.S. Treasury securitiessoADecember 31, 2013, the Company was in comggiavith all covenants related to the
2006 Note Purchase Agreement. The payment of stterethe senior unsecured notes is due semi-agrarafpril 30™ and October 38 of
each year.

On May 15, 2003, the Company completedat® placement of $125.0 million of senior unsecunotes consisting of $50.0 million
principal amount of 4.87% senior notes due 2010$#%0 million principal amount of 5.47% senioremtue May 2013. In May 2010, the
Company repaid $50.0 million in principal of 4.8&%nior notes due upon maturity. The Company refh@i&75.0 million of unsecured senior
notes that matured on May 15, 2013 during the gezimded June 30, 2013 with available cash.

(11) Common Stock

The Class A common stock and Class B comstack have equal dividend and liquidation rigiach share of the Company's Class A
common stock is entitled to one vote on all matsetsmitted to stockholders, and each share of ®assnmon stock is entitled to ten votes
all such matters. Shares of Class B common stazka@mvertible into shares of Class A common stooka one-to-one basis, at the option of
the holder. As of December 31, 2013, the Compauyréserved a total of 3,719,322 of Class A comnooksfor issuance under its stock-
based compensation plans and 6,489,290 sharesrfeersion of Class B common stock to Class A comstook.

On April 30, 2013, the Board of Directorgteorized the repurchase of up to $90 million & @ompany's Class A common stock from
time to time on the open market or in privately stéaged transactions. The timing and number ofgtrgres repurchased will be determined by
the Company's management based on its evaluatioradfet conditions. Repurchases may also be madkr @nRule 10b5-1 plan, which
would permit shares to be repurchased when the @oynmight otherwise be precluded from doing so wigder trading laws. The
repurchase program may be suspended or discontatuet) time, subject to the terms of any Rule 1Diptan the Company may enter into
with respect to the repurchase program. During 20&8Company repurchased approximately 454,00@shd Class A common stock at a
cost of approximately $23.0 million.

On May 16, 2012, the Board of Directorshatized a stock repurchase program of up to twéanishares of the Company's Class A
common stock. The stock repurchase program was letadpn July 2012, as the Company repurchasedritiee two million shares of Class
common stock at a cost of approximately $65.8 arilli

On August 2, 2011 the Board of Directorthatized a stock repurchase program. Under theranogthe Company was authorized to
repurchase up to one million shares of our ClassAmon stock. During the three months ended Oct®p2011, the Company repurchased
the entire one million shares at a cost of $27 IRani
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As of December 31, 2013, the Company maistavo stock incentive plans under which key empés have been granted incentive stoc
options (ISOs) and nonqualified stock options (NBOgurchase the Company's Class A common stogk. @e plan, the Second Amended
and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, is cugr@nvthilable for the grant of new stock options, ethare currently being granted only to
employees. Under the 2004 Stock Incentive Planpoeptecome exercisable over a four-year periddeatate of 25% per year and expire ten
years after the grant date. ISOs and NSOs grameer the plans may have exercise prices of nothess100% of the fair market value of
Class A common stock on the date of grant. The Gmyip current practice is to grant all optionsaatt fnarket value on the grant date. At
December 31, 2013, 1,650,400 shares of Class A amstock were authorized for future grants of newity awards under the Company's
2004 Stock Incentive Plan.

The Company grants shares of restrictetksdad deferred shares to key employees and steafda to non-employee members of the
Company's Board of Directors under the 2004 Stackitive Plan. Stock awards to non-employee mendieéhee Company's Board of
Directors vest immediately, and employees resttisteck awards and deferred shares vest over e-yiei@ period at the rate of one-third per
year. The restricted stock awards and deferrecestae amortized to expense on a str-line basis over the vesting period.

The Company also has a Management StoahBRse Plan that allows for the granting of restdattock units (RSUs) to key employees.
On an annual basis, key employees may elect taveeagportion of their annual incentive compensatioRSUs instead of cash. Each RSU
provides the key employee with the right to purehashare of Class A common stock at 67% of thierfarket value on the date of grant.
RSUs vest either annually over a three-year pdrimd the grant date or upon the third anniversdmhe grant date and receipt of the shares
underlying RSUs is deferred for a minimum of thyears or such greater number of years as is chinstre employee. An aggregate of
2,000,000 shares of Class A common stock may bedssnder the Management Stock Purchase Plan. dgrblger 31, 2013, 897,029 shares
of Class A common stock were authorized for fugnants under the Company's Management Stock PwéHas.

2004 Stock Incentive Plan

At December 31, 2013, total unrecognizemhpensation cost related to the unvested stock mpti@as approximately $10.6 million with a
total weighted average remaining term of 2.9 yeaws.2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company recognizetpeasation cost of $3.8 million,
$2.1 million and $1.6 million, respectively, in k&g, general and administrative expenses. The Gayppecognized additional stock
compensation expense in 2012 of approximately 80ll&n in connection with the modification of oformer Chief Financial Officer's optio
related to his retention agreement. The Compamygrézed additional stock compensation expense 11 20 approximately $2.2 million in
connection with the modification of the former Ciriexecutive Officer's options related to his sefiaraagreement.
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The following is a summary of stock optiactivity and related information:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average
Exercise Intrinsic Exercise Exercise
Options Price Value Options Price Options Price

(Options in thousands)
Outstanding at

beginning of yea 1,06¢ $ 33.3i 1,272 $ 30.4: 1,30: $ 29.0C
Granted 37¢ 54.7¢ 41k 37.61 29t 29.3¢
Cancelled/Forfeiture (53 36.91 (33 31.1¢ (78) 30.3¢
Exercisec (360 31.7: (590 30.1¢ (249 21.6¢
Outstanding at end «

year 1,02¢ $ 4166 $ 20.2] 1,066 $ 33.3i 1,272 $ 30.4:
Exercisable at end ¢

year 24¢ $ 323t $ 29.50 36C $ 30.91 745 $ 30.61

As of December 31, 2013, the aggregatesitr value of exercisable options was approxinya$&l.3 million, representing the total piae¢
intrinsic value, based on the Company's closing&£h common stock price of $61.87 as of DecembeR@13, which would have been
received by the option holders had all option hiddixercised their options as of that date. Thed totrinsic value of options exercised for
2013, 2012 and 2011 was approximately $7.4 millg:y million and $3.9 million, respectively.

Upon exercise of options, the Company issiiares of Class A common stock.

The following table summarizes informatetmout options outstanding at December 31, 2013:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average
Remaining Contractual
Number Exercise Number Exercise
Range of Exercise Price Outstanding Life (years) Price Exercisable Price
(Options in thousands)

$26.3-$33.65 30¢ 3.97 $ 30.1¢ 174 $ 30.1¢
$35.2(-$35.70 10 3.8C 35.3¢ 10 35.3¢
$37.4:-$37.41 301 6.0% 37.41 55 37.41
$40.1°-$57.95 41° 7.9 53.4( 10 40.17
1,02¢ 6.17 $ 41.6¢€ 24¢ $ 32.3¢

The fair value of each option granted urtler2004 Stock Incentive Plan is estimated ordtte of grant, using the Black-Scholsiton
Model, based on the following weighted average mgsions:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Expected life (years 6.C 6.C 6.C

Expected stock price volatilit 40.9%  41.2% 40.9%
Expected dividend yiel 1.C% 1.2% 1.5%
Risk-free interest rat 1.7% 0% 1.€%
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The risk-free interest rate is based upend.S. Treasury yield curve at the time of grantlfie respective expected life of the option. The
expected life (estimated period of time outstanfizfgoptions and volatility were calculated usirigtbrical data. The expected dividend yield
of stock is the Company's best estimate of the @rpeuture dividend yield. The Company appliedeatimated forfeiture rate of 6.75% for
2013, 2012 and 2011, for its stock options. This veas calculated based upon historical activity igran estimate of granted shares not
expected to vest. If actual forfeitures differ froine expected rates, the Company may be requirethke additional adjustments to
compensation expense in future periods.

The above assumptions were used to deterthenweighted average gratdte fair value of stock options of $20.30, $13a48 $10.19 fc
the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2&ddeatively.

The following is a summary of unvestedniegtd stock and deferred shares activity and edlatformation:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

(Shares in thousands

Unvested at beginning of ye 237 $ 354t 155 $ 30.3¢ 16z $  31.3¢
Granted 142 54.8( 17C 37.62 11F 29.51
Cancelled/Forfeiture (1€) 37.4¢ (8 30.6¢ (14) 31.1%
Vested (109 35.2¢ (78 30.61 (110 30.9¢
Unvested at end of ye 26C $  45.5¢ 237 $  35.4¢ 155 $ 30.3¢

The total fair value of shares vested dui013, 2012 and 2011 was $5.6 million, $2.5 millamd $2.5 million, respectively. At
December 31, 2013, total unrecognized compensatishirelated to unvested restricted stock and aefeshares was approximately
$9.4 million with a total weighted average remagniarm of 2.1 years. For 2013, 2012 and 2011, tva&any recognized compensation costs
of $5.1 million, $2.9 million and $2.4 million, nesctively, in selling, general and administratixpenses. The Company recognized additione
stock compensation expense in 2012 of approxim&@I8 million in connection with the modificatiof @aur former Chief Financial Officer's
restricted stock awards related to his retentioe@gent. The Company recognized additional stookpemsation expense in 2011 related to
restricted stock of approximately $0.8 million ionmection with the modification of the former Chiefecutive Officer's stock awards related
to his separation agreement.

The Company applied an estimated forfeitate of 9.0% for 2013, 2012 and 2011, for restdcitock and deferred shares issued to key
employees. The aggregate intrinsic value of reastlistock and deferred shares granted and outstaagproximated $16.1 million
representing the total pre-tax intrinsic value blase the Company's closing Class A common stoadepmf $61.87 as of December 31, 2013.

Management Stock Purchase P

Total unrecognized compensation cost rélaainvested RSUs was approximately $0.8 milliobPecember 31, 2013 with a total
weighted average remaining term of 1.4 years. B&822012 and 2011
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the Company recognized compensation cost of $0libmi$0.8 million and $1.3 million, respectiveliy selling, general and administrative
expenses. Dividends declared for RSUs, that adktpandividuals, that remain unpaid at December2R1l 3 total approximately $0.1 million.

A summary of the Company's RSU activity agldted information is shown in the following tabl

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average
Purchase Intrinsic Purchase Purchase
RSUs Price Value RSUs Price RSUs Price

(RSU's in thousands]
Outstanding at beginning

period 19¢ $ 22.8¢ 392 $ 18.7¢ 361 $ 16.9:
Granted 45 31.6: 64 99 25.1¢
Cancelled/Forfeiture (14) 28.3¢ (220 (20 20.92
Settled (95  19.1¢ (150) (58)  18.01
Outstanding at end of peri 132 $ 27.4¢ $ 34.4 19€ $ 22.8¢ 392 $ 18.7¢
Vested at end of peric 42 $ 25.3( $ 36.57 81 $ 20.3¢ 157 $ 15.57

As of December 31, 2013, the aggregatsitr values of outstanding and vested RSUs wepeoapmately $4.5 million and $1.5 millio
respectively, representing the total pre-tax isidgrvalue, based on the Company's closing Classmirmon stock price of $61.87 as of
December 31, 2013, which would have been receiyatiddRSUs holders had all RSUs settled as ofdag. The total intrinsic value of RSUs
settled for 2013, 2012 and 2011 was approximat2lg sillion, $3.8 million and $1.2 million, respeaatly. Upon settlement of RSUs, the
Company issues shares of Class A common stock.

The following table summarizes informatetmout RSUs outstanding at December 31, 2013:

RSUs Outstanding RSUs Vestec
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Number Purchase Number Purchase
Range of Purchase Price Outstanding Price Vested Price
(RSUs in thousands

$13.25-$19.87 2 % 16.21 2 % 16.21
$25.1%-$26.51 91 25.8¢ 40 25.6¢
$31.6:-$31.63 39 31.6: — —
132 % 27.4¢ 42 $ 25.3(
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The fair value of each share issued unteManagement Stock Purchase Plan is estimatdteatate of grant, using the Black-Scholes-
Merton Model, based on the following weighted agerassumptions:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Expected life (years 3.C 3.C 3.C
Expected stock price volatilit 34.1% 38.2% 44.%
Expected dividend yiel 0.€% 1.1% 1.2%
Risk-free interest rat 0.4% 0.4% 1.2%

The risk-free interest rate is based upend.S. Treasury yield curve at the time of grantlfie respective expected life of the RSUs. The
expected life (estimated period of time outstansfdRSUs and volatility were calculated using biigtal data. The expected dividend yield of
stock is the Company's best estimate of the exgdatare dividend yield. The Company applied anneated forfeiture rate of 6.3% for 2013,
2012 and 2011, for its RSUs. This rate was caledlased upon historical activity and are an eséimfigranted shares not expected to vest.
actual forfeitures differ from the expected ratbs, Company may be required to make additionalstidjents to compensation expense in ft
periods.

The above assumptions were used to deterthenweighted average grant-date fair value of R@idnted of $18.05, $15.68 and $16.25
during 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Company distributed dividends of $0080 share for 2013, and $0.44 per share for 20d26t1, respectively, on the Company's
Class A common stock and Class B common stock.

(13) Employee Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors funded and unfundaetaontributing defined benefit pension plans tlogiether cover substantially all of its
domestic employees. Benefits are based primarilyeams of service and employees' compensationfurtteng policy of the Company for
these plans is to contribute an annual amountdibes not exceed the maximum amount that can bectitifor federal income tax purposes.

On October 31, 2011, the Company's Boatdiagctors voted to cease accruals effective Deegr@lh, 2011 under both the Company's
Pension Plan and Supplemental Employees RetireRlant The Company recorded a curtailment charg@pfoximately $1.5 million to
write-off previously unrecognized prior service toand reduced the projected benefit obligatio®18.5 million. The Board of Directors also
voted to enhance the Company's existing 401(k)rfgg\vPlan.
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The funded status of the defined benefihpland amounts recognized in the consolidatetid@ksheets are as follows:

Change in projected benefit obligatior
Balance at beginning of the ye
Service cos
Administration costs pai
Interest cos
Actuarial (gain) los:
Benefits paic
Balance at end of ye
Change in fair value of plan asset
Balance at beginning of the ye
Actual (loss) gain on asse
Employer contribution
Administration costs pai
Benefits paic
Fair value of plan assets at end of the !
Funded status at end of ye

Amounts recognized in the consolidated mz@asheets are as follows:

Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

Net amount recognize

Amounts recognized in accumulated otherpretmensive income consist of:

Net actuarial loss recogniz:
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December 31
2013 2012
(in millions)

$ 138.C $ 121:

0.5 0.€
0.8) (0.9
5.4 5.7
(12.5 15

(4.9 (4.2)
$ 126.0 $ 138.C

$ 1156 $ 108«

(77  11¢
0.7 0.7
0.8 (0.9

43 (4.2
$ 1037 $ 115.¢
$ (22.6 $ (22.0)

December 31
2013 2012
(in millions)
$ (06 $ (0.6

(22.0  (21.6)
$ (22.6 $ (22.2)

December 31
2013 2012
(in millions)

$ 422 $ 41.2
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Information for pension plans with an acalated benefit obligation in excess of plan asastsas follows:

December 31

2013 2012
(in millions)
Projected benefit obligatic $ 126.5 $ 138.(
Accumulated benefit obligatic $ 126.2 $ 138.(
Fair value of plan asse $ 103.7 $ 115.¢

The components of net periodic benefit enstas follows:

Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012 2011

(in millions)

Service co—Dbenefits earne $ 0E $ 0€ $ 5.2
Interest costs on benefits obligati 5.4 5.7 6.C
Expected return on asst (6.8 (6.9 (7.5)
Prior service cost amortizatic — — 0.3
Net actuarial loss amortizatic 1.C 0.€ 2.7
Curtailment charg — — 1.t

Net periodic benefit cos $ 01 $ — ¢ 832

For fiscal year 2014, the estimated natatl loss for the defined benefit pension pldra till be amortized from accumulated other
comprehensive income into net periodic benefit @$tL.1 million.

Assumptions:
Weighted-average assumptions used to daterbenefit obligations:

December 31
2013 2012
Discount rate 4% 4.(%

Weighted-average assumptions used to detemet periodic benefit costs:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Discount rate 4.C% 4.8% 5.50%/4.709
Long-term rate of return on ass 6.(% 6.5(% 7.75%

Discount rates are selected based upos cdteturn at the measurement date utilizing alboatching approach to match the expected
benefit cash flows. In selecting the expected ltergi rate of return on assets, the Company corssitleraverage rate of earnings expected or
the funds invested or to be invested to providdtierbenefits of this plan. This includes consiugthe trust's asset allocation and the expecte
returns likely to be earned over the life of tharplThis basis is consistent

88




Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
(13) Employee Benefit Plans (Continued)
with the prior year. The original 2011 discouneraf 5.5% was revised to 4.70% at October 31, 2thElLcurtailment date of the plans.
Plan asset:

The Company's written Retirement Plan Itmest Policy sets forth the investment policy, abijees and constraints of the Watts Water
Technologies, Inc. Pension Plan. This Retiremea Rivestment Policy, set forth by the Pension Rlammittee, defines general investment
principles and directs investment management padidgressing preservation of capital, risk aversioth adherence to investment discipline.
Investment managers are to make a reasonable &ffoontrol risk and are evaluated quarterly againemonly accepted benchmarks to
ensure that the risk assumed is commensurate lgtgiven investment style and objectives.

The portfolio is designed to achieve a beda return of current income and modest growttagpftal, while achieving returns in excess of
the rate of inflation over the investment horizororder to preserve purchasing power of Plan asaBtlan assets are required to be investec
in liquid securities. Derivative investments are allowed.

Prohibited investments include, but arelmoited to the following: futures contracts, priegplacements, options, limited partnerships,
venture-capital investments, interest-only (I0O)npipal-only (PO), and residual tranche collateredi mortgage obligation (CMOs), and Watts
Water Technologies, Inc. stock.

Prohibited transactions include, but arelingited to the following: short selling and mangransactions.
Allowable assets include: cash equivalditsd income securities, equity securities, mufualds, and guaranteed investment contracts.

Specific guidelines regarding allocatiorasets are followed using a liability driven irntvesnt (LDI) strategy. Under an LDI strategy,
investments are made based on the expected caghridguired to fund the pension plan's liabiliti€kis cash flow matching technique
requires a plan's asset allocation to be heavilghted toward fixed income securities. The Compsuaytrent allocation target is 85% fixed
income, 15% equities and other investments. Wighpilan curtailment, this allocation target may @ase to 90% or more in fixed income in
future. Investment performance is monitored ongalle basis and investments are re-allocated yovethin specific guidelines. The securities
of any one company or government agency shouléxa#ed 10% of the total fund, and no more than 20fe total fund should be invested
in any one industry. Individual treasury securitiesy represent 50% of the total fund, while thaltatlocation to treasury bonds and notes
represent up to 100% of the Plan's aggregate bositign.

The weighted average asset allocationsbgtacategory are as follows:

December 31

Asset Category 2013 2012
Equity securities 9.4% 9.€%
Debt securitie! 85.1 85.¢
Other 5.5 5.1
Total 100.(% 100.(%
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The following table presents the investraéntthe pension plan measured at fair value aeBéer 31, 2013 and 2012;

December 31, 201 December 31, 201,
Level Level Level Level Level Level
1 2 3 Total 1 2 3 Total
(in millions)
Money market funds $ 2% — % — 3% 2C$ 12 $ 03 $ — $ 1kt
Equity securities
U.S. equity securities
(@) 7.€ — — 7.€ 8.3 — — 8.3
Non-U.S. equity
securities(a 1.3 — — 1.3 1.4 — — 1.4
Other equity securitie
(b) 0.7 — — 0.7 1.3 — — 1.3
Debt securities
U.S. governmer 16.5 — — 16.5 18.¢ — — 18.¢
U.S. and non-U.S.
corporate(c — 70.¢ — 70.¢ — 79.C — 79.C
Other investments(d) 4.7 — — 4.7 4.4 1.1 — 5.5
Total investments $ 326 $70¢ $§ — $ 1037 $ 354 $804 $ — $ 115.¢

(a) Includes investments in common stock from divenskustries
(b) Includes investments in index and exchangaetidunds
(c) Includes investment grade bonds from divensi@stries

(d) Includes investments in real estate investmentduegchanc-traded funds, commodity mutual funds and accrusstes:
Cash flows
The information related to the Companyssien funds cash flow is as follows:

December 31

2013 2012
(in millions)

Employer Contribution: $ 07 $ 0.7
Benefit Payment $ 4% $ 4.z2

The Company expects to contribute approteiya50.8 million in 2014,

Expected benefit payments to be paid byp#hesion plans are as follows:

(in millions)
During fiscal year ending December 31, 2! $ 5.2
During fiscal year ending December 31, 2( $ 5.k
During fiscal year ending December 31, 2( $ 5.8
During fiscal year ending December 31, 2! $ 6.1
During fiscal year ending December 31, 2( $ 6.4
During fiscal years ending December 31, 2019 thinoug
December 31, 202 $ 37.2
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Additionally, all of the Company's domestimployees are eligible to participate in the Conyfs®401(k) savings plan. Effective
January 1, 2012, the Company provides a base batitm of 2% of an employee's salary, regardlesstather the employee participates in
plan. Further, the Company matches the contribuifarp to 100% of the first 4% of an employee'stdbation. The Company's match
contribution for the years ended December 31, 201B2012 were $4.2 million and $4.0 million, regpety. During 2011, the Company
matched a specified percentage of employee cotitits) subject to certain limitations. The Compamygatch contributions for the year ended
December 31, 2011 was $0.5 million. Charges for B\pEnsion plans approximated $5.8 million, $6.0lionl and $6.2 million for the years
ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respgctiMatse costs relate to plans administered byiceBuropean subsidiaries, with benefits
calculated according to government requirementspaidi out to employees upon retirement or changamgfloyment.

The Company entered into a Supplementalgamsation Agreement (the Agreement) with TimothiA&ne on September 1, 1996. Per
the Agreement, upon ceasing to be an employeesc€tdmpany, Mr. Horne must make himself availatdaeguested by the Board, to work a
minimum of 300 but not more than 500 hours per wsaa consultant in return for certain annual corepton as long as he is physically able
to do so. Mr. Horne retired effective December&1)2, and therefore the Supplemental Compensativadbegan on January 1, 2003. If
Mr. Horne complies with the consulting provisiorfgle agreement above, he shall receive suppleinemtgpensation on an annual basis,
subject to cost of living increases each yearxshange for the services performed, as long as phyisically able to do so. The payment for
consulting services provided by Mr. Horne will bepensed as incurred by the Company. During thesyeaded 2013, 2012 and 2011,
Mr. Horne received payments of $0.6 million, $0.@lion and $0.5 million, respectively. In the evesitphysical disability, Mr. Horne will
continue to receive this payment annually. In adance with Generally Accepted Accounting Princigl@ésAP), the Company accrues for the
future post-retirement disability benefits over tregiod from January 1, 2003, to the time in whith Horne becomes physically unable to
perform his consulting services (the period in vahice disability benefits are earned). Mr. Hornstilb active as a consultant in accordance
with the terms of the Agreement.

(14) Contingencies and Environmental Remediation
Accrual and Disclosure Polic

The Company is a defendant in numeroud tagtters arising from its ordinary course of opierss, including those involving product
liability, environmental matters and commercialpdites.

The Company reviews its lawsuits and otbgal proceedings on an ongoing basis and follqupsapriate accounting guidance when
making accrual and disclosure decisions. The Compatablishes accruals for matters when the Compassgsses that it is probable that a
has been incurred and the amount of the loss cagdsenably estimated, net of any applicable imagg@roceeds. The Company does not
establish accruals for such matters when the Comgaes not believe both that it is probable thiaisa has been incurred and the amount of
the loss can be reasonably estimated. The Compassessment of whether a loss is probable is lmasis assessment of the ultimate outc
of the matter following all appeals.

Under the FASB issued ASC 450 "Contingesician event is "reasonably possible" if "the cleaoicthe future event or events occurrir
more than remote but less than likely" and an eigefremote” if "the chance of the future eventwents occurring is slight". Thus, references
to the upper
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end of the range of reasonable possible loss s which the Company is able to estimate agrahgeasonably possible loss mean the
upper end of the range of loss for cases for wtiiehCompany believes the risk of loss is more siayt.

There may continue to be exposure to loexcess of any amount accrued. When it is posgitéstimate the reasonably possible loss or
range of loss above the amount accrued for theensatisclosed, that estimate is aggregated antbsiést The Company records legal costs
associated with its legal contingencies as incym&dept for legal costs associated with produaddility claims which are included in the
actuarial estimates used in determining the prolitoiity accrual.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company eséisthat the aggregate amount of reasonably pedsis in excess of the amount accrued
for its legal contingencies is approximately $1thiflion pre-tax. With respect to the estimate aisenably possible loss, management has
estimated the upper end of the range of reasompalslyible loss based on (i) the amount of money damelaimed, where applicable, (ii) the
allegations and factual development to date, diilable defenses based on the allegations, atidjather potentially liable parties. This
estimate is based upon currently available infoimnadnd is subject to significant judgment and aetg of assumptions, and known and
unknown uncertainties. The matters underlying gterate will change from time to time, and actuaults may vary significantly from the
current estimate. In the event of an unfavorabte@ue in one or more of the matters described helosvultimate liability may be in excess
amounts currently accrued, if any, and may be riztierthe Company's operating results or cashdgléaw a particular quarterly or annual
period. However, based on information currentlywndo it, management believes that the ultimatea@me of all matters, as they are resolve
over time, is not likely to have a material advezffect on the financial condition of the Compathgugh the outcome could be material to the
Company's operating results for any particularquedepending, in part, upon the operating resattsdich period.

Trabakoolas et al., v, Watts Water Technologies., let al.,

On March 8, 2012, Watts Water Technolodies,, Watts Regulator Co., and Watts Plumbing Tedbgies Co., Ltd., among other
companies, were named as defendants in a putattienwide class action complaint filed in the UDsstrict Court for the Northern District of
California seeking to recover damages and oth@&frighsed on the alleged failure of toilet connextdhe complaint seeks among other items
damages in an unspecified amount, replacement, ¢ogisctive relief, and attorneys' fees and caddtsclass certification hearing has been
scheduled and the matter is currently in the disopphase. On August 22, 2013, the Court stayeddtien for 45 days, to allow the parties to
explore the possibility of settlement. On Octobg2@®13, this stay was extended until November 732th order to allow the parties additional
time to explore settlement. On November 7, 2018 Gburt extended the stay until December 12, 2idi&der to allow the parties additional
time to explore settlement.

On December 12, 2013, the Company reachedjgeement in principle to settle all claims. Tdtal settlement amount is $23.0 million,
which the Company would be responsible for $14 Mioniafter insurance proceeds of $9.0 million. Hettlement was subject to review by
Court at a preliminary approval hearing held onrialy 12, 2014. The Court granted preliminary applon February 14, 2014. The
settlement is subject to final court approval aétéairness hearing currently scheduled for July20d 4. Accordingly, there can be no assur:
that the proposed settlement will be approvedsicurrent form. If the settlement is not approvwbd, Company intends to continue to
vigorously contest the allegations in this case.
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During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Camprecorded a liability of $22.6 million relatemlthe Trabakoolas matter, of which
$12.7 million was included in current liabilitieaca$9.9 million in other noncurrent liabilities. &adition, a $9.0 million receivable was
recorded in current assets related to insuranaeepds due under a separate settlement agreentteatifiss action settlement is approved.

Product Liability

The Company is subject to a variety of pbg liabilities in connection with product lialiif cases. The Company maintains product
liability and other insurance coverage, which tlempany believes to be generally in accordance widhstry practices. For product liability
cases in the U.S., management establishes its grbaloility accrual, which includes legal costsasiated with accrued claims, by utilizing
third-party actuarial valuations which incorporate histalrtrend factors and the Company's specific cta@xperience derived from loss rep
provided by third-party administrators. In otheuntries, the Company maintains insurance coveratierelatively high deductible payments,
as product liability claims tend to be smaller thlaose experienced in the U.S. Changes in the emafuclaims or the actual settlement amount:
could affect the adequacy of this estimate andiregunanges to the provisions. Because the lighdian estimate, the ultimate liability may be
more or less than reported.

Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Settleme

On October 13, 2011, the Company enteredarsettlement with the SEC to resolve allegat@mscerning potential violations of the U.S.
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA) at Watts VaBleangsha Co., Ltd., (CWV), a former indirect wiiadwned subsidiary of Watts Water
China. Under the terms of the settlement, withami&ing or denying the SEC's allegations, the Camypconsented to entry of an
administrative cease-and-desist order under thisaid records and internal controls provisionthefFCPA. The Company also agreed to
pay to the SEC $3.6 million in disgorgement anguatgment interest, and $0.2 million in penalties.

The amounts paid by us in connection withgettlement were fully accrued as of Decembe2B10. This settlement resolves all
government investigations with respect to the Camgpncerning CWV's sales practices and poten@dt A violations.

Environmental Remediatic

The Company has been named as a potentalbponsible party with respect to a limited numifadentified contaminated sites. The
levels of contamination vary significantly fromesio site as do the related levels of remediatftorte. Environmental liabilities are recorded
based on the most probable cost, if known, or eretimated minimum cost of remediation. Accruadsret discounted to their present value,
unless the amount and timing of expenditures aszlfand reliably determinable. The Company accegémated environmental liabilities
based on assumptions, which are subject to a nuafilfactors and uncertainties. Circumstances thataffect the reliability and precision of
these estimates include identification of additiasiges, environmental regulations, level of clegnrequired, technologies available, number
and financial condition of other contributors tonediation and the time period over which remedratitay occur. The Company recognizes
changes in estimates as new remediation requirsnaeatdefined or as new information becomes availab
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Asbestos Litigatiol

The Company is defending 44 lawsuits ifiedént jurisdictions, alleging injury or death aseault of exposure to asbestos. The complain
in these cases typically name a large number @ndisints and do not identify any particular Compamoglucts as a source of asbestos
exposure. To date, the Company has obtained astiahin every case before it has reached trialusecdiscovery has failed to yield evidence
of substantial exposure to any Company products.

Other Litigation

Other lawsuits and proceedings or claimsjray from the ordinary course of operations, @e® pending or threatened against the
Company.

(15) Financial Instruments
Fair Value

The carrying amounts of cash and cash atpnts, short-term investments, trade receivabidsmade payables approximate fair value
because of the short maturity of these financisirirments.

The fair value of the Company's 5.85% sendaies due 2016 and 5.05% senior notes due 2024séd on quoted market prices of similar
notes (level 2). The fair value of the Company'salde rate debt approximates its carrying valuge Tarrying amount and the estimated fair
market value of the Company's long-term debt, idicig the current portion, are as follows:

December 31

2013 2012

(in millions)
Carrying amoun $ 307.7 $ 384.
Estimated fair valu $ 3332 $ 420.¢

Financial Instrument:

The Company measures certain financiatass®l liabilities at fair value on a recurringisasmcluding foreign currency derivatives,
deferred compensation plan assets and relatedtiiaBihere
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are no cash flow hedges as of December 31, 20¥faiihvalue of these certain financial assetslemlities were determined using the
following inputs at December 31, 2013 and 2012:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2013 Usin

Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other Significant
Markets for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(in millions)
Assets
Plan asset for deferred
compensation(1 $ 4€ $ 4€ $ — 3 —
Total asset $ 46 $ 4€ $ — 3 —
Liabilities
Plan liability for deferred
compensation(2 $ 4€ $ 4€ $ — $ —
Contingent consideration(; 4.4 — — 4.4
Total liabilities $9C % 4€ $ — $ 4.4
Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2012 Usin
Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other Significant
Markets for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(in millions)
Assets
Plan asset for deferred
compensation(1 $ 42 % 42 % — $ —
Total asset $ 42 $ 42 $ — $ —
Liabilities
Plan liability for deferred
compensation(Z $ 42 % 4.2 $ — $ —
Contingent consideration(; 5.2 — — 5.2
Total liabilities $ 94 % 42 $ — $ 5.2
Q) Included in other, net on the Company's cadatéd balance sheet.

(2) Included in other noncurrent liabilities on the Gmany's consolidated balance sh:

The table below provides a summary of thenges in fair value of all financial assets aadilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis using significant unobservable inputs (L&ydbr the period December 31, 2012 to Decembef313.

Total realized and
unrealized (gains)
losses included in

Balance Purchases Balance
December 31, sales, Net earnings Comprehensive December 31,
2012 settlements, net adjustments income 2013
(in millions)
Contingent
consideratior $ 52 $ 12 $ 08 $ 0.9 $ 4.4
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In 2010, a contingent liability of $1.9 tiwh was recognized as an estimate of the acquisiate fair value of the contingent
consideration in the BRAE acquisition. This liatyilwas classified as Level 3 under the fair valigedrchy as it was based on the weighted
probability of achievement of a future performanuetric as of the date of the acquisition, which wasobservable in the market. During the
year ended December 31, 2011 and the year endesivibec 31, 2012, the estimate of the fair valudefdontingent consideration was redt
to $1.1 million and subsequently to $0.2 millioaskd on the revised probability of achievemenhefftiture performance metric. During the
year ended December 31, 2013, the remaining liglilas reduced to zer

In connection with the tekmar Control Sysseacquisition in 2012, a contingent liability &.$ million was recognized as the estimate of
the acquisition date fair value of the contingesigideration. This liability was classified as LeSeinder the fair value hierarchy as it was
based on the probability of achievement of a fupgdormance metric as of the date of the acqaisitivhich was not observable in the market
Failure to meet the performance metrics would redhbs liability to zero; while complete achieverhamuld increase this liability to the full
remaining purchase price of $8.2 million. A portiofithe contingent consideration was paid out dpii13, in the amount of $1.2 million,
based on performance metrics achieved in 2012c®hgngent liability was increased by $1.0 millidaring the year ended 2013 based on
performance metrics achieved to date.

Short-term investment securities as of Demer 31, 2012 consist of a certificate of depodih & remaining maturity of greater than three
months at the date of purchase, for which the aagrgmount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Cash equivalents consist of instrumenth vémaining maturities of three months or leshatdate of purchase and consist primarily of
certificates of deposit and money market fundswbich the carrying amount is a reasonable estim@tair value.

The Company uses financial instruments ftiome to time to enhance its ability to manage,riskluding foreign currency and commod
pricing exposures, which exist as part of its ongdiusiness operations. The use of derivativessgthe Company to counterparty credit risl|
for nonperformance and to market risk related @nges in currency exchange rates and commoditgpriche Company manages its expo
to counterparty credit risk through diversificatiohcounterparties. The Company's counterpartiekeivative transactions are substantial
commercial banks with significant experience usingh derivative instruments. The impact of markgt on the fair value and cash flows of
the Company's derivative instruments is monitoned the Company restricts the use of derivativerfaia instruments to hedging activities.
The Company does not enter into contracts fortigagurposes nor does the Company enter into arntyacts for speculative purposes. The
of derivative instruments is approved by senior aggment under written guidelines.

The Company has exposure to a number efgorcurrency rates, including the Canadian dalle,euro, the Chinese yuan and the Britisl
pound. To manage this risk, the Company generalys & layering methodology whereby at the end phaarter, the Company has generally
entered into forward exchange contracts which heghgpeoximately 50% of the projected intercompanscpase transactions for the next
twelve months. The Company primarily uses thiststnafor the purchases between Canada and theldeSaverage volume of contracts can
vary but generally approximates $1.0 to $10.0 onillin open contracts at the end of any given quaiteDecember 31, 2013, the Company
had contracts for notional amounts aggregatingagmately $1.0 million. The Company accounts fa fhrward exchange contracts as an
economic hedge. Realized and unrealized gainscmseéd on the contracts are recognized in othesr(iaf expense in the consolidated
statement of
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(15) Financial Instruments (Continued)

operations. These contracts do not subject the @oynp significant market risk from exchange moveti®ecause they offset gains and lo:
on the related foreign currency denominated traima As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Compad no outstanding swaps.

The Company recorded income (loss) of agprately $0.1 million, $0.1 million and $0.6 millian 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, tc
other expense (income), net in the consolidatedrsint of operations from the impact of derivativ&ruments.

Leases

The Company leases certain manufacturioiitfas, sales offices, warehouses, and equipn@enerally, the leases carry renewal
provisions and require the Company to pay mainte@ansts. Future minimum lease payments underatdgétses and non-cancelable
operating leases as of December 31, 2013 arelaw/fol

Capital Leases Operating Leases
(in millions)
2014 $ 1€ $ 9.1
2015 1.€ 6.2
2016 1.€ 3.€
2017 1t 2.2
2018 14 1.C
Thereatfte 2.8 6.4
Total $ 105 $ 28.€
Less amount representing interest (at rates rarfging 4.2% to
8.7%) 1.C
Present value of net minimum capital lease payn 9.t
Less current installments of obligations under dpease: 1.4
Obligations under capital leases, excluding curmestallments  $ 8.1

Carrying amounts of assets under capitsiddnclude:

December 31
2013 2012
(in millions)
Buildings $ 175 $ 16.€
Machinery and equipme 1.8 1.2
19.: 18.C

Less accumulated depreciati (5.1 (3.9
$ 142 $ 141

(16) Segment Information

The Company operates in three geograpkiments: Americas, EMEA, and Asia Pacific. Eachhafse segments sells similar products, i
managed separately and has separate financialstisal are reviewed by the Company's chief opggatecision-maker. All intercompany
sales transactions have been eliminated. Salesgiyrr are based upon location of the entity recgytle sale. The accounting policies for €
segment are the same as those described in theayrofrsignificant accounting policies (see Note 2)
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(16) Segment Information (Continued)

The following is a summary of the Comparsygificant accounts and balances by segmentnoded to its consolidated totals:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(in millions)
Net Sales
Americas $ 878t $ 835.( $ 810¢
EMEA 562.Z 565.¢ 574.¢
Asia Pacific 32.¢ 26.¢ 211
Consolidated net sals $ 1,473 $ 1427.. $ 1,407.
Operating income (los!
Americas $ 904 $ 96. $ 111
EMEA 46.¢ 52.t 45.L
Asia Pacific 9.7 6.5 12.2
Subtotal reportable segmel 147.C 155.t 169.:
Corporate(*) (35.5) (32.2) (35.§)
Consolidated operating incor 111.5 123.C 133t
Interest incomt 0.€ 0.7 1.C
Interest expens (21.5) (24.¢) (25.9)
Other income (expense), r (2.8) 0.8 (0.8)
Income from continuing operations before incomes $ 87.6 $ 100.. $ 107.¢
Identifiable assets (at end of peric
Americas $ 787¢ $ 810¢ $ 8l4:
EMEA 869.€ 802.1 759.¢
Asia Pacific 82.7 84.: 92.t
Discontinued operatior — 11.7 27.L
Consolidated identifiable ass¢ $ 1,740 $ 1,709.0 $ 1,694.(
Property, plant and equipment, net (at end of g
Americas $ 85.6 $ 80.6 $ 74.¢
EMEA 119.¢ 126.2 130.¢
Asia Pacific 14.% 14.¢ 15.C
Consolidated lor-lived asset: $ 219¢ $ 2215 $ 220«
Capital Expenditure
Americas $ 18.C $ 17¢ % 8.2
EMEA 8.5 10.7 13t
Asia Pacific 1.2 1.9 0.7
Consolidated capital expenditul $ 277 % 305 $ 22.F
Depreciation and Amortizatic
Americas $ 20 % 196 $ 18.7
EMEA 26.C 26.¢ 27.2
Asia Pacific 2.4 2.1 2.C
Consolidated depreciation and amortizal $ 48 $ 485 $ 47.¢
* Corporate expenses are primarily for administratimmpensation expense, internal controls costéegsimnal fees, including legal and audit expenses,

shareholder services and benefit administratiotscd$iese costs are not allocated to the geographiments as they are viewed as corporate fundtiahs
support all activities
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(16) Segment Information (Continued)
The following includes U.S. net sales and U.S. prop plant and equipment of the Company's Amerseggnent:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(in millions)
U.S. net sale $ 7887 $ 7474 $ 732.¢
U.S. property, plant and equipment, net
end of period $ 811 $ 751 $ 69.¢

The following includes intersegment sales for Aroasi EMEA and Asia Pacific:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(in millions)
Intersegment Sale
Americas $ 54 % 523 % 332
EMEA 10.2 10.€ 8.4
Asia Pacific 170.¢ 139.( 132.¢
Intersegment sale $ 186.F $ 1552 $ 144.¢

The Company sells its products into variend markets around the world and groups net salsrd parties into four product categories.
As a result of the EMEA transformation program, @@mpany reallocated revenues of approximately@8a0llion and $100.0 million in 2012
and 2011, respectively, from HVAC & gas to Resitdr& commercial flow control from what was previly reported. The reallocation is
based on the alignment of certain subsidiariesiwitiese product groupings. The adjustment to thelasure has no effect on the consolidate
financial statements. Net sales to third partiegtie four product categories are as follows:

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
(in millions)
Net Sales

Residential & commercial flow

control $ 9077 $ 879.2 $ 854.¢
HVAC & gas 348.¢ 337.( 347.(
Drains & water r-use 140.C 138.¢ 135.%
Water quality 77.C 72.4 70.2

Consolidated net sal $ 1,473 $ 1,427 $ 1,407
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(17) Quatrterly Financial Information (unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(in millions, except per share information)

Year ended December 31, 201

Net sales $ 358¢ $ 366.6 $ 371.& $ 376.(C
Gross profit 128.¢ 132.¢ 133.¢ 130.¢
Income from continuing operations 16.2 18.¢ 17.t 8.2
Net income 16.1 18.¢ 15.4 8.2
Per common share;
Basic
Income from continuing operations 0.4¢€ 0.5 0.4¢ 0.2:
Net income 0.4t 0.5¢ 0.42 0.2
Diluted
Income from continuing operations 0.4€ 0.5 0.4¢ 0.2:
Net income 0.4¢ 0.5¢ 0.42 0.2
Dividends per common share 0.11 0.1z 0.1z 0.1z
Year ended December 31, 2C
Net sales $ 357.€ $ 3625 $ 352.& $ 354t
Gross profit 127.¢ 129.¢ 127.5 128.¢
Income from continuing operatiol 15.7 18.2 18.2 18.2
Net income 15.7 18.t 18.7 15.5
Per common shar
Basic
Income from continuing operatiol 0.4z 0.5(C 0.52 0.51
Net income 0.4z 0.51 0.5: 0.44
Diluted
Income from continuing operatiol 0.4z 0.5C 0.52 0.51
Net income 0.4z 0.51 0.5¢ 0.44
Dividends per common sha 0.11 0.11 0.11 0.11

In the fourth quarter of 2013, the Compesgorded legal costs related to the agreementricipte to settle all claims in the Trabakoolas
et al., v. Watts Water Technologies, Inc., etrahtter pending in the United States District Cdorthe Northern District of California. The net
settlement expense recorded in income from comt@aperations was $13.6 million. Please see Notferlddditional information. Also in the
fourth quarter of 2013, the Company recorded custaebate expense of approximately $3.0 milliort tekated to accrual adjustments for
2013.

(18) Subsequent Events

On January 9, 2014, David J. Coghlan resignom his positions as Chief Executive Officagedtdent and Director of the Company and
our Board of Directors appointed Dean P. FreemanEagecutive Vice President and Chief Financiali€ff, to serve as interim Chief
Executive Officer and President of the Company. Thenpany's Board of Directors has initiated a defocthe Company's next Chief
Executive Officer and President.

On February 18, 2014, the Company declargdarterly dividend of thirteen cents ($0.13) giere on each outstanding share of Class £
common stock and Class B common stock.
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Schedule Il—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
(Amounts in millions)

For the Three Years Ended December 31:

Balance At Additions Additions Balance At
Beginning of Charged To Charged To End of
Period Expense Other Accounts Deductions Period

Year Ended December 31,

2011
Allowance for doubtful

accounts $ 8.7 11 0.2 (1.2 $ 8.¢
Reserve for excess and

obsolete inventorie $ 23t 6.1 1.3 49 % 26.C
Year Ended December 31,

2012
Allowance for doubtful

accounts $ 8.¢ 1.2 1.C 1.6 $ 9.t
Reserve for excess and

obsolete inventorie $ 26.C 6.€ 0.4 (6.2 $ 26.¢
Year Ended December 31

2013
Allowance for doubtful

accounts $ 9.t 1.2 0.2 12 $ 9.7
Reserve for excess an

obsolete inventories $ 26.¢ 8.1 0.2 73 $ 27.¢
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Description
3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amend&x
3.2 Amended and Restated -Laws(1)
9.1 The Amended and Restated George B. Horne Votingt Agreement-1997 dated as
September 14, 1999(1
10.1* Supplemental Compensation Agreement effectivef&eptember 1, 1996 between the
Registrant and Timothy P. Horne (9), Amendment Nalated July 25, 2000 (16), ¢
Amendment No. 2 dated October 23, 200:
10.2* Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Regnt and certain directors and
officers of the Registrant(¢
10.Z* Watts Water Technologies, Inc. Pension Plan (adedrand restated effective as of
January 1, 2006) and First Amendment (17), Secandridment, Third Amendment,
Fourth Amendment, Fifth Amendment and Sixth Amenudifiel)
10.4 Registration Rights Agreement dated July 25, 198
10.2* Watts Water Technologies, Inc. Executive IncenBemus Plan(8
10.6  Amended and Restated Stock Restriction Agreenfatied October 30, 1991 (2), and
Amendment dated August 26, 1997(
10.7* Compromise Agreement among Watts UK Limited, Whitkistries Europe B.V., Wat
Water Technologies, Inc. and John Dennis Cawte
10.& Watts Water Technologies, Inc. Management StagicRase Plan Amended and
Restated as of July 30, 2013(:
10.&¢ Watts Water Technologies, Inc. Second AmendedRestated 2004 Stock Incentive
Plan(8)
10.1¢* Nor-Employee Director Compensation Arrangement
10.1* Watts Water Technologies, Inc. Supplemental Epgés Retirement Plan as Amended
and Restated Effective May 4, 2004, First Amendnaaat Second Amendment (17),
Third Amendment and Fourth Amendment(
10.12* Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement untlee Watts Water
Technologies, Inc. Second Amended and Restated @k Incentive Plan(1(
10.1%* Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Eoydes under the Watts Water
Technologies, Inc. Second Amended and Restated Stk Incentive Plan(1(
10.1# Form of Deferred Stock Award Agreement under\fatts Water Technologies, Inc.
Second Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive )
10.1¢ Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 27, 208&veen the Registrant and
Purchasers named in Schedule A thereto relatitiget®egistrant's $225,000,000
5.85% Senior Notes due April 30, 2016
10.1¢ Form of 5.85% Senior Note due April 30, 201€
10.17 Subsidiary Guaranty, dated as of April 27, 200&o0nnection with the Registrant's
5.85% Senior Notes due April 30, 2016 executechkysubsidiary guarantors party
thereto, including the form of Joinder to Subsidi@uaranty(4’
10.1¢  Credit Agreement, dated as of February 18, 28f¥gng the Registrant, certain
subsidiaries of the Registrant as Borrowers, JPBloighase Bank N.A., as
Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/Cuss and the other lenders
referred to therein(1¢
10.1¢ Guaranty, dated as of February 18, 2014, by #gidRant and the Subsidiaries of the
Registrant set forth therein, in favor of JPMor@drase Bank N.A. and other lenders
referred to therein(1¢
10.1¢ Note Purchase Agreement, dates as of June 18, Béflleen the Registrant a
Purchasers named in Schedule A thereto relatitiget®egistrants $75,000,000 5.C
Senior Notes due June 18, 2020(
10.1¢  Form of 5.05% Senior Note due June 18, 2020
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Exhibit No. Description
10.2C Form of Subsidiary Guaranty in connection with fRegistrants 5.05% Senior Notes due
June 18, 2020, including the form of Joinder to Sdilary Guaranty(18
10.21 Retention Agreement dated as of June 14, 2012deet the Registrant and William C.
McCartney(20
11 Statement Regarding Computation of Earnings per@omShare(13
21 Subsidiaries
23 Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Pukdicounting Firm
31 Certification of Principal Executive Officer afttincipal Financial Officer pursuant to



Rule 13-14(a) or Rule 1&-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asratac
32 Certification of Principal Executive Officer afdincipal Financial Officer Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 13t
101.INS* XBRL Instance Documen
101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docume
101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docunin
101.DEP* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docun
101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum
101.PRF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doentr

Q) Incorporated by reference to the Registraiiisent Report on Form 8-K dated April 29, 2013gMo. 001-11499).

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Registradtigent Report on Form 8-K dated November 14, 1(@%9& No. 00111499).

3 Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's AhReport on Form 10-K for the year ended Decemlie2802 (File
No. 001-11499).

4 Incorporated by reference to the Registraiiisent Report on Form 8-K dated April 27, 200dgMo. 001-11499).

(5) Incorporated by reference to the Registrdralsn S-1 (No. 33-6515) as part of the Second Amemdro such Form S-1
dated August 21, 1986.

(6) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @ugrReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended &aper 29, 2013
(File No. 001-11499).

(7 Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's AhReport on Form 10-K for the year ended Decemhe2812 (File
No. 001-11499).

(8) Incorporated by reference to the Registradtigent Report on Form 8-K dated May 15, 2013 (Rite 001-11499).

(9) Incorporated by reference to the Registraiisual Report on Form 10-K for year ended Junel906 (File No. 001-
11499).

(10) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @ugrReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Bhe&013 (File
No. 001-11499).

(11) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's AhReport on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembe2811 (File
No. 001-11499).

(12) Incorporated by reference to the Registraaisual Report on Form 10-K for year ended Junel809,/ (File No. 001-
11499).

(13) Incorporated by reference to notes to Consolidatedncial Statements, Note 2 of this Report.

(14) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @dsrReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 3uB005 (File
No. 00-11499).
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(15)

(16)

17

(18)
(19)

(20)

*%

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's AhReport on Form 10-K for year ended June 30, 1898 No. 001-
11499).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrapiarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarter endept&aber 30, 2000 (File
No. 001-11499).

Incorporated by reference to the Registraatisual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddwer 31, 2007 (File
No. 001-11499).

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @uiReport on Form 8-K dated June 18, 2010 (File 004.-11499).
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @uReport on Form 8-K dated February 24, 2014 (Nite 001-11499).
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @uiReport on Form 8-K dated June 14, 2012 (File 004.-11499).
Management contract or compensatory plan or arraege

Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are fobowing formatted in XBRL (Extensible Businessgeting Language):

(i) Consolidated Statements of Operations for tearg Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 ,qiiy&lidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Yeade@&December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, (iii) Codat#d Balance
Sheets at December 31, 2013 and December 31, @@jl€onsolidated Statements of Stockholders' Brfait the Years

Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, (v) Catadeli Statements of Cash Flows for the Years EDdegmber 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011, and (vi) Notes to Consolid&iadncial Statement
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Entity Name

BAR GmbH

Black Teknigas & Electro Controls Limite
BLUCHER France SARI
BLUCHER Germany Gmbt
BLUCHER Metal A/S

BLUCHER Norway AS

BLUCHER Sweden AE

BLUCHER UK LTD

Blue Ridge Atlantic, Inc.

BM Stainles Steel Drains Limite
Dormont Manufacturing Compar
Electro Controls Ltd.

HF Scientific, Inc.

Mutpec C.V.

Orion Enterprises, Inc

Socla Benelux S.P.R.L

Socla Italia S.r.I.

Socla SAS

Socla Valves and Controls Iberica
Tekmar Control Systems Ltc
Tekmar Control Systems, Int
Tekmar Holdings Ltd.

Valpes S.A.S.

Watts (Ningbo) International Trading Co., Lt
Watts (Shanghai) Management Company Lim
Watts Asia Pacific Sales Pte. Lt
Watts Belgium Holding Bvb

Watts Canada Finance Company L
Watts Denmark Holding Ap

Watts Deutschland Holdings GmbH & Co
Watts Electronics S.A.S

Watts EMEA Holding BV

Watts France Holding S.A.<

Watts Germany Holding Gmb
Watts Holdings Limitec

Watts Industries Belgium Bvk
Watts Industries Bulgaria EA
Watts Industries Deutschland Gml
Watts Industries Europe B

Watts Industries France S.A.
Watts Industries Iberica S

Watts Industries Italia S.r.

Watts Industries Luxembou

Watts Industries Middle East Fz
Watts Industries Netherlands E
Watts Industries Nordic Al

Watts Industries Polska Sp. z.0
Watts Industries Tunisia S.A.¢
Watts Industries U.K. Ltd

Watts Insulation N\

Watts Intermes AC

Watts Intermes Gmb

Watts International Holdings Limite
Watts Italy Holding S.r.l.

Watts Plumbing Technologies (Taizhou) Co. L
Watts Premier, Inc

Watts Regulator Co

Watts U.K. Ltd.

Watts Valve (Ningbo) Co., Ltd
Watts Water Quality and Conditioning Products,

Domestic Jurisdiction

Exhibit 21

Doing Business A¢

Germany
United Kingdom
France
Germany
Denmark
Norway
Sweder

United Kingdom
North Caroline
United Kingdom
Pennsylvanii
United Kingdom
Florida
Netherland:
Kansas
Belgium

Italy

France

Spain

British Columbia
Washingtor
British Columbia
France

China

China
Singapore
Belgium
Delaware
Denmark
Germany
France
Netherland:
France
Germany
Gibraltar
Belgium
Bulgaria
Germany
Netherland:
France

Spain

Italy
Luxembourg
Dubai
Netherland:
Sweder

Poland

Tunisia

United Kingdom
Belgium
Switzerland
Austria
Gibraltar

Italy

China

Arizona
Massachuset!
United Kingdom
China
Delaware

Flo-Safe, Laboratory Enterprises, Orion Fittir

Watts, FEBCO, Mueller Steam Specialty, Savard PlojmEompany

Flowmatic Systems, Alamo Water Refiners, Topwayb@l



Entity Name
Watts Water Technologies (Canada), Ii

Watts Water Technologies International, L
Watts Water Technologies Latin America S.A. de C
Watts Water Technologies, In

Domestic Jurisdiction

Doing Business A¢

Federally Chartere
Delaware

Mexico

Delaware
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Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Watts Water Technologies, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by refeecincthe registration statements (Nos. 333-188889;142714, 33-64627, 333-105798, 333-
108699 and 333-115968) on Form S-8 and (Nos. 38838and 333-180402) on Form S-3 of Watts Water fieldgies, Inc. of our reports
dated February 27, 2014, with respect to the catesteld balance sheets of Watts Water Technololfiesand subsidiaries as of December 31
2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statsméoperations, comprehensive income, stockisléguity, and cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended Decenthet( 3, and the related financial statement sdeednd the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting as of December 113, which reports appear in the December 313 2@hual report on Form 10-K of Watts
Water Technologies, Inc.

/sl KPMG LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 27, 2014
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Exhibit 31

WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Dean P. Freeman, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Repartrmrm 10-K of Watts Water Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsdnot contain any untrue statement of a mat@galor omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleding with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3 Based on my knowledge, the finansatements, and other financial information ineliéh this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the company as of, andffierperiods presented in this report;

4. The company's other certifying da#fis) and | are responsible for establishing anishtaiaing disclosure controls and procedures (a:
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the company and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls@odedures, or caused such disclosure controlprugdures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the company, including its consolidatebsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal cordgrar financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thegany's disclosure controls and procedures anepi@d in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaints procedures, as of the end of the period coueyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changéhie company's internal control over financialoming that occurred during the
company's most recent fiscal quarter (the compdayish fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrgphat has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the comparipternal control over financial reporting; and

5.  The company's other certifying d#fis) and | have disclosed, based on our most resatuation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the company's auditors and the aratitmittee of the company's board of directors @spns performing the equivalent
functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and miad¢ weaknesses in the design or operation of matlecontrol over financial reporting whi
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the comyfsaability to record, process, summarize andntdpwancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materialat involves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the company's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2014 /s/ DEAN P. FREEMAN

Dean P. Freeman
Chief Executive Officer, President and
Chief Financial Officel
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Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned officer of Watts Water Teathgies, Inc. (the "Company") hereby certifiesttha his knowledge, the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K to which this certificationaigached (the "Report"), as filed with the Secesitand Exchange Commission on the date
hereof, fully complies with the requirements of &t 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Secesitexchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
"Exchange Act"), and that the information contaiimethe Report fairly presents, in all materialgests, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company. This certification isyided solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 135DI8em 601(b)(32) of Regulation S-K
("Item 601(b)(32)") promulgated under the Secusitiet of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Actiyl the Exchange Act. In accordance with
clause (i) of Item 601(b)(32), this certificati@f) shall not be deemed "filed" for purposes oftger18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise
subject to the liability of that section, and (B)p# not be deemed to be incorporated by referérioeany filing under the Securities Act or the
Exchange Act, except to the extent that the Compaeygifically incorporates it by reference.

Date: February 27, 2014 /s/ DEAN P. FREEMAN

Dean P. Freeman
Chief Executive Officer, President and
Chief Financial Officel
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